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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results 5

For the year ended 31 December

BET-RZt-ALER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2-t% SN2 —T-nf —E-MmF S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRBTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Operating income EEMA 901,04 875,197 817,970 844,469 893,448
Operating profit EEHE 95,874 101,990 66,920 54,929 118,196
Profit before taxation flEas 96,103 123,087 73,796 57,551 128,055
Net profit for the year FHE 95,967 121,687 73,182 58,399 127,530
Attrioutable to: GER
Equity shareholders of RAAMEE
the Company 95,967 121,687 73,182 58,399 127,530
Non-controlling interests SRR - S S = -

REARF (1) RMBARW0.265T RMBARMN0.325T RMBAR®0.190% RMBAXHO.146T RMBARH03127

r

Basic earnings per share (Note)

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value
of RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28
January 2013.

o BREFRBANEER-Z=F-A-1+N\BERZEREEARBCI0TZETREOHEH AEREEARE1.00T.2
— A B 2 EORYERR A & 01 0% -
Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
ELAFRRELRT

(AR#ETFr)
(RMB’000)

150000 F — ———————— ——— —— - — — - — — — —

o S | AR (S

900 ---Bf----------- -- 48

60000 ---| §$---—---- - - - --1 1

3000 F---l ¥--11---1 F-- --1 ¥

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

BELE

BEAE

KRAfEE
el

HERRE L

BERAR

2017
—E-t%
RMB'000
IN:1

1,965,807
304,335

1,661,472

Financial Highlights
MBRE

As at 31 December

®+=B=+-H

2016 2015 2014 2013

-5 “Z-1F “3-NF =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL AREFT ANREFT
2,130,850 2,217,914 2,157,629 2,442,161
505,159 655,658 617,982 906,525
1,625,691 1,562,256 1,539,647 1,535,636

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
FLFIRRELER

(AE¥TFT)

(RMB’000)

1,860,000 -~~~ - - - - T T T T T T T T T ~ -
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB901,041,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to
approximately RMB875,197,000 last year, representing an increase
of approximately 3%. The gross profit margin was approximately
32% for the year ended 31 December 2017 while the gross
profit margin for the previous year was approximately 28%. The
profit attributable to equity Shareholders was approximately
RMB95,967,000 for the year under review, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB25,720,000 over the previous
year of approximately RMB121,687,000. Basic earnings per share
was approximately RMB0.265.

The increase in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
further boost in sales volume over the significant increase in sales
volume achieved last year which was caused by the increase in our
Group’s market development effort. The effect of such increase in
sales volume offset the unfavorable impact due to the decrease
in the selling price of juice concentrate in the international market.
The Group could thereby achieve slight increase in turnover during
the reporting period.

Under the trend of appreciation of Renminbi against US Dollar and
the condition of gradual decrease in asset ratio of the Group, the
Group has continued to enhance its cooperation with domestic
renowned financial institutions. This can reduce the Group’s
exchange rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its
business development. In expanding the market sales, the Group
continued to maintain close and stable business relationships with
certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and overseas
and has developed new good customers with broadened sales
channels. The market share of the Company in terms of sales
volume in the African and North American markets also increased

6  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LFZEFRARHERATE
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significantly. For research and development, the Company had
developed new beverages: NFC (not from concentrate) cloudy
peach juice, strawberry puree, cherry juice and cherry juice
products; conducted key technology study on energy saving
and emission reduction in juice concentrate processing; filed three
company standards; and as the president unit, completed the
innovation mission of the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit
Deep Processing Technology and Innovation Alliance.

Analysis of the Industry and Our Market Share

In 2017, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 654,700 tonnes, representing an
increase of 29% as compared to approximately 506,500 tonnes
in 2016. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of the last
century, the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed
a world market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to
the abundant apple supplies in China. Excluding China, Europe is
the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in the
world. Hence, the export volume and price of the China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by the global economy,
but also the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in
Europe. Starting from 2014, due to the increasing competition of
producers of apple juice concentrate in Europe and low growth
pace of the global economy, the international market price of
apple juice concentrate started to decrease until 2016. In 2017,
the export volume and amount of apple juice concentrate in China
increased again. The international market price also started to
stabilize and recover.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food is bound to bring more room for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growths. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future apple
juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure natural juice
will become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the China’s apple juice concentrate industry
and through our proactive and visionary leadership, we will seek
to secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid and
better development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable
to the agricultural industry under the PRC government’s
macroeconomic policies as well as the gradual improvement
of various relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group will
enjoy better development and financing opportunities. Aiming at
enlarging its business scale, the Group will strive to further enlarge
its market, enhance productivity, diversify products, expand sales,
disperse markets and to develop financing channels, etc.
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry, to rationally
adjust the Group’s existing production capacities according to
changes in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research
on different types of juice concentrate and production capacity.
On research and development, in 2018, the Group will continue
to develop fruit beverages; conduct related research topics of
the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep Processing
Technology and Innovation Alliance; and conduct the optimization
of juice processing technique.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company (“Directors”) and | have full confidence in the Group’s
future development. Our employees will continue to support the
Group and to contribute to the Group’s continuous and steady
development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EEREREE

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.10
per share for the financial year 2017 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, although the international market
price of apple juice concentrate remained at the low level, due to
the increase in sales volume and the decrease in cost of juice,
the gross profit and gross profit margin increased obviously.
However, under the effect of significant provision for diminution in
assets, both the net profit and net profit margin of the Company
decreased. The Directors strongly believe that the Company will
have even more development opportunities in 2018, given that
some small and medium domestic enterprises have been forced
out of the market and the whole international market is gradually
recovering. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the investors, loyal customers and suppliers
for their appreciation and unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

28 March 2018

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s turnover
increased to approximately RMB901,041,000 as compared to
approximately RMB875,197,000 in 2016, representing an increase
of approximately RMB25,844,000 or 3%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the sale of
apple juice concentrate was approximately 85% of the total sale
of the Group (2016: approximately 86%). The increase in turnover
was mainly due to the increase in sales volume of the apple juice
concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB291,262,000 and the gross profit margin
was approximately 32%. For the corresponding period in 2016, the
gross profit was approximately RMB244,004,000 and gross profit
margin was approximately 28%. The increase in both gross profit
and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase in
sales volume and the decease in product cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company) decreased to approximately RMB95,967,000
as compared to approximately RMB121,687,000 for the
corresponding period in 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB25,720,000 or 21%. The decrease in net profit
was mainly attributable to the provision for diminution in fixed
assets in Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, of approximately RMB31,938,000 in
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB69,877,000, as compared
to approximately RMB72,982,000 in 2016, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB3,105,000 or 4%. The Group’s distribution
costs mainly included transport, import and export service charge,
export inspection and marketing expenses. Such decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in packaging expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB54,940,000 as
compared to approximately RMB53,908,000 in 2016, representing
a slight increase of approximately RMB1,032,000 or 2%.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the net finance costs of
the Group were approximately RMB20,937,000, as compared to
approximately RMB94,000 for the corresponding period in 2016,
representing an increase of approximately RMB20,843,000. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the exchange loss recorded
in 2017 of approximately RMB13,678,000 due to depreciation of
US dollars to RMB in 2017 instead of appreciation in the previous
reporting period.

Other Operating Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017, other operating income
of the Group was approximately RMB514,000. As compared to
approximately RMB21,127,000 in 2016, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB20,613,000 or 98%. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in government grants received
by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss on Diminution of Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2017, loss on diminution of assets
of the Group was approximately RMB36,916,000. Compared to
approximately RMB6,429,000 in 2016, increased approximately
RMB30,487,000 or 474%. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the idle production capacity in Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, caused by
high lemon supply cost. As the relevant assets were idle, provision
for diminution in fixed assets of approximately RMB31,938,000
was recorded.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continuously recognized as primary processing
of agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Business Review

Sale of 100% Equity Interest in Binzhou Andre

Suffering from raw fruit supply shortage and high production cost
in Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (“Binzhou Andre”), a subsidiary
of the Company, the Group adjusted its production location
arrangement to reduce overall operating costs. On 11 December
2017, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Shandong Jinye Jianan Decoration Limited* (LI 8% &%
AR A A]) (“Shandong Jinye”) and Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into another
equity transfer agreement with Shandong Jinye. Pursuant to the
agreements, Shandong Jinye agreed to acquire from each of the
Company and Andre Juice Co., Ltd., and the Company and Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. each agreed to sell, their respective 75% and
25% equity interest in Binzhou Andre at a total consideration of
RMB84,800,000 (equivalent to HKD99,996,160). The sale of 100%
equity interest in Binzhou Andre was completed on 21 December
2017. The Group did not hold any equity interest in Binzhou Andre.
Management of the Group believed that the above disposal was
for the benefit of the Group development and would deliver better
reward to the shareholders of the Company. For further details
of the transactions, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 December 2017.

*

For identification purpose only

14 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. BAILFRZENETRHOERDT

E 4]

& B N 2 EFI100% KR #E
ERARREP —RMBRFEMNZEF
AT ARAR(EMNZEFR )RR
BER - AERARERE  KEEH
BTEERENRR  KRELCELEK
KeRZZE—+F+-_A+—H &R
R RBEELTEMAR AR (LR
DI BREEERBERARTEE
WEBARLEMRETER AR ELERE
RIS —HREEZEGE - REZEH
F o URBECRESBRAARARELE
FRABERAGTKE  ARRRLENE
ABRABEDHIBEEHEERNEMNEZE
FIE75% M25% R IEE - REXAAR
84,800,000 7T (48 & M 4999,996,160 %
JL) o HEBMEZEAZ100% K EE R =
T—+FF+_A=-t+—HEK - AEET
BREEEMNZEFNORE  -RFEERER
B rEEEARNEESRETNEEN
EREREERFERR - BRARZZ
15 BLHARARBHA-T—tF+
ZA+—HHRE -

Y EHEE



Management Discussion and Analysis

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2017, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging
on its advanced production technology, superb product quality
and comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained
steady growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts,
the Group has already expanded its sales network to the major
countries and regions in the world, including the US, Japan,
Europe, Oceania and African countries and China domestic market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
cooperation relationships with certain renowned beverage
processors and manufacturers in China and has developed new
good customers with broadened sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and enlarging its market shares,
the Group also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to
optimise its profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the
customer base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.

Research and Development

The Company had developed new beverages: NFC cloudy peach
juice, strawberry puree, cherry juice and cherry juice products;
conducted key technology study on energy saving and emission
reduction in juice concentrate processing; filed three company
standards; and as the president unit, completed the innovation
mission of the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep
Processing Technology and Innovation Alliance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets
of apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania and African countries and Japan. Saved as stabilizing the
existing market penetration and customers groups, the Company
will put more efforts in the development of various emerging
markets in the forthcoming year, with a view to breaking through
these markets. In addition, the Company has in recent years been
committed to the exploration of the market opportunities for its
new products and niche products as well as the development of
new customer groups. The Company will also further expand the
types of niche products. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of diversified
product expansion.

Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the forthcoming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page
in our domestic market sales.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against the US Dollars and adjust the proportion of Renminbi
and US Dollars deposits and loans. The Group will continue to
actively engage in cooperation with domestic and international
financial institutions to diversify its financing channels and increase
the variety of financing products, in order to reduce the Group’s
exchange rate risk and finance cost, improve capital structure,
enhance risk resistant capability and facilitate better business
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Research and Development

On research and development, in 2018, the Group will continue
to develop fruit beverages; conduct related research topics of
the Ministry of Agriculture of National Fruit Deep Processing
Technology and Innovation Alliance; and conduct the optimization
of juice processing techniques.

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.15 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2017.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
Dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US Dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note Xl
to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Capital Structure

The H shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19 January
2011, the H shares were transferred and listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) and de-listed from
GEM. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
(comprising domestic shares (the “Domestic Shares”), domestic
non-circulating foreign shares (the “Domestic Non-Circulating
Foreign Shares”) and H Shares). Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in Note V.22 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB170,000,000, all of which were short-
term bank loan. As at 31 December 2017, short-term bank loans of
RMB170,000,000 bore interest at fixed rates ranging from 4.35%
t0 4.39% per annum. In the year 2017, the Group repaid on time
the loans that were due for repayment. The Directors consider that
the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB79,398,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as at
31 December 2017 was approximately 15% (2016: approximately
24%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of approximately RMB304,335,000 (2016: RMB505,159,000) by
the Group’s total assets of approximately RMB1,965,807,000
(2016: RMB2,130,850,000).

Environmental Policies

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in the 2017
Environmental Social and Governance Report to be issued by the
Company in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%) , aged 55, is chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26 June
2001. Mr. Wang is a well known private entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (#t&; X4t 5L#E A ) , an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (ILIRAEFTHEL@HTE
FEEHEERE), aTop Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (LLIE& & ¥ 7&E
ELRAFENTAELEAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’ of
Reform and Opening in Yantai (A& ERM=TF [FEZE]),
an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai to
Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (422K 60EFHERAEFR
BZER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (LU (&) H& T
BN TEREAND 2 TELBEREAY) , and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AR
R FK) . Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (FREtAREREFERT) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (& & &E/A) for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (B TEEESEE) , member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation (A& =R eFE—fE5IEE
GIEE) . Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILE
ZIEFEEABRAR) (“Andre Group”), which are substantial
shareholders of the Company. He joined the Company in March
1996 and has since been involved in the concentrated apple
juice production industry. Mr. Wang is responsible for the overall
management of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Zhang Hui (3k%%), aged 45, is an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was the deputy general manager
of Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (&R T¥A
FR/AT]) and Yantai Muping Xinping Land Development Material
Company Limited* (EamAEFEHF L HRAZEYWEFRAR)
before joining the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in
December 1998 and has been involving in the concentrated juice
production industry since then. Mr. Zhang has been supervisor of
the production department, general manager of a subsidiary of
the Company and the executive president of the Company. Mr.
Zhang has received the following awards: Outstanding Member
of the Communist Party (BFHEEE) of Muping District, The
9th Session Top Ten Outstanding Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai
city (FNEAET T AELFTFLER) and the “May 1st Labor
Award” of Yantai city. In March 2007, he was appointed as a
member of the standing committee of the fruit and vegetable
processing division (RN LA E) of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology. During his tenure as general manager
of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (AKZEFIRETERAR), he
was appointed as a representative of the Communist Party in
Weinan city (FH/BEMERRK) and was a standing member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of Baishui
County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr. Wang An in the overall
management of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shandong
Agriculture University with a bachelor’s degree in economics and
management (majoring in corporate management) in July 1997.
Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (T %:#%) , aged 41, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (B&E B &1L AH
J&) . Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the financial
controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

* For identification purpose only

20  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IFZEFRARHDERATE

SRIEFRAL - 45B% - RARBHITESFRT
WBE - RAEEB-_ZZ-FRAZTRK
HEEETES - RINBAREER - twEHE
FEFYRBIXARAARBAGHE TR
P LR ENERRARNBIBERE -
REER—AANFTZAMAKRRA] -
VENHSERERRTEESE  KREE
HEMIME  HBLRAKLE QAR
TTHREBT - RELARKTES/ETR
[(EFHAERE | FAEMEET AR
BFEAEX]  MamlA—JSHRERES
E _ETLF-AREZERTEHAR
MERMEGRAMINEERIES - K
REERKZRARFT AR RIETR
IR BEERHBEMERERMA
KEBMEER - BRIREEWMB TR L
BEAREENEBER - REER -
TFLABLREEARBEE  YEBE
BEBRETEA(EEEEER) - KL
E—BIIRAD o

T8EERE -4 BT —F A
TLHHEARITES - TREAHARES
o RREEMEst - TEESERS
BEBLEAXRBEETGHEBG : —TT—
FZAMARRRSLREIE - ZRWB
NAEAITEGH - BIKE  KEFH - EX
EMRAEENBREREETSNE -

< st



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (BI5RE) , aged 51, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the business integration
division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He joined Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed
as the head of its investment analysis section. In 2000, he was
transferred to President International Development Corporation,
and was responsible for its investments. He has also been the
manager of the treasury division of Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. since 2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/
supervisor of certain member companies of Uni-President
Enterprises Corp., amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution
Co., Ltd. is a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance,
M&A, private equity, and business strategy. Before joining Uni-
President Enterprises Corp., he was the head of the credit and
loan unit of the Taipei branch of Cosmos Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu
obtained a bachelor of laws degree (majoring in economics) from
National Chengchi University in 1989, and a master of business
administration degree from National Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (Z#% ), aged 51, is an independent non-
executive Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Jiang is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. Mr. Jiang obtained a master degree
in economics from Hangzhou Institution of Electronic Technology in
March 1997. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC. From
March 1997 to December 2002, Mr. Jiang served as a business
manager and a senior manager of Shandong International Trust
and Investment Corporation. Mr. Jiang joined the Company in 2003
and served as the chief financial officer of the Company from May
20083 to May 2010. From May 2007 to June 2010, he served as
an executive Director and from July 2010 to June 2012 he served
as a non-executive Director. Since May 2010, he serves as the
vice president of the Creat Group Co., Ltd..
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EESkeREEE

Mr. Li Wei (Z5/&), aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Li has approximately 15 years of
working experience in corporate management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing Institute for Foreign Trade in July 1980. From July
1986 to October 1989, Mr. Li served as the general manager of
the import department at China North Industries Corporation.
From October 1989 to October 1995, he served as the managing
director of Silverkey Development Ltd. From October 1995 to
October 1999, he served as the managing director of Silvercity
International Development Ltd., and also served as a director of
Raymond Industrial Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Since February 2002, Mr. Li has successively been a commentator
or host at several broadcasting stations and television stations
in Hong Kong, Beijing and Shenzhen. Since August 2007, he
serves as an independent non-executive director of VST Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, since
May 2016, he serves as an independent non-executive director
of Qianhai Health Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Last but not least, he serves as an independent non-
executive director of Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since July 2017.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z2[F%), aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.

Supervisors

Ms. Dai Liying (ZFI%), aged 53, is a staff representative
Supervisor since 16 March 2016. She is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. She obtained a bachelor degree
from Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1988, majoring in
pre-school education. From July 1988 to July 1997, she served
as the principal of the Third Kindergarten of Inner Mongolia First
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Machinery Manufacturing Factory. From July 1997 to June 1998,
she worked at Yantai Commercial and Trading Company Limited.
She joined the Company in July 1998, and held various positions
at the Company successively, including the deputy supervisor
of administration department, the supervisor of administration
department and the supervisor of human resources department
of the Company. Since 2014, she serves as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company and the supervisor of the general
management department of the Company.

Mr. Wang Zhiwu (EEE), aged 47, is a Shareholder-approved
supervisor since 25 May 2016. He is a member of the Communist
Party of the PRC with a high school qualification. From May 1990
to June 1997, he worked at Muping District Aquatic Products
Supplying and Marketing Company. He joined the Company in
July 1997. From January 2002 to February 2012, he held various
positions at the Company successively, including the deputy
supervisor of the production department of the Company, the
supervisor of production department of the Company, the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company and the vice
president of the Company. From March 2012 to March 2017, he
was the general manager of Binzhou Andre. Since April 2017, he is
the general manager of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (£&%), aged 64, is an independent
representative in the supervisory committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
economics and management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was supervisor,
deputy chief and managing deputy chief of the Publishing Office
of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January 2006
to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the executive
committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (£%) , aged 55, is chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EEkEREERE

Mr. Zhang Hui (5R#£) , aged 45, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (F%i#) , aged 41, is an executive Director,
financial controller and secretary to the Board. Please refer to his
biography under the sub- section headed “Directors”.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&) , aged 52, is a vice president of the Company.
Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’'s University of
International Business and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in foreign business management in July 1990. She worked
in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign Economics
and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992 to February
1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co., Ltd. from
1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president responsible
for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August 2003; and
Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September 2003 to
December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in January
2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and overseas
sales of the Group.

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (FiE4), aged 49, a university graduate
with a bachelor’s degree in agriculture, is a vice president and
the chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company
in 1997 to engage in manufacturing technologies development,
quality control and on-going supervision of production activities.
He was the twice winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement of Shandong Province (IUIEARIFEF=518) |
the winner of the First Class Award of Science Advancement in
Yantai City (\AamEH#EH—%14E) and the winner of the Third
Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (A&mEl
R =%4%) . Currently, he is responsible for the technology,
research and development of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fR&14) , aged 46, is the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business
administration in 1994. She is a fellow certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviation:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for formulating the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees of
the Group and Directors; and

(v) To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure requirements in the corporate governance
report.
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The Board

The Company is managed by its Board, which has the responsibility
for providing leadership and control of the Company. Through the
Board, the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total
of seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang An (chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (chief executive officer)
and Mr. Wang Yan Hui (financial controller); one non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei and
Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2019.
All Directors are appointed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19
to 22 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

= convening general meetings and reporting on their work
at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at general meetings;

S formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting
off of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger or dissolution
of the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the
Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of
the Company, appointing or dismissing the deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management at the recommendation of the chief executive
officer of the Company and determining matters relating to
their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;
- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);

and

S carrying out other powers conferred by general meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible
for preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-
to-day management of the Company’s business is delegated to
the chief executive officer and the management. The functions
of the Board and the powers delegated to the chief executive
officer are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer.
The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman
is responsible for convening and holding general meetings and
Board meetings, tracking the progress of implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board, signing the securities issued
by the Company and carrying out other powers conferred by
the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chief executive officer and the management are
responsible for the production, operation and management of
the Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board, implementation of annual business plans and investment
proposals, formulation of the internal management structure, the
basic management system and the specific governance of the
Company. In particular the chief executive officer is responsible
for proposing to the Board for appointment or dismissal of vice
president, chief financial officer and other senior management of
the Company, appointment or dismissal of other management
staff whose appointment and dismissal does not require approval
from the Board and carrying out other powers conferred by the
Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Upon appointment to the Board, each newly-appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies and independent auditors so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in performing their duties. During the year under review, the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen, has
completed over 15 hours professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year under review:

Executive Directors BITES

Wang An oy

Zhang Hui o e

Wang Yan Hui T s
Non-executive Directors FEBRITES

Liu Tsung-Yi BRE
Independent non-executive Directors BILFMITEE
Jiang Hong Qi EHF

Li Wei FE

Li Tong Ning FEE
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Corporate Governance/
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Read Attend
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for Board meetings and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related Board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a Board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting key people at head office and in
the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary of the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
On 30 August 2017, the Company amended the terms of reference
of the Audit and Review Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration and Review Committee according to the “Company
Law of the PRC”, “Securities Law of the PRC”, “Listing Rules of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange”, other related laws and regulations
and rules from regulatory documents so as to fulfill the listing
requirements of the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(“CSRC”) and Shanghai Stock Exchange. All committees have
its terms of reference which fulfill the principles set out in the CG
Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes of the meetings
of these committees and the work of these committees is reported
to the Board.

The Board held six meetings during 2017. The chief financial
officer of the Company also attended all of the Board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, mergers and acquisitions and accounting and financial
matters. The attendance (other than attending by authorised
representatives) of individual Directors at the Board meetings,
the meetings of major committees and the general meetings in
2017 is set out in the table below:

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BH# (BB %) £ ] WA ZH
06/01/2017 WA v v
15/03/2017 WA v v
25/05/2017 WA v v
15/06/2017 WA v v
30/08/2017 WA v v
11/12/2017 WA v v

Annual and Special General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

H# (A B %) *E WA ZH
25/05/2017 WA v v
01/11/2017 WA v v
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I\ =5 3 ==

TEERRS

Audit and Review Committee Meeting ENREEES

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B (B R %) £ JHQ  LTN LW
14/03/2017 JHQ v v v
25/08/2017 JHQ v v v
25/10/2017 JHQ v v v
Nomination Committee Meeting REZREEH

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (BB %) £ WA JHQ  LTN
14/03/2017 WA v v v
14/06/2017 WA v v v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FlRERZESEE

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (BB %) £ ZH* JHQ  LTN
14/03/2017 JHQ N/A v v
Note: i

WA  Wang An F&

ZH Zhang Hui o b

WYH  Wang Yan Hui I Sy

LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE

JHQ  Jiang Hong Qi E=HH

LW L Wei e

LTN  Li Tong Ning EE)E

Symbols: 55

“/” means attended the meeting [vIRERLEEZ

“_” means not attended the meeting [-IRERFEZH

“N/A” means not applicable INAIREZTER

“” means appointed on 11 December 2017 FIRREAR-_E—+F+_A+—H
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a Director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction
in which a Director has a conflict of interest, the Director has
to declare his interest and is required to abstain from voting
and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate. The Company
seeks confirmation from the Directors annually in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related
to Directors or their associates pursuant to the guideline.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2017.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2017.
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Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members of which
two are recommended by Shareholders and one is an employee
representative elected by the employees. The Supervisory
Committee is responsible for supervision of the Board, members
of the Board and senior management, to prevent authority abuse,
Shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect legitimate
interests of the Company and its employees. During 2017, the
Supervisory Committee held two meetings, during which the
members of the Supervisory Committee reviewed the Company’s
financial position, legal compliance of the Company’s operations
and diligence of the senior management.

Internal Control

Internal Control System

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement errors, losses or fraud. Procedures for
the Company’s internal, control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Regarding to the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “Inside Information
Provisions”), and any information required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules or any inside information required
to be disclosed under the Inside Information Provisions should be
announced immediately.

A review of the Company’s internal control system covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management is
conducted annually. In particular, the Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place
to identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these
risks are monitored by the Board with the support of various
committees and senior management. For the year under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and the Company had complied with the Code
Provisions on internal control under the CG Code.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department of the Company provides an
independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system. The department is headed by a manager
who is familiar with the Company’s operation. Its scope of work
mainly includes auditing of financial and operational systems,
reviewing the observance of relevant policies and regulations,
regular and special auditing, auditing of production effectiveness,
etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk assessment
methodology, is discussed and agreed on every year by the Audit
and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual schedule
of work, the internal audit department of the Company conducts
other special reviews as required.
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The primary reporting procedure of the internal audit department of
the Company is to report to the chairman of the Board but there
is also direct access to the Audit and Review Committee. Internal
audit reports are sent to the chief executive officer, the chief
financial officer, the external auditors and the relevant management
of the departments under audit. A summary of major audit findings
is reported to and discussed with the Audit and Review Committee.
The Board and the Audit and Review Committee actively monitor
the number and seriousness of findings raised by the internal audit
department of the Company and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.

Detailed control guidelines have been formulated and made
available to all employees of the Company regarding handling
and dissemination of corporate data which is price sensitive.

Risk Management

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

The risk management of the Company is conducted by the
Audit and Review Committee and it assists the Board to fulfill its
oversight role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, among
others, the following areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the risk management process, system and internal control,
including whether the development of the Company’s
business is prudent and in compliance with the legal
requirements.
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The Company has a sound organisation system of internal control.
The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems. A semi-annual review of the effectiveness of the
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk managements and internal
control systems during the year has been conducted. Guided by
the Board and the Audit and Review Committee, the internal audit
department carries out inspection, supervision and evaluation for
internal controls of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect
of important control functions such as financial control, operation
control, compliance control and risk management, supervises and
timely rectifies internal control deficiencies and effectively controls
operating risks.

The objectives of internal control of the Company include ensuring
a legal and compliance management, asset safety, accuracy and
completeness of financial reports and related information in a
reasonable manner, enhancing its operating efficiency and results,
and promoting the implementation of strategy development. Due to
the intrinsic limitations of internal control system, only reasonable
guarantees can be provided for the abovementioned objectives.
In addition, the effectiveness of its internal control is subject
to change according to the changes of internal and external
environment and operations. Inspection and supervision system
is established for the Company. In case of shortcomings found,
the Company will adopt rectification measures immediately.

Audit and Review Committee

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal
controls and corporate governance issues and making relevant
recommendations to the Board. All of its members are independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei and
Mr. Li Tong Ning) and its current chairman is Mr. Jiang Hong Qi.
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The Audit and Review Committee has adopted revised set of terms
of reference effective from 30 August 2017, which is based on the
guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A copy of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit and Review Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit and Review Committee met three times in 2017. During
2017, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2017 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

External Auditors

In 2017, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 80 to 82 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen LLP for the audit work of the Company for
the financial year 2018. This resolution has been endorsed by the
Board and is subject to final approval and authorisation by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration and Review Committee

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Jiang
Hong Qi, Mr. Li Tong Ning and Mr. Zhang Hui (appointed on 11
December 2017) as members with Mr. Jiang Hong Qi as the
current chairman. All of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management,
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a Director, Director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, Director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2017
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2017. At that meeting, the committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2017.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee to
the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the Shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration package
include basic compensation (comprising of director’s fee) and
discretionary bonus without capping. In determining guidelines for
each compensating element, the Company refers to remuneration
surveys conducted by independent external consultants on
companies operating similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for 2017 by band is
set out below:
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of
the Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus
based on the Company’s results and the degree of diligence of
each of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2016 and
2017 are disclosed in Note V.39 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, an
independent non-executive Director, and comprises Mr. Wang
An, an executive Director and Mr. Li Tong Ning, an independent
non-executive Director, as members. The role of the committee
is to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors, evaluation of Board composition and the management of
Board succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed
by the Nomination Committee. These guidelines include appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethnics,
integrity and personal skills, and time commitments of members.
The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship including the
consideration of referrals and engagement of external recruitment
professional when necessary. The Nomination Committee met
twice in 2017 to discuss the Board structure, size and composition
and to evaluate the independence status of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below
is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a wide
range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee will review
the diversity of the Board and report to the Board the composition
of the Board members and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition
of the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 and 30 August 2017 have been
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the chief financial officer of the Company was
established. The Information Disclosure Review Committee is
responsible for the establishment of procedures to compile, verify
and report the Company’s financial and operational statistics
and other information as well as to supervise the drafting and
publication of periodic reports.
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The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
Shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available to
meet with the Shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major Shareholders
is through the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
Shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 25 May 2017 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all Shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial Shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives. A
wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is made
available to investors and the public through the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Announcements
of the interim and annual results are also available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

In 2017, the Company held 8 meetings and conference calls with
analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices. These
activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business and operations of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the Shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly
by questions at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be made to the Company by the same means.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Board shall give written
feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10 days
after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the Supervisory Committee to hold the
SGM in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory
Committee does not convene or preside over the general meeting.
The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the general meeting held by the Supervisory
Committee or Shareholders by themselves shall be born by the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

When the Company holds the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing
10 days before the SGM.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

With regard to the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website
at www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit A, 10/F, Winsan Tower,

98 Thomson Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@northandre.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Change in Constitutional Documents

With the approval of all the relevant PRC regulatory authorities
and the Board, the amendments to the Articles of Association
took effect on 1 November 2017 to reflect:

i) the amendments required for the application for allotment
and issue of A shares in the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

ii) change in business scope; and

i)  the share cancellation due to shares repurchases occurred
in June 2017.

Details of which are set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
October 2017. An updated version of the Articles of Association is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note VIl to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2017 are set out in Notes VIl to the Financial Statements
respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in pages 83 to 248 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5
of this annual report.

Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may face have
been disclosed in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of
this annual report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note VIl to the Financial Statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and
has gradually expanded markets in other countries. The sales
attributable to the top five customers of the Group accounted
for about 31.80% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to about 9.60%.

46  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IHFZEFRARHERATE

EZeMARE T LEFHLAEH
HE-T—+tF+_A=+—HILFEK
BERMBEHE -

FERYE

AEETERFLERBEERBHERT
REERCT  EMRB RAEER - ARF
MEARZEBXBFFRRUBREM
gt e

HE LR

R-ZB—tfE+=A=+—AXAFZH
B D A2 FE 5 RITI A B S R
G

E |

AEBEHEZ2—_FT—+F+=-_A=+—H1t
FEMEBERUERRAENRAFRFESIE
Z5¥2488F o

AFMBIRE

BELEMBFEARERENEEMEA
ERBINHNAFRFEIREFRLH o

BB B A TE 1

ARB R BEE S < T B R M AAREE R
AEREESRBEE | —HFHE - 1t
Sh o AEBEZ BB EREBEFBRERY
BMmARMEEN -

FEERRAMER

RARERAR - AEEWEME BIHE
XE™E - BRSBTS - BEZ
P T EMERNTS - RAEBRAK
BEFMHEREANEEZX431.80% °
AEERARATFPNHEERGAREEE
#H499.60% -°



Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 9.33% of total purchases for the year. The largest
supplier accounted for about 2.64% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.

None of the Directors, supervisors, their respective associates or
any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB35,800,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.10
per share for 2017. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Any insufficiency will
be distributed from the profit for distribution to the Shareholders
generated in or after 2008. The proposal to declare and pay
this final dividend will be submitted to the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 26 June 2018.
Final dividend for domestic shares will be distributed and paid
in Renminbi whereas dividend for H Shares will be declared in
Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend will
be paid to those Shareholders whose names appear on the
Companys’ register of members at the close of business on 10
July 2018 (the “Record Date”). To determine the identity of the
Shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend, the register of
holders of H Shares will be closed from 3 July 2018 to 10 July
2018 (both days inclusive) during which no transfer of H Shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of H Shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s H Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 22/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 June 2018. The
final dividend is expected to be distributed on 22 August 2018.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax
rate of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of
non-resident enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise
(including the Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident
enterprise shareholder shall withhold and remit corporate income
tax at 10% on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit
Earned by Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in
the Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant
to Corporate Income Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet
distributed before 1 January 2008 by foreign investment enterprise
when distributed to non-resident enterprise in or after 2008, will
be exempted from corporate income tax. Any dividend distributed
to non-resident enterprises from profit accumulated since 2008 by
foreign investment enterprise will be subject to corporate income
tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income
Tax Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa
[1993] No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-
resident individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses
from the shares issued in Hong Kong by non-foreign-invested
enterprise, individual income tax shall be withheld and remitted
by the withholding agent according to the domain of “interest,
dividends and bonuses”. The non-resident individual shareholders
of domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares
in Hong Kong, shall enjoy the taxation preferences in accordance
with the agreements between countries of their origins and China
and the regulation on taxation arrangement between the Mainland
and Hong Kong (Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as
provided by taxation agreement is generally at a rate of 10%.
In order to simplify the collection and management of taxation,
the individual income tax with a rate of 10% in general will be
withheld when dividend is paid by the domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong without
making applications. Where the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it
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will be handled according to the following requirements: (1) for
residents of countries which have entered into an agreement with
China in respect of a tax rate lower than 10%, the withholding
agent may apply for the relevant entitlements hereunder on their
behalf. Upon examination and approval by the competent tax
authorities, the additional amount of tax withheld will be refunded;
(2) for residents of countries which have entered into an agreement
with China in respect of a tax rate of 10% or more but less than
20%, the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at
the agreed tax rate when distributing dividends or bonuses, and
no application for approval is needed; (3) for residents of a country
or which has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC and
in any other circumstances, the withholding agent shall withhold
individual income tax at the tax rate of 20% when distributing
dividends and bonuses.

Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax
Law) for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold
and remit enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H shares of the Company registered
under the name of non-natural persons in the H share register
of members of the Company on 29 June 2018 (Friday), including
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other
groups and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
Shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will be
distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution
to the Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Pursuant to the
preferential policy of the Corporate Income Tax Law, the Company
currently proposes not to withhold 10% corporate income tax and
to distribute the final dividend to such non-resident enterprise
Shareholders at gross amount before corporate income tax. This
arrangement is conditional upon obtaining the final approval from
the relevant tax authority. If the Company cannot obtain final
approval from the relevant tax authorities regarding the exemption
of corporate income tax for non-resident enterprise Shareholders
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as mentioned above, the Company will distribute the final dividend
to such non-resident enterprise Shareholders after withholding
corporate income tax of 10% as required by the Corporate Income
Tax Law. Individual Shareholders who hold the H shares and
whose names appear on the register of members of H shares
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax
at a tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of the dividends from the
Company, which shall be withheld and remitted by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
Shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding
and remitting.

Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.22 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company during the reporting
period is set out in the statement of changes in Shareholders’
equity of the Group and the Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately RMB340,496,000 (2016:
approximately RMB347,050,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the Group incurred approximately
RMB10,672,000 mainly for expanding the production line,
renovation of plant and acquisition of equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period is set out in Note V.10 to the Financial
Statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the PRC laws and regulations which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During June 2017, the Company repurchased a total of 10,000,000
H shares with par value of RMB1.00 each on the Stock Exchange
at prices ranging from HK$4.34 to HK$5.33 per H share, for a
total consideration of HK$45,793,341 (including the consideration
for shares repurchase, stamp duty and commission).

Directors believe that through repurchase of shares, earnings per
share and asset value per share will increase, which in turn will
improve the Company’s capital structure and Shareholders’ equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

On 11 December 2017, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Shandong Jinye and Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
another equity transfer agreement with Shandong Jinye. Pursuant
to the agreements, Shandong Jinye agreed to acquire from each
of the Company and Andre Juice Co., Ltd., and the Company and
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. each agreed to sell, their respective 75%
and 25% equity interest in Binzhou Andre at a total consideration
of RMB84,800,000 (equivalent to HKD99,996,160). The sale of
100% equity interest in Binzhou Andre was completed on 21
December 2017. The Group no longer held any equity interest in
Binzhou Andre. Binzhou Andre ceased to be accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Company and its operating results were no longer
be consolidated into the financial statements of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint venture companies
have been made by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Significant Investments

Except as disclosed in Notes V.2, 8 and 9 to the Financial
Statements, no significant investment was held by the Group as
at 31 December 2017. The Group does not hold any significant
securities investments as part of its asset portfolio.

Proposed Issuance of A Shares

To satisfied the production and operation need of the Company
and to strike for further development, the Company proposed
financing in the domestic stock market in China.
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At the Board meeting on 30 August 2017, the Company proposed
to apply to the relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC for the
allotment and issuance of not more than 20,000,000 A Shares with
a nominal value of RMB1.00 each to natural persons, legal persons
and other institutional investors, who maintain A share accounts
with the Shanghai Stock Exchange (except those prohibited by
the PRC laws and regulations and other regulatory requirements
to which the Company is subject to), and apply to the Shanghai
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
A Shares.

The special resolution for issuance of A shares was approved by
the Shareholders in the special general meeting and class meetings
of the Company held on 1 November 2017. Such issuance is
subject to the approval by CSRC.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had an average
of 1,033 employees (2016: 1,057 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016 were approximately RMB54,795,000
and approximately RMB54,401,000, respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.39
and 40 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in Note V.18 to the Financial
Statements.
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Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
and Supervisors were as follows:

Executive Directors: Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Jiang Hong Qi, Li Wei and Li Tong Ning
non-executive
Directors:

Supervisors: Dai Li Ying, Wang Zhi Wu and Wang Chun

Tang

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All independent non-executive Directors are considered
as independent.
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Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

There were no material changes to the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the financial year, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the company).

Connected Transactions

Continuing connected transactions

[ On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
(“Andre Pectin”) for the sale of pomace and juice products
to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for the
sale of pomace and juice products for the three years
ending 31 December 2018. The framework agreement took
effect on 1 January 2016 and will expire on 31 December
2018. On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
with Andre Pectin to revise the annual caps for 2016, 2017
and 2018 under the framework agreement.
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As of the date of signing the above Supplemental
Agreement, Andre Pectin was an associate (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of Andre Group, which was a
substantial Shareholder and controlled 47.37% interest in
Andre Pectin. Andre Pectin was also an associate of Mr.
Wang An, who is a Director and indirectly controlled 47.37%
interest in Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre
Group. Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of
the Company and the sale of pomace and juice products by
the Company to Andre Pectin as contemplated under the
framework agreement and the Supplemental Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement and the revised annual
caps for 2016, 2017 and 2018 under the Supplemental
Agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Under the terms of the framework agreement, prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (i) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.
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The revised annual caps were determined based on the
internal estimation of the supply of raw materials in the PRC
market and the increase in production of pomace products
by the Group. The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB41,000,000. The actual sale of
pomace and other products by the Group to Andre Pectin
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB37,679,912
and are subject to annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules.

On 12 March 2015, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“President”), whereby
President agreed to purchase and the Company agreed
to supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) and provide related warehousing
service to President and determined the annual caps for
the three financial years ending 31 December 2017.

As at the date of signing the agreement, President held
16.29% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President was a substantial
Shareholder and thus was a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the product purchase framework agreement between the
Group and President constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company. As an applicable percentage
ratio in respect of the annual caps under the product
purchase framework agreement (other than the profit ratio)
exceeded 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
product purchase framework agreement constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and were subject to the requirements of reporting,
announcement, independent Shareholders’ approval and
annual review under the Listing Rules.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, the
prices of products to be supplied by the Company shall
be determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (i) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.
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“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.

Upon receipt of a sales order of the products, the sales
department of the Company and its designated persons
will ascertain the pricing offered by other independent
third parties, generally by way of, obtaining quotation for
a comparable volume and similar products from at least
two independent third parties via emails, fax or phone
and tenders by publishing tender notice via various media
resources (for instance, the local newspapers), and take
average of such quotation as the Market Price. They will
also refer to the Historical Price as recorded on the updated
transaction record sheet. Then they will take the higher of
the Market Price and the Historical Price as selling price
of the relevant sales order. The selling price of each major
category of products will be reviewed upon receipt of a
sales order of such products and be approved by the head
of the sales department of the Company.

The annual transaction caps were determined with reference
to the historical amount with President, the estimated
increase in the sales volume of the Company’s pear juice
concentrate to President and the expected increase in
the prevailing market prices of the Company’s products
due to the increase in the costs for the production of the
Company’s products, such as the raw materials and labour
costs. The annual caps for the three financial years ending
31 December 2017 are RMB86,000,000, RMB95,000,000
and RMB105,000,000 respectively.
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The actual sale of products and warehousing services
provided by the Group to President for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB13,438,370 and are subject to
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the previous product purchase framework agreement
dated 12 March 2015 expired on 31 December 2017, the
Company and President agreed to renew the transaction
terms, and entered into the president product purchase
framework agreement on 11 December 2017 (the “Renewal
Agreement”), whereby President agreed to purchase and
the Company agreed to supply the Company’s products
(including but not limited to different kinds of concentrated
juice), to regulate such product purchase between the
Group and President for the period commenced on 1
January 2018 and expiring on 31 December 2018.

Under the Renewal Agreement, prices of products to be
supplied by the Company shall be determined according
to the bidding principle by reference to the market price.
Upon receipt of a sales order of the products, the sales
department of the Company and its designated persons
are mainly responsible for reviewing the prices offered by
other independent third parties, generally by way of, (1)
referring to the comparable transactions (if any) in relation to
supplying such products to independent third parties by the
Company during the same period; (2) obtaining quotations
from at least two independent third parties via emails, fax
or phone or tenders by publishing tender notice via various
media resources (for instance, the local newspapers); or
(3) obtaining market prices from various independent
industry information vendors such as industry websites and
participating in activities or meetings organised by industry
organisations to determine the market price. The sales
department of the Company is responsible for proposing
the price, which will be reviewed by the head in charge
of the sales department and subject to the final approval
by the president office to ensure that the price is fair and
reasonable and determined on normal commercial terms.

The sales department of the Company will update the
relevant information from time to time according to the
procurement demand from President and will continue to
monitor the market price to ensure that each transaction
is conducted in accordance with the pricing policy set
out above.
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The annual cap of transaction under the Renewal Agreement
was set based on the historical transaction amounts with
President and the expected increase in the prevailing
market prices due to increase in the costs of production
of the Company’s products, such as the raw materials
and labor costs. For the year ending 31 December 2018,
the annual cap will be RMB21,000,000. For further details
regarding the Renewal Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2017.

On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Yantai Hengtong Thermoelectricity Co.,
Ltd.*({d & F @R EE A R A 7))(“Yantai Hengtong”), pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to purchase and Yantai
Hengtong has agreed to supply products (including but
not limited to electricity and steam) to regulate the product
purchase between the Group and Yantai Hengtong for the
three years ending 31 December 2018.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Yantai Hengtong
is wholly owned by Andre Group, a substantial Shareholder.
Yantai Hengtong is an associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Andre Group and is also a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement between the Company and Yantai Hengtong
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio) for the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years ending 31
December 2018 for the continuing connected transactions
under the framework agreement are more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, in accordance with the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions under the framework
agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules
and are exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement. The Company has complied with
the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Prices of products to be purchased by the Group shall
be determined according to the Market Price (as defined
below).

For identification purpose only
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“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following order: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

The proposed annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions have been determined based on (i) the
estimated amount of transactions involved with reference
to the historical transaction volume; and (i) the estimated
demand by the Group on Yantai Hengtong’s products
with reference to the prospective consumption of such
products by the manufacturing workshops of the Group
at full production capacity. The annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB39,000,000. The
actual purchase for the year ended 31 December 2017
was RMB18,387,280 and are subject to annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company agreed
to provide services for installation for various kinds of
constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ending 31 December
2018.
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As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping
Company was wholly-owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the
wife of Mr. Wang An who is an executive Director and a
substantial Shareholder. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping
Company was an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus
was a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the construction and
installation services framework agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
Since the applicable percentage ratios for the highest
proposed annual cap for each of the three years ending 31
December 2018 for the continuing connected transactions
under the construction and installation services framework
agreement were more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
continuing connected transactions under the construction
and installation services framework agreement were only
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules and were exempted
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.

Prices of services to be provided to the Company shall be
determined according to the Market Price.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with
the following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged
by independent third parties under ordinary course of
business for the provision of the same type of services
at the providing places or its nearby regions; or (2) the
prevailing price being charged by independent third parties
under ordinary course of business for the provision of the
same type of services in the PRC.

The annual cap under the construction and installation
services framework agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB10,000,000. The
actual consumption of service by the Group from Xinping
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB29,388 and is subject to annual review requirement
under the Listing Rules.

Prices of the products to be supplied by the Company
shall be determined according to the bidding principle by
reference to the market price.
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions
of the Group, the Company’s internal audit has reviewed
the relevant transactions and internal control procedures,
and provided the findings to the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the related agreements and transactions
contemplated thereunder and confirmed that these
transactions:

(i) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group;

(i) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties;

(ifi) were entered into in accordance with the terms
of the respective agreements and were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole;

(iv) of which the aggregate annual amount were within
the relevant annual caps (if any);

(v) have been conducted in accordance with the
pricing policies or mechanisms under the framework
agreement, including the pricing range, the process
for determining the prices; and

(vi) for which the Group’s internal control procedures are
adequate and effective to ensure that transactions
are so conducted.

KPMG Huazhen LLP, the Company’s auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG
Huazhen LLP have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note X to
the Financial Statements. Apart from the items disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related party
transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2017.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were (a) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the directors of the Company as
referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Name of Directors

EEna

Wang An
(Note 1)
IR(ME 1)

Wang Yanhui
(Note )
THERE (M)

Zhang Hui
(Note 5)
RESLLE(HL0)

Liu Tsung-Yi
fRE

Class of
Shares

&R

Domestic
Non-
circulating
Foreign
Shares

BRFERA
MER

Domestic
Shares

MER

Domestic
Shares
&R

Domestic
Shares

ME K

H Shares
Hi%

Number of
Shares Held
it R

46,351,961 (1)
46,351,961(%)

54,658,540 (L)
54,658,540(K)

20,000,000 ()
20,000,000(%)

20,000,000 (L)
20,000,000(%)

195,400 (L)
195,400( %)

Capacity
0]

Interest of controlled
corporation

R EEER
(PzE2)

Interest of controlled
corporation

FEHEEER
(M3t2)

Interest of controlled

corporations (Note 4)
R EERER (M)

Interest of controlled

corporations (Note 6)
R ABER (Wi6)

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Type of
Interest

RaER

Personal
fAA

Personal
fEA

Personal

A

Personal
fEA

Personal

A

Report of Directors
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Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
WiEERER
HEESL

18.50% (L)(&)

21.82% (L)(K)

7.98% (L)(&)

7.98% (L)(&)

0.18% (L)(&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

12.95% (L)(k)

15.27% ()(K)

5.59% (L)(&)

5.59% (L(&)

0.05% ((&)
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Notes: Msx -

The letter “L” denotes a long position. [RIRTRE °

(1)

As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled
(@) 90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited,
which held 46,351,961 Domestic Non-circulating Foreign Shares,
representing 12.95% interest in the total issued share capital
of the Company; (b) 90% interest in Shandong Andre Group
Co., Ltd* (ILRZEFIEEARAREF), which held 54,658,540
Domestic Shares, representing 15.27% interest in the total issued
share capital of the Company.

M

R_TE—+tE+-_A=+—H0 &=
F &5 & - 2%l 7 (a) China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited <2 90%
B QA FEE 46,351,961 835 A
FEMBINERR - (AR RB BITERA
12.95% : (b) IR LZEFEBBRA G
Z90% MR - EFFH54,658,5400K A
B - AR FEEITARAE15.27% °

2 Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Shares @) F % % 4 F & B = % China Pingan
through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited Investment Holdings Limited# (L 3 %
and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILERZEFEBEFRAF]) . EHNEBBR AT EXTREIEES

bt tEss -

) As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang Yanhui, a Director, held 20% ©) R-_EBE—++HF+—-_A=+—H8 &=
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) TwmELt BERASELTEED

(HEREZERERL (BRA#)), which held 20,000,000 DEBRAE)Z20% % Hixh
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share 20,000,000/ A& * 1§48 Q T2 T
capital of the Company. 4ENE AR5 .59% o

(4) Mr. Wang Yanhui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic (4) TuEBAsEEBEBENAEBmLIRED
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre DNERASE) 7 EF MR IEEA LR
(Limited Partnership) (A& E LR EF L (BRER) ) . BReRES -

(5) As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang Hui, a Director, held 20% () R-ZE—+E+-A=+—08  2=%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) Bt BERSmREER LR

(REeEZ®RERL (BRAE%)), which held 20,000,000 A8) Y 20%RELS + H1%7520,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share BRERR  ERD T BT8RN
capital of the Company. 5.59% -

(6) Mr. Zhang Hui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic ®) EIBLEARBEBERAL BTIREH

*

Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B L& ERL (BRER) ) .

For identification purpose only
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of
Shareholders

BRI

China Pingan Investment

Holdings Limited

Shandong Andre Group

Co., Ltd*

(LRZEMEEERAR)

Donghua Fruit Industry

Co., Ltd.

Uni-President Enterprises

Corp.

F-LXBROARAR

*

Class of
Shares

R ER

Domestic
Non-circulating
Foreign Shares

SRFERB
HNER

Domestic Shares

MEK

Domestic
Non-circulating
Foreign Shares

SRFERB
HER

Domestic Shares
NER

H Shares
Hi&

For identification purpose only

Number of
Shares Held
iR 8E

46,351,961 (L)
(Note 1)

46,351,961(R)
(Mgt 1)

54,658,540 (L)
(Note 2)
54,658,540( &)
(M 2)

65,779,459 (L)
(Note 3)

65,779,459 &)
(M 3)

63,746,040 (L)
(Note 4)
63,746,040(%)
(i3t 4)

237,000 (L)
237,000(%&)

Capacity
5

Beneficial owner

BERBBA

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Beneficial owner

BERBBA

Interests of controlled

corporations
(Note 5)

R AR
(Fitsx 8)

Beneficial owner

Report of Directors
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FERRRAMALIRELFK
7  BERMRAHEEPHER R
RE

BEEMHA R-_T—tF+-_HA=1+—
B BRARBES - EERITHARES -
EARB 2B - EXRO REEZEPHE
BARBCEZ RMEHRPDFEXVEFE2 K3
DEZ MEMARE » RELAXRAR
EHFMAEGIDFEIBHRIRERFE
ZERMP s MAR 2 IRR R EMA
T

Approximate

Percentage of Approximate

Non-circulating Percentage of

Shares/ Total Share

Type of H Shares Capital

Interest otk ER iEkE

ERER HEESL ast

Corporate 18.50% (L)(K) 12.95% ()(K)
NG

Corporate 21.82% ()(K) 15.27% ()(K)
NG

Corporate 26.26% (L)( &) 18.37% (J(K)
NG

Corporate 25.44% (L)(K) 17.81% ()(R)
A

Corporate 0.22% (L)(K) 0.07% (LK)
NG

Y EHEE
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Name of
Shareholders

BERE

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
SHmERAer

Hongan International
Investment Co. Ltd.

ARBRREBRAT

Zhang Shaoxia

7] =

RAE

Wang Meng
%

68  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Class of Shares

LAvd)

H Shares
Hi&

Domestic Non-
circulating
Foreign Shares

BRFERBIMER

H Shares

Hik

Domestic Non-
circulating Foreign
Shares

BRFTENER

Domestic Shares

Domestic Non-
circulating Foreign
Shares

BRFRBINER

H Shares
Hix

Number of
Shares Held
RS E

21,340,000 ()
21,340,000(&)
65,779,459 (L)
65,779,450 &)
17,222,880 (1)
17,222,880( &)
46,351,961 (1)

46,351,961(%)

54,658,540 (L)
54,658,540(%)

65,779,459 (L)
65,779,450(&)

17,222,880 (1)
17,222,880( &)

Capacity
EL]

Beneficial owner

EEHEAA

Interest of controlled
corporations
RESEEER

Beneficial owner
ERBEBA

Interest of spouse
R BiEe
(Bx7)

Interest of spouse
[
(KE7)

Interest of controlled
corporations
(Note 8)

R AR ER
(Mt 8)

Interest of controlled
corporations
(Note 9)

REREEER
R

REEFLREFRTROBRIF

Type of
Interest

RRER
Corporate

B

Corporate
R

Corporate

A

Personal
A

Personal
fHA

Personal

A

Personal
fHA

Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
HiEERER
HEESL

19.86% (L)(&)

26.26% (L)(K)

16.03% ()(&)

18.50% ((K)

21.82% ()(&)

26.26% (L)(K)

16.03% ((&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

596% ()(&)

18.37% (L)(R)

481% ()(K)

12.95% ((K)

15.27% ((k)

18.37% (L)(R)

481% ()(K)



Name of

Shareholders Class of Shares

Bt Bin%ER

Yantai Xingan Domestic
Investment Centre Shares

(Limited Partnership) NER
ReRERERL(EREE)

Tiandi Win-Win Investment  H Shares
Management Co., Hix
Limited

Shenzhen Tiandi Win-Win -~ H Shares
Investment Management  Hf%

Co., Limited

AT AUARREER
BRAT]

Tiandi Yihao Beverage H Shares
Co., Limited Hik

A ERARBD AR

Chen Sheng H Shares
RE Hi&

Number of
Shares Held
iR E

20,000,000 (L)
20,000,000( %)

1,000,000 (L)
(Note 10)
11,000,000(&)
(H#H10)

1,000,000 (L)
(Note 10)
11,000,000(&)
(WzE10)

11,000,000 (L)
(Note 10)
11,000,000(f)
(B#10)

1,000,000 (L)
(Note 10)
11,000,000(&)
(WzE10)

Capacity
EL]

Beneficial Owner
EnlEBA

Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled
corporations
ZEH R ER

Interest of controlled
corporations

SEHEEES

Interest of controlled
corporations
REHEEER

Report of Directors
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Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating

Shares/
Type of H Shares
Interest folhdkiER,
BaEE HEEES )
Corporate 7.98% (L)(K)
AF]
Corporate 10.24% ()(&)
N
Corporate 10.24% ()(&)
N
Corporate 10.24% (&)
N
Personal 10.24% (V(&)
A

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

5.59% (L)(&)

3.07% ((F)

3.07% (J(F)

3.07% ((F)

3.07% (U(R)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Non-circulating Foreign Shares through his 90% interest
in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd.* (ILFRZEF|SBBRAT) .

The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Non-circulating Foreign
Shares was directly held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd..
Based on the information provided by Donghua Fruit Industry
Co., Ltd., Hongan International Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms.
Wang Meng were deemed to be interested in these 65,779,459
Domestic Non-circulating Foreign Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
(Hm—ERHOERAR),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (FR&&—DEBRRAERA
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%¥BBRAF]), which
held 21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. (Fi—1EKMHAMRAR]) was deemed to be interested in
such 63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic
Shares were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-
President Enterprises Corp. (#i— 1R HAEBR AT, of which
42,418,360 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
11.85% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were
held directly by Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
(g — P ERMERAT) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 5.96% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, were held directly by Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—C%ARAF)

For identification purpose only
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M

EF TSk LE BFEBHERChina
Pingan Investment Holdings LimitedZ
90% #E 25 1M 4R AR VEVE B UL HE A FERBHD
B -

BEITRELE  FBEBERNURZER
SEARRF Z90% M 5 i AR E A
HEAE s -

65,779,459 B NIERMINERK B T)
FiDonghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. B #
4 - #2#Donghua Fruit Industry Co.,
Lid. IREMEEL - SARBIBREEERA
BIMEBH R TR R IEAF 165,779,459
IR FERBINE Bk am o

63,746,040k N ERTKEBA — 1
& BRRQE 2 IEEEH B QT U
President China Holdings Ltd.%&@H
MEZEANBARKER —ERR
BRAR(EHEBF42,418360 A E
BI)REBEMG—CEARAR(ERFH
21,327,680l NE ) HE ©

RECGES REEIEODEXVE - Fi—10
R AR RHEAR ERF 563,746,040
B A& BY #E & o 7% 68,746,040 & A
BERBEF—CEROARARZ —&E
BEEENEESAE - EF42,418,360
BAER AR BEBEITRRKRALY
11.85% @ A SG—RERRARA
BIEEREA  WAN21,327,680AE
f& - (AARREIE BITRRALS5.96% -
HEMG—CEERAREERHA -

Y OERES



(10)

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd..

46,351,961 Domestic Non-circulating Foreign Shares and
54,658,540 Domestic Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the
husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, and therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia
was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Non-circulating Foreign Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang
Meng was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
17,222,880 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

The long position in 11,000,000 H Shares was held by Shenzhen
Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management Co., Limited (731171 X
HEREEE AR AT, awholly-owned subsidiary of Tiandi Yihao
Beverage Co., Limited (RihZ5E VKR 5B R A F]), through its
wholly-owned subsidiary Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management
Co., Limited. Mr. Chen Sheng was deemed to be interested
in these H Shares through his 76.66% interest in Tiandi Yihao

Beverage Co., Limited (K= 5% RN A IR A 7).

(10)
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I H & 5 & Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. Bz A °

FTRAEE(CRBEXLTZRBIFA
46,351,961 IR 35 M FE R BN E IR &
54,658,540k N ERR - FtRBEL T
WAREEA LA R -

T B & £+ @ # ¥ A Donghua Fruit
Industry Co., Ltd.Z100%E 1T -
ffiDonghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.#4&
65,779,469 AFERBINE R - Elt
FHRTHRERA LR D ER -

THRTERBERIRERREGRA
A2 HTRA  AXBREREAR
RREFFF17,222,880MH - E It EH#5
REHAREH A UL O -

11,000,000% HA% & & £ K 30 = 5% ok
BRHBERARZZEN B RQBRINT
AMEFGREEBERARBEBRBES
E BB A B Tiandi Win-Win Investment
Management Co., Limited#H - &4
EAEFBENKMSHRBFREHERA
7276.66% 2 #E % MR AR VEREA L HAR
W o
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Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling Shareholder or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business which competes or may compete with the businesses
of the Group or has or may have any other conflicts of the interest
with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Practices and Procedures of the Board

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard was sent to
each Director two months before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s 2017 annual results, with a reminder
that the Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of
the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to notify
the chairman of the Board and receive a dated acknowledgement
in writing before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the
Company and, in the case of the chairman of the Board himself,
he must notify the chairman of the Audit Committee and receive
a dated acknowledgement in writing before any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Review Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
primary duties of the Audit and Review Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group, ensuring compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of
the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and Review Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Jiang Hong Qi, who is the chairman of the Audit and Review
Committee, Li Wei and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Audit and Review
Committee held three meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen LLP shall retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained
unchanged.

By Order of the Board

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

*
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To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, has
conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle, and
has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence
to protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and
in the interests of its Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors, audited
financial statements and the dividend to be proposed by the Board
for presentation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We
are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and to
work in accordance with the Articles of Association. The operation
is becoming more regulated and the internal control is constantly
improved. The transactions between the Company and connected
parties are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
under fair and reasonable price.

*

For identification purpose only

74 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. A&t AR EFRTROERL T

FR -

REEh ZEMNABRN AR AREES
(IXEFEg NBREMER ZRRQA
ERMRTE  REETRE  BERRE
sl gEARR NG - BEBT  AERE
B BPEERRIE -

EAFEEAREETEHARFNLE LE
RABETEESER  UNEEFSRHESE
BEMEZRNER  HARREEENERX
RRRABRERENEBZEREMRIA
RARER  REMHERRNGS - #17
TEREBRNEE -

AEFERABMYAEEFEHRET
ARBETAFASHEESHE « LEH
HB B IRE AR BT TR - RAKA
AEEEME  THARRENSAES
AB - BREFHERA  LExHE
B o B BUMIAR T AR R BT
Wig - AHERARNSRERSEIE -
BEBARE - NEEHHERERE -
ARFEBECER SBBEFARRT)
BREEAEZ BREDTAEEREN
7o

Y B



Report of the Supervisory Committee

Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and
senior management staff had been found to have abused their
authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed
upon the interests of its Shareholders and employees. None of
them was found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2017 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Dai Li Ying

28 March 2018

*
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Auditors’ Report
BirHE

KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No.1801766

Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“Andre”), which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2017, the consolidated and company income statements, the
consolidated and company cash flow statements, the consolidated
and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company
financial position of Andre as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated and company financial performance and cash flows
of Andre for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants (“CSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of Andre in accordance
with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

76  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it A ZEFRTROERLD T

EEFERETE1801766%

Belt A ZEBIRARMDEBR AT ZER
g

FiER

BT TREMA SIS ZEF R
MABERAR (AT EHE EZMAF]) I
®EK - BIE2017F12831HNAHEE
NAEBEBER  2017EEHNEHEEA
AFER  AHEEARBESRER &
B R B A B % 51 M 25 4 B 3% LA X AR A B 7
wFEMIEE o

HBMRE BB RREMBERNS
A $22 BR A 22 A R L0 (B B IR 2P AB e A 1 3
SR (AT EB Eesr R ) A3E
EHRE - R R T ZEFAR2017F12
RA31BME Bt R AR B AK2017
FEMNEHETARKEEXNRMR SR

= °

EREHERNHER

TR IR B & SHAn At 2R (JA T
[ JAHER D BB ERIT T ES TIE
Frr SO M e s MG HREH
BRI E—THR T RAEELERT
MEME - RRPEEM St B EEET
8 FAIBLIRLZENRR - LET TR
FERTHAMNEMET - LFIAEE - R
ERNEIRRERD C BEM 0 REXR
ERTR AR T ER -



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to the significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates on Note lIl.9 and Note V.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2017, the gross trade receivables of Andre
and its subsidiaries (“Andre Group”) and Andre amounted to
RMB197,620,518 and RMB126,662,762, respectively, against
which provisions for doubtful debts of RMB5,066,262 and
RMB5,066,262 were recorded respectively.

Management assesses impairment of trade receivables on
an individual basis and on a collective basis. Where the
impairment of trade receivables is assessed on an individual
basis, management considers the debtor’s financial position,
creditworthiness, past due status and other customer-specific
conditions. Where the impairment of trade receivables is
assessed on a collective basis, management determines the
amount of impairment based on the historical loss experience
of trade receivables with different past due status adjusted
by observable factors to reflect current economic conditions.
The factors noted above all involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing
the recoverability of trade receivables and because the
assessment of impairment of trade receivables requires the
exercise of significant management judgement.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s key financial reporting internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection and the
assessment of impairment of trade receivables;

° assessing whether items in the trade receivables ageing
report were classified within the appropriate ageing
bracket by comparing a sample of individual items with
underlying acknowledgement of receipt or bill of lading
for export sales;

° obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
assessment about the recoverability of receivables that are
individually significant and evaluating the reasonableness of
management judgement relating to provision for doubtful
debts by examining underlying documentation, which
included evidence of the debtors’ financial condition,
correspondence with the debtors, the debtors’ adherence
to agreed repayment schedules, the ageing of overdue
balances, historical repayment records and repayments
after the reporting date;

° assessing the reasonableness of assumptions and
estimates made by Andre Group for the provision
for doubtful debts calculated based on a collective
assessment by performing a retrospective analysis
on actual bad debt rate of similar receivables group,
adjusted by the credit risk characteristics and observable
factors relating to the receivables group in concern, and
examining Andre Group’s provision with reference to the
Group’s policy for collective assessment;

° challenging management’s judgment in determining
the recoverable amount of individual trade receivable
balances which were overdue at the reporting date by
comparing, on a sample basis, the settlement of the
overdue balances after the reporting date with related
underlying documents including bank statements.
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Other Information

Andre’s management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in 2017
annual report of Andre, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of such internal control
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate Andre or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
Andre’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Andre’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Andre to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Andre Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Huazhen LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Ye Qing

Lau Kin Chun
Beijing, China

28 March 2018
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ASSETS BE
Current assets: MBEE :
Cash at bank and on hand E¥Ee
Financial assets at fair value UNAnEErEE
through profit or loss HEHAEH
BEReREE
Bills receivable e RIE
Accounts receivable A€
Prepayments (¢
Other receivables H fth R UK
Inventories FE
Other current assets HAitREN A E
Total current assets MBEEAF
Non-current assets: FERBNEE -
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HECREE
Fixed assets EE&E
Construction in progress FREIRE
Intangible assets BREE
Goodwill Bl
Total non-current assets ERBEEST
Total assets BEBR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2017412 A31H

(2FHE - AR¥T)

2017 2016
Note B sE 20175 20164
V.1 G 79,398,474 110,178,784
V.2 2 - 7,833,191
V.3 3 9,003,656 2,707,800
V.4 T4 192,554,256 158,815,684
V.5 -5 3,081,104 3,564,813
V.6 6 42,047,494 750,309
V.7 7 755,014,086 792,215,972
V.8 -8 51,348,620 84,553,872
1,132,447,690  1,160,620,425

V.9 9 - 21,314,443
V.10 F 10 738,422,507 833,083,021
V.11 11 121,660 113,342
V.12 12 89,228,391 110,131,782
V.13 T 13 5,586,976 5,586,976
833,359,534 970,229,564

1,965,807,224

2,130,849,989

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form
statements.

part of these financial
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2017412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

LIABILITIES AND ERMBRRES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities: mEEE
Short-term loans 55 HAfE X
Accounts payable SRR
Advances from customers TaUk IR
Employee benefits payable JRE {1 B8 I 5 B
Taxes payable ERH B
Interest payable FERTFILE
Other payables HAhFETRR

Total current liabilities mEBEAE

Non-current liabilities: FERBEE
Long-term payables REAFETR
Deferred income EEW

Total non-current liabilities ERBABET

Total liabilities BEEH

Note

V.16
V.7

V.18
V.19

V.21

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the Company are set out in Note V.20.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

P aE

h 16
17

h 18
A 19

h 21

2017 2016
20175 20164
170,000,000 340,000,000
86,369,615 65,327,226
2,399,933 1,220,270
21,275,667 21,574,064
11,003,249 31,596,332
643,783 716,104
11,802,159 40,793,761
303,494,406 501,227,757
840,584 803,552

- 3,127,500

840,584 3,931,052
304,334,990 505,158,809

TIE N B8 H E F 248 A MM 15 < Mt 5
RAMBEHRROERED - BARNAR
AR B ZFHIFEFENMER ~ 20



LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(cont'd)

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital

Capital reserve

Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve

Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

RIEMERER (W)

PR
A
BALRTE
Hfp#r e
BHAE

RDEHE

PR A &

BEMRRER R

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note

V.22
V.23
V.24
V.25
V.26

201712 A31H

(2FHE - AR¥T)

2017

i 20174
22 358,000,000
23 17,291,715
T 24 -
f 25 107,111,132
f 26 1,179,069,387

2016
20164

368,000,000
47,035,755
2,041,764
105,794,859
1,102,818,802

1,661,472,234

1,625,691,180

1,965,807,224

2,130,849,989

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
LI HRRER2018F3 A28 A EEF 2 Ht /& -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EERRA Tz FESHIEREA e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SERBREA e

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form

statements.

(RARIEE)

part of these financial
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2017412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

Note
ASSETS BE
Current assets: MENEE
Cash at bank and on hand BEMES XV.1
Bills receivable e E &
Accounts receivable JFE 5 BR 3R XV.2
Prepayments SEURE Q] XV.3
Dividends receivable FEU AR F
Other receivables H ek XV.4
Inventories FE XV.5
Other current assets HtnsEE XV.6
Total current assets MEBEAR
Non-current assets: FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S FIEE XV.7
Long-term equity investments RERERE XV.8
Fixed assets BEE&E XV.9
Intangible assets B EE XV.10
Total non-current assets ERBEEA
Total assets BESG

2017 2016
Bt 20174 20165
+h 1 57,533,223 84,468,206
6,026,975 2,707,800

+H 2 121,596,500 134,781,171
+# -3 594,527 503,997
53,699,658 60,572,440

+h 4 225,253,334 333,921,214
+H 5 131,916,525 130,249,238
+# -6 41,289,336 73,526,044
637,910,078 820,730,110

+H -7 - 21,314,443
+7 -8 434,907,677 570,402,700
+H 9 166,825,696 152,884,171
+% 10 31,274,167 32,268,451
633,007,540 776,869,765

1,270,917,618

1,597,599,875

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial
statements.
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LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Interest payable
Other payables

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form

statements.

REENERER

RBAE
FHMER
FERTERAX
FRURIR
JREASF BB T 5 P
BB E
AN
Hi AR

Note

XV.12
XV.13

XV.14

XV.15

part of these financial

P aE

+H
+5

gl

+h

~ 12
+ 13

14

15

Balance Sheet

EEREX

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201712 A31H

(2FHE - AR¥T)

2017 2016
20175 20164
170,000,000 340,000,000
35,588,166 224,580,978
1,520,786 923,749
2,674,709 2,927,239
233,581 273,788
643,783 716,104
211,114,835 131,488,177
421,775,860 700,910,035

- 525,000
______________ - 525000
421,775,860 701,435,035
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2017412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

2017 2016
Note BiE 20174 20164
LIABILITIES AND AAMBRER ()
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(cont'd)
Shareholders’ equity: PR
Share capital ey V.22 22 358,000,000 368,000,000
Capital reserve VN XV.16  +hH 16 43,534,413 73,278,453
Other comprehensive income Hinkr s M= - 2,041,764
Surplus reserve Vol YN XVi7  +&H 17 107,111,132 105,794,859
Retained earnings RO BEFHE 340,496,213 347,049,764
Total shareholders’ equity MR ER AT 849,141,758 896,164,840
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity BENMRRERET 1,270,917,618  1,597,599,875
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
LTS 3RER ER2018F3 A28 A EE ST ik f o
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA Tz FESHIEEEA: T Sy
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
EEIHREAEEA : EXA (REIEE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial TSR 98B &= 248 B M B 53R R i 5
statements. R R IR VAR ER D o
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Consolidated Income Statement

| Operating income — EERA
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERA
Taxes and surcharges B RKm
Selling and distribution expenses HEER
General and administrative expenses EEER
Financial expenses HSER
Impairment losses BERBRAK
Add: Gains/(losses) from changes in fair in: DREERKRS
value (B%)
Investment income REWE
Losses from asset disposals BERBRX
Other Income Hfes
lll Operating profit = HENE
Add: Non-operating income i EEINEA
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEITI
IV Profit before taxation m - MEBeR
Less: Income tax expenses B TR ER
V' Net profit for the year and net profit I FHERGERE AT
attributable to shareholders of PR SR A5 A

the Company

Vv

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 7~ ~ &R NENE % BE

VIl Total comprehensive income for the year — + ~ AURBEREBENE
and total comprehensive income ARBRRNGE e
attributable to shareholders
of the Company

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in
note XIlI.

CRiRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20174 E

(RBEEN - ARKT)

2017 2016
Note B s 20175 20164
V27T w27 901,041,170 875,197,112
V27T Em 27 609,779,623 631,193,325
V28 T 28 15,550,682 10,938,187
V29 29 69,877,455 72,982,456
V30 &30 54,940,092 53,907,760
V3l & 31 20,936,758 94,297
V32 32 36,916,073 6,428,704
V33 T 33 79,304 (79,304)
V34  h 34 2,802,323 4,527,591

(1,522,774) (2,109,850)
V35 F 35 1,474,788 -
V42 h 42 95,874,128 101,990,820
V36 T 36 514,069 21,126,644
V37 & 37 285,696 30,382

96,102,501 123,087,082
V38 T 38 135,643 1,400,520

95,966,858 121,686,562
V24 T 24 (2,041,764) 1,863,408

93,925,094 123,549,970

TIE P 98 H £ F 248 H 1Y I 5 M3 Mt 7
RAFHEBRROEXTD - LEBRER
AIREREEME - BN T AR BRRA
MEFHE - CERMET= -
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Consolidated Income Statement

B O RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20174 &

(£FEE - AR T)

VIll Earnings per share: N - Bk

(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

2017 2016
Note  PizE 20174 20165
VA E 4 0.265 0.325
2SI R 0.265 0.325

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

IR/ EN2018F3 A28 BEEF g A -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EERRA = FESHIEREA: I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEHEBEEEA e (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to share holders’ of the
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in
note XIlI.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

TIE P 98 H £ F 248 H 1Y W 15 M3 Mt 5
RAFHEBRROEXTLD - LEBRERQ
AIRREENE - BN T AR BRRA
MEFHE - CERMET= -



Income Statement

A=

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20174 E

(RBEEN - ARKT)

2017 2016

Note  PizE 20174 20164

| Operating income — EERA XV.18 +H& 18 576,704,076 668,906,066
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERA Xv.18 +3& 18 503,741,936 622,259,341
Taxes and surcharges B KB 2,724,943 2,562,075

Selling and distribution expenses HEBH 35,797,439 45,858,503
General and administrative expenses EEER 15,967,654 15,679,018
Financial expenses B%ER XV19 +H 19 18,267,418 1,076,176
Impairment losses BERERK 31,196,465 6,374,976

Add: Investment income o wEWE XV.20 +& 20 43,061,008 7,006,958
Losses from asset disposals BERERRX (16,788) (816,510)

Other income Hilzs 721,000 -

Il Operating profit/(loss) = BEHNE/(B8) 12,773,441 (18,713,575)
Add: Non-operating income JIIEE=ELIVON 489,281 18,448,405
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIT 100,000 -

IV Profit/(loss) before income tax m - FE/ (BB 8 13,162,722 (265,170)
Less: Income tax expenses B TR ER Xv.2i +3 - 21 - =

V' Net profit/(loss) for the year 1 FFE/(B8) 13,162,722 (265,170)
VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax 75 ~ &R A NENE %38 (2,041,764) 1,863,408
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year £ * &G W& B 5 11,120,958 1,598,238

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
IR ERER2018F3 A28 A EEF 2 Ht /# -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FEERERA Tz FESHIEREA I %=
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BIRIBEEA F& (RRIEE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial TSR FE I8 B E 248 B M I 53k K i 5
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the BABBEHREROEKT S - REBREA
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in AIREREFEFE - BN TARRAREAK
note Xill. NS - CERMET= -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20174 E
(£FEE - AR T)

| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods and
rendering of services
Refund of taxes

Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees
Payments of various taxes

Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets

Investment returns received

Net proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of a subsidiary and a
joint venture

Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of
financial assets

Payments for acquisition of
fixed assets and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing activities

RETPELNRERE

HEAM  RESHRINRS

WEIpHERE
WEEHRLSEDARNES

RERPREMANG

BEAM  BXSBANRS
SRBTARABRIXN0R S
XNHEERE
XEBEELEHARNAE

KRR/

RERPELNREREFE

~  RERDELNRAEAE

Ko REERIIMES

REREREMEEINR S
REETEEMEENASEE

RETARREELRRE
EimHRe

BEEHEREEDARNES

REEBREMANG

RESREEXNRS

BEETAEMEVAER
B e

RARGR SR/t

RERHELNATREFR

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial

statements.
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V.43 (1)

V.43 2)

V.44 (1)

V.44 (2)3)
V.43 (3)

(1,936,292,488)

(12,288,219)

2017 2016
Note Bzt 20175 20164
944,227,142  925769,833

79,667,181 87,480,916

T 43(1) 7,626,658 9,748,288
1,031,520,981  1,022,999,037

(685,924,723)  (666,442,043)

(54,678,498)  (51,197,774)

(46,858,895)  (40,318,065)

T 43(2)  (108,302,828)  (70,137,946)
(895,764,944)  (828,095,828)

oM 135756087 194903209
1,989,604,982  1,784,927,302

5,718,800 4,527,591

23,536 1,481,140

T 44Q3) 44,444,699 28,654,071

T 430) 425,062 1,270,409
2,040,217,079  1,820,860,513

(1,752,239,797)

(44,629,367)

(1,948,580,707)

(1,796,869,164)

91,636,372

23,991,349

HIE R E I8 E E 248 H By I 15 Mk Mt &

RAFEHRROEKRED D



Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of borrowings

Payments for dividends

Payments for interest

Payments for purchase of own shares

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate 74 »

changes on cash and cash equivalents

V' Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

o
/\

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RELPELNAERE

REERERNR S
BEEMREERDARANES

SRR AANG

EREFX MRS

DEBRMZ RS

EFFEXRHRE
EEATRG MRS

LEEPHRLML/ NG

=N

EETHEENRENEFSE

EXEHHAELALE
EbIl:or7%

ReRBEEENF

(RD),/ B
n: FIRERREEEBNGHE

ERAE KRS SENGE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
LR N2018F3 A28 B EEEEHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERRERA T
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BEIHBEEA &

Chief Financial Officer:
FESFILEAERA

(Company stamp)

(RREE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial

statements.

20175 Z

(RBEEN - ARKT)

2017 2016

Note (i3 20174 20164

260,000,000 647,290,715

350,000 -

260,350,000 647,290,715

(446,393,660)  (790,299,940)

(18,400,000) (19,050,000)

(7,560,000) (16,550,672)

(39,744,040) (41,064,520)

(512,097,700)  (866,965,132)

(251,747,700)  (219,674,417)

(6,425,019) 4,585,584

Va4 () F - 44(1) (30,780,310) 3,805,725

110,178,784 106,373,059

VA4 (4 T 440 79,398,474 110,178,784
Wang Yan Hui

T e

TIEH N FI8E EF 248 B W ISR &R M7t

R RKR BB D

—Z—tFFHK Annual Report 2017
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Cash Flow Statement

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20174 &

(2 #HE - AR¥T)

| Cash flows from operating activities: -
Proceeds from sale of goods
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees

Payments of various taxes
Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities: -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
Investment returns received
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of equity

interests of a subsidiary
Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of financial assets
Payments for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing activities

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form
statements.

94  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEHZEFR

2017 2016
Note Bzt 20175 20164

RETHEANBELRE
HERRUENES 586,370,397 645,298,603
WEIMHERE 56,767,103 75,009,015
Y EmRLE R ERNR S 12,834,582 6,880,912
HEEDRER | SsBoT08 721,166,530
BEEm  BEXEBINNERS (650,033,559)  (668,722,297)

SRHEBTURABT
TR E (15,180,335) (16,641,175)
TNZERE (2,765,149) (3,878,616)
TNAMELSEEHEHNEE (51,597,928) (60,979,636)

BESRAEXNNRS
REETEENENEE
FxfBE

(1,450,820,000)

(11,924,503)

AREORERM _MosTeany (150221724
REFHETNRSREFE  XV.22(1) +H22(1)  (63,604,889)  (23,033,194)
REEHELNESRE
WErEEWZINAE 1,496,220,000  1,731,800,000
BEREUEMIEINR S 94,227,278 3,256,958
REETEEMUENRSFE - 83,333
RETFARRERINES
44,520,000 -
WEEh R 8 R ERNRES 121,723,763 274,598,751
RERERSRANG 1,756,691,041  2,009,739,042

(1,691,200,000)

(40,559,328)

REEHHRS MM NG (1,462,744,503)

(1,731,759,328)

REEHELNR SRS T8 293,946,538

part of these financial

R HRR BB D

STROBRAF

277,979,714

TIEH N FISE EF 248 B W ISR &R M7+



Cash Flow Statement

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20174 E

(2FEE - ARKT)

2017 2016
Note Mzt 2017 2016
Il Cash flows from financing activities: = BEIIELMRENE
Proceeds from borrowings MEETENEE 260,000,000 647,290,715
Sub-total of cash inflows EEEYRSMANG 260,000,000 647,290,715
Repayments of borrowings EEEFZARNERS (446,393,660)  (790,299,940)
Payments for dividends DERAZ HHH S (18,400,000) (19,050,000)
Payments for interest BRFSZAMNRE (7,560,000) (15,895,691)
Payments for purchase of own shares EEARRNZTHRSE (39,744,040) (41,064,520)
Sub-total of cash outflows ELTHRL MM/t _ (612,097,700)  (866,310,151)
Net cash outflow from financing activities ERETDELNREREFE _ (252,097,700) (219,019,436
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate U+ ERZEHRE K
changes on cash and cash equivalents ReZEENNTE I 3,691,683
V Net (decrease)/increase in cash and I ReERREFEMF
cash equivalents (RD)/ &z XV.22 (2) T8 222)  (26,934,983) 39,618,767
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at m: R EHE
the beginning of the year EENHE 84,468,206 44,849,439
VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end N ERBRERRCEBYHE
of the year XV.20(3) T 223 57,533,223 84,468,206

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
I RRE N 2018F3 A28 A EEE 2 Ht /& -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FEERRA Tz FESHIERBEA I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

EEREBEEEA e (REIEE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial TSR F 98B = F 2488 I 53R R i 5
statements. RN TS R 2R MO AR K EB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

ERRERESHX

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20175 E

(2 #HE - AR¥T)

Balance at 1 January 2016

Changes in equity for the year
1, Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2017

Changes in equity for the year
1, Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2017

N16E1F1ERE

KERRATLE
1.4 u&mz@aa
2. HEAT
—%%Hm%
~4RRNAE
3 HEEE

N16F12831B4E

MITEIRIBHE

KEERED LT
1. GakasEE
2 HEAE
- RRBLE
~HhRNAR
3 REEE

N17F1283185E

Note

V.26

V.2

V.26

V.2

1%

5%

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

B ERAR D N2018FE3 A28 B EE =Sk -

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Wang An
Tz

Chief Accountant:

FEHHEREEA

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Li Lei
@

REEHZEFR

Other
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
#* Kift R £l
k% LR gona R flR it
381,000,000 75,100275 178,356 105,794,859 1,000,182,240 1,562,265,730
- - 1,863,408 - 121686562 123,549,970
- - - - (19,060,000 (19,050,000
(13,000,0000  (28,064,520) - - - (#1,064,520)
368,000,000 47,035,755 2,041,764 105,794,859 1,102,818,.802 1,625,691,180
368,000,000 47,085,755 2,041,764 105,794,859 1,102,818,802 1,625,691,180
- - (2,041,764) - 95966858 93,925,004
- - - 1316273 (1,316,273 -
- - - - (18,400,000)  (18,400,000)
(10,000,000) (29,744,040) - - - (39,744,040)
358,000,000 17,291,715 - 107,111,132 1,179,069,387 1,661,472,234
Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FESFIERR T Sy

(Company stamp)

(R~

AESE)

STROBRAF

TIEH N FISE EF 248 B W SRR M7

R RR BB D



Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
RERERSExK

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20174

(RBEEN - ARKT)

Other
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
#% ity B AR
Note [t 2 O Soka 0 e &it
Balance at 1 January 2016 N16F1A1REE 381,000,000 101,342,973 17835 105,794,809 366,364,934 954,681,122
Changes in equity for the year AELRRHER
1., Total comprehensive income 155 U&mﬁ@gﬁ - - 1,863,408 - (265,170) 1,598,238
2. Appropriation of profits 2. HEAE
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve *TEW i IN Ve B2 - - - - - -
- Distrbutions to shareholders ~HRRHAR - - - - (19080000  (19,050,000)
3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V2 B2 (130000000  (28,064520) - - - (41,084,520
Balance at 31 December 2016 016512731 A5E 368,000,000 73,278,463 2,041,764 105,794,809 347,049,764 896,164,840
Balance at 1 January 2017 MITEIRIBHE 368,000,000 73,278,453 2,041,764 105,794,859 347,049,764 896,164,840
Changes in equity for the year FEEHEYLE
1., Total comprehensive income 1. FRYnES - - (2,041,764) - 13162722 11,120,958
2. Appropriation of profits 2 HEAR
- Appropriation for surplus reserve ~ROEHLE Ve % - - - 1316218 (1,316,219) -
- Distributions to shareholders -HRRNAR = - - - (18,400,000)  (18,400,000)
3. Purchase of own shares 3 REmE V22 F 22 (10,000,000)  (29,744,040) - - - (39,744,040)
Balance at 31 December 2017 N1TE12A31B4% 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 107,111,182 340,496,213 849,141,758

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.
LI # KR ER2018F3 A28 A EEF2Ht /# -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FEERRA Tz FESHIEEREA: I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SEEBREEA *= (REIEE)

The notes on pages 98 to 248 form part of these financial TSR 98B = F 248 B M I 53R R i 5
statements. RN T R 2R MO AR K EB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

I Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited which
was established in Yantai on 30 March 1996. Headquarter
of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong Province.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are in the manufacture and sale of condensed
juice, pulp, apple essence, pomace and related products.
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer
to Note VII.

Il Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates

Accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of
provisions for receivables, recognition of cost of inventories,
depreciation of fixed assets, amortisation of intangible assets,
and revenue recognition and measurement of the Group
are adopted according to the specific characteristics of the
Company’s operations. Please refer to the relevant notes on
accounting policies.

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) of the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and
present truly and completely the consolidated financial
position and the financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated and the
Company’s financial performance and the consolidated
and the Company’s cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2017.

98  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HZEFRTRHOERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

2 Accounting period
The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.

3 Functional currency
The Company'’s functional currency is Renminbi and these
financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Some of
the Company’s subsidiaries have functional currencies
that are different from the Company’s functional currency.
Their financial statements have been translated based on
the accounting policy set out in Note III.7.

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control
(1) Business combinations involving entities under

common control

A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is
adjusted against share premium in the capital reserve,
with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.
Any costs directly attributable to the combination
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The
combination date is the date on which one combining
entity obtains control of other combining entities.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

= XFEREBE - FEHhst

(i

2

#)

R
EHEEALBEIA1ARE2A
31BLL -

FCRRA AL
ARFWREAIBE /AR -
REMBRERFANEESAR
% o RRABWE D FAREKAR
RAREARM B AN EBIER
FERAME - EREAFBHREK
- ST AR NS B RS Rk
BB =  TETTIE -

B -G TAMER—ZHTRE
BHNEFTRERE

(1) FI—#Z# FAIEREE G

SEGHHERE/FRIRY
R - AR S 7 REIE
B ERZAE B IFE SRR - B
F—ZH TOREGH - &4
HELEAHPEIISHEEM
BE BRRAFBERKE
B5 B Gt R IRAR T R BRE B
EFfE - MW FEERT
EBEEXNNEHERETE
BE(HBETROAEAE)NE
8 AREAREPHRAG
B EAREFBEAEET
RARE - ABREFRES -
RETEEAFEENERN
BER  NBELERTAZHE
@ - A A RA ML ERIUS
WA FIIEENBEH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under
common control
A business combination involving entities not under
common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination. Where (1) the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2)
the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note II.16).
If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. The costs
of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of the
consideration for the acquisition are included in the
carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

100 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

LAFEREATRE - FEHhs

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =

estimates (cont’d) (48)
5 Consolidated financial statements 5 EOMBEBRRNERSE
(1) General principles (1) #5E/RA

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
exists when the investor has all of following: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities under common control, the financial statements
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements based on the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
as if the combination had occurred at the date that
the ultimate controlling party first obtained control. The
opening balances and the comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements are also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, any
resulting disposal gains or losses are recognised
as investment income for the current period.The
remaining equity interests is re-measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. Any resulting
gains or losses are also recognised as investment
income for the current period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of
foreign currency financial statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies
from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the construction of qualifying
assets (see Note lll.14). Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss, except for the differences arising from the
re-translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements (cont’d)
Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’
equity with respect to a foreign operation are transferred
to profit or loss in the period when the foreign operation
is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on
hand, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, payables,
loans and borrowings and share capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are charged to
profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and
liabilities are measured as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Including financial assets held for trading)

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are recognised
in profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost subsequent to initial recognition.
Other available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss when the investee
approves the dividends. Interest is recognised in
profit or loss using the effective interest method
(see Note 11.20(3)).

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial
liability are offset and the net amount is presented
in the balance sheet when both of the following
conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

(3) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of
it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets
The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

(e) significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
For the calculation method of impairment of receivables,
refer to Note Il.9. The impairment of other financial
assets is measured as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis and on a
collective group basis. When an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from a decline in fair value that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
is reclassified to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit
or loss. The impairment loss on an investment in
an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured is not reversed.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(5) Equity instrument
The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditure
relating to the repurchase is recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction recording in
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are presented as a deduction
under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings
sequentially. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is credited
to the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserve (share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings sequentially.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

9

Impairment of receivables
Receivables are assessed for impairment on an individual
basis and on a collective group basis as follows.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present
value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
not having been individually assessed as impaired), based
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the
observable factors reflecting current economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
receivables, there is a recovery in the value of the
financial asset which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss will not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

10 Inventories

(1)

@)

Classification and cost
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress,
semi-finished goods and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditure incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
In addition to the purchase cost of raw materials, work
in progress and finished goods include direct labor
costs and an appropriate allocation of production
overheads.

Measurement method of cost of inventories
Cost of inventories recognised is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are charged to profit or loss upon
receipt. The amortisation charge is included in the cost
of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

10 Inventories (cont’d)
(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and

10 #E (&)
(3) 77 & ] B3 )F (8 A HEE 117 K

method for provision for obsolete inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extent of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

(4) Inventory count system

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.

FREERE R GRG0
EAEFEE%%EI - FEEREX

AEZRFE - RIEEBEED
o EENGEREEREESR
THRH{EFT R EB LKA -
FTHEE R UK EBR &
MEEE - BEEMRABNEREM
£ EnERSEREEAE
B ZE FK an Y 1] B3R R E A AR
BE - BRITHESRHES
HBeRmMBENFE @ HA]
I FEAE RER SRR
H o  BERAEFENHEZNIE
AeREIEHEN  BHHBD
"5 & /9 Al & fﬁx?ﬁ% % 85
EERAEMITE

REEAFERBFENKAR
REFEBRFENER @ 5HE
T SR EERE - FFAEHE

(4) FRAEFHIE

A B R AKES
-

—Z—tFFHK Annual Report 2017

113



Notes to the Financial Statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a
business combination
— Theinitial cost of a long-term equity investment
acquired through a business combination
involving entities under common control is
the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the combination date. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the
carrying amount of the consideration given is
adjusted to the share premium in the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.

— For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the initial cost
comprises the aggregate of the fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (48)

1 RARERE (&)
(1) REKEREREX L HEE

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments

(cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than
through a business combination
— A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if
an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment

In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that have
been included in the price or consideration paid in
obtaining the investments, the Company recognises
its share of the cash dividends or profit distributions
declared by the investee as investment income for
the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note Ill.17.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, long-
term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for in accordance with the policies described in Note
.5.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

12 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by
the Group for use in production of goods, for rental
or for administrative purposes with useful lives over
one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed assets is measured in accordance
with the policy set out in Note II1.13

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)
12 Fixed assets (cont’d) 12 EEEE(E)
(2) Depreciation of fixed assets 2) ElE&EMITER L

The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual value RES B 5 [ TE & E AR AN H0 R
and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated TEEFEREMRTREEERE
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful HEFRS®ARER T AT
life, unless the fixed asset is classified as held-for-sale. RITE  RIEEEEFER

BREONGRNE -

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and REEETEENFERSD - B
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are BEEMFFEESHE :
as follows:
Estimated Residual Depreciation
useful life value rate rate
(vears) (%) (%)
ERASH BREF FMESE
Class 85 (%) (%) (%)
Plant and buildings B EREEY) 35-40 years 10% 2.25-2.57%
35-404
Machinery and equipment W ES 1 20 years 10% 4.5%
204
Office and other equipment AR E K E b 3% & 5 years 10% 18%
54
Motor vehicles ERTA 5 years 10% 18%
5%
Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation RNEBEDEBFEFEER T Y
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end. B ETEEMNFERSS  B0F

REMFETNEETER -

(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, refer to Note (3) JR1E B 7% R (B E 5 HE
n.17. TEBRBGE= 17 -

(4) Method for the recognition, measurement and (4) F & A B E B E 8GR E K
depreciation of fixed assets acquired under finance 1B AHETEFITE AR
leases, are set out in Note IIl.24(3). BiaE= ~24(3) -
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(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

12 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is holding for disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

13 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note lll.14), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is classified as construction in
progress and transferred to fixed asset when it is ready
for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note Il1.17).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as financial expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period
is determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)
14 Borrowing costs (cont’d) 14 ERER (#])

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that REEEEERNERF X
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the = 18 18 R AE T8 BR 17 48 HA R s i AR
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a MEEHBANRKESRE
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the IR AZER VIR EREETEN
borrowings. ST ARAE -

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences EERNCHRERA  INEHEFER
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose AeREMEMERLEZRE + T
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised BRI » st AFTEERNLIEHER
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange BEBHBKA o MERINEEPTIE R
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign ZINEY E A ANEE fE SRR 4 N H A
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose BAFEANER ZHIELEMGE
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when A stAEHEE -

incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of BEARLHREEAEBNERE
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the B4 & AN 2 2= & AN b
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period R EE  EREREEER
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation {ERNERAREEAN - EEAY
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for HMEREREKLEERAFE
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being EEINEERERRERMNERN
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that BEIHEOKHGBE  E2E&H
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use FIRE RN - BEBEFTEERNL
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become IREH & EZE|TEE r Rk e
ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing B ERERAEILEERE - §R
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction FEEBRNIGHENEELEEA
activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of more R AIEIEE R - B ER
than three months. MEERAESEAN « AEEEE

fERERNEARL °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

15 Intangible assets 15 B EE

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note I11.17).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.

B EEARANR R 5 3H (2R
RERSHERNELEE) MR
BEEBZREME= 17)EREE
EBERAIT - HREASB®
BERNETLEE  AEEBER
BEMARAKRESFREMR
FUREEBRIREREETRRE
RASwHAEE  RIEZETE
ENEREFEMNGRNT

The amortisation period for intangible assets is as follows: B EENEEFERA
Item Amortisation period (years) IHH HFER(E)
Land use right 35 - 50 years —+ 3h {3 A 35 - 50F

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Group. At the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have any intangible assets
with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure incurred during the
research phase and expenditure incurred during the
development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase is expensed when
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note Il1.17). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d) (#)

16 Goodwill 16 HE
The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of JER —EH TR ES FRKN
acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of PR EYIAR AR A AR
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business REHTERENIEES Al 7
combination not involving entities under common control. FEEAABEMNBRAZE -
Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance REBEHHETEE - PAKAHR
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see 2 REEGE(RRNE= 17)
Note lll.17). On disposal of an asset group or a set of EEEBERANYR - BHEEH
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and VHEAEEMASNEEHES R ER
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. FLAESL - st ASHIERS -

17 Impairment of assets other than inventories and 17 REERESRMEENINNEMEE
financial assets RAE
The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed rEEBEEERBBERBBRBAL
at each balance sheet date based on internal and external RINSBIEEAEE NI EERR
sources of information to determine whether there is any GFERENTR @ 81

indication of impairment:

- fixed assets — BEEE

— construction in progress — EREIE

— intangible assets — B EE

- long-term equity investments — REIRERE

- goodwill — B

If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the REBHGFEERERRNEEE
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates TRERS @ HEtEER K E
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year- S5 o AN EmEDTFEAERE
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of MR AEEREBFEFERTEH
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group BEGEEAKE % - NEEH
or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit KIERBEEMRNEELEEHRAS
from the synergies of the combination for the purpose BE S 1 ZE S O 1 173 [R) BUPE AR &Y
of impairment testing. XmEROEHERTER I

FELLERE FETRERERH
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d)

17 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

(#8)
17 REERERMEENNEMEE

financial assets (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note
[11.18) less costs to sell and its present value of expected
future cash flows.

An asset group is composed of assets directly related
to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to
an asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis.
However, such allocation would not reduce the carrying
amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable), its present value of expected
future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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(B 15 Bl A1

F RREEBARRTT)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

18

19

124 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value
as follows:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

19

20

Provisions (cont’d)

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as
any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range.
In other cases, the best estimate is determined according
to the following circumstances:

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome.

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount
to the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the
following conditions are met:

20
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

20 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
(1) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the general conditions
stated above and the following conditions are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer;

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable
under the sales contract or agreement.

(2) Rendering of services
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable under the
contract or agreement.

Where the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
based on the proportion of services performed to date
to the total services to be performed.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognised to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be recoverable, and
an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss
as service cost; otherwise, the costs incurred are
recognised in profit or loss and no service revenue
is recognised.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

20 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
(3) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

21 Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or accrued at the
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as
a liability as the employee provides services, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in
the cost of assets where appropriate.

(2) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
plan in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions payable are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets
whore appropriate.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

21 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(3) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit
or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw — AREBTEEEHREBIL
the offer of termination remuneration because of i [ 25 B 8 1R 51 31 s &R
an employee termination plan or a curtailment B TIRH R ELEE TR
proposal;

—  When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring — ANEBEAFH - EXHF
plan involving the payment of termination benefits RE B RENOEHET
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected gl:WH  ZEHFEED
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting FIAE N @ sk M EF
to implement that plan or announcing its main 2R HBE T ZES
features to those affected by it. FTERE RMESAHE

RTHASEKEBEEH
B & IR TR AR o
22 Government grants 22 BB

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contributions from the
government in the capacity as an investor in the Group.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

22 Government grants (cont’d)

22 BUAFHEBY (&)

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets.

Pursuant to the Accounting Standards for revised
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 16
— Government Grants (“CAS 16 (2017)”) which came into
effect on 12 June 2017, Government grants that exist on
1 January 2017 shall be dealt with by the Group according
to the prospective application method, and government
grants that are newly added from 1 January 2017 to
the date of effectiveness of these Standards shall be
adjusted according to these Standards. Therefore, the
difference between the Group’s accounting policies about
government grants before 1 January 2017 and after 1
January 2017 is as follows:

Grants related to assets shall be recognized as deferred
income in the balance sheet by the Group before 1
January 2017, and evenly amortized to profit or loss
over the useful life of the related assets. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

22 Government grants (cont’d)

22 BUAFHEBY (&)

Grants related to assets shall be used to offset the book
value of relevant assets by the Group after 1 January
2017. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses
to be incurred in the future is recognised initially as
deferred income, and released to the other income or non-
operating income in the periods in which the expenses
are recognised. A grant that compensates the Group for
expenses already incurred is recognised in profit or loss,
or recorded in the other income or non-operating income.

Where the Group obtains an interest subsidy for policy-
related preferential loans, the accounting treatment is
as follows:

— Where the government appropriates an interest
subsidy to the lending bank, allowing the latter to
provide loans to an enterprise at a preferential interest
rate, recognizing the loan amount received as the
book-entry value of such loans, and calculating the
relevant loan expenses according to the loan principal
and the preferential interest rate;

— Where the government directly appropriates an interest
subsidy to the Group, the Group shall use the interest
subsidy to offset relevant loan expenses.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

23 Fri8%t

23 Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

23 FRiSHL (&)

23 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured
based on the tax consequences that would follow from
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits
will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets;

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1) Operating lease charges
Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related
asset or as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policies described in Note IIl.12(2).
Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy described in Note lll.17. Income
derived from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss using the straight-line method over the lease
term. If initial direct costs incurred in respect of the
assets leased out are material, the costs are initially
capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit or
loss over the lease term on the same basis as the
lease income. Otherwise, the costs are charged to
profit or loss immediately.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
carrying amount of the leased assets and the minimum
lease payments is accounted for as unrecognised
finance charges. Initial direct costs attributable to
a finance lease that are incurred by the Group are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.
Depreciation and impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policies described
in Notes Ill.12(2) and lll.17, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charges arising from a finance
lease are recognised using an effective interest method
over the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for
in accordance with the principles of borrowing costs
(see Note Ill.14).

At the balance sheet date, the long-term payables
arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised
finance charges, are analysed and separately
presented as long-term payables or non-current
liabilities due within one year.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

25

26

27

Profit distributions

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.

Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating
segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic
characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the
nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of the
actual transaction prices for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent
with those for the consolidated financial statements.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Note V.13 and Note IX contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

— Impairment of receivables
As described in Note .9, receivables that are
measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about loss events
such as a significant decline in the estimated future
cash flows of an individual debtor or the portfolio
of debtors, and significant changes in the financial
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
If there is objective evidence of a recovery in the value
of receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Provision for impairment of inventories

As described in Note Ill.10, the net realisable value
of inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable values. When
making estimates of net realisable value, the Group
takes into consideration the use of inventories and
other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and related taxes may vary
based on changes in market conditions and product
saleability, manufacturing technology and the actual
use of the inventories, resulting in changes in the
provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets

As described in Note IIl.17, assets other than
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of
the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
— Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets (cont’d)
The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its present value of expected future cash
flows. When a market price of the asset (or the asset
group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of
the asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount is calculated based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows. In assessing the present
value of estimated future cash flows, significant
judgements are exercised to estimate the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

— Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed
assets and intangible assets
As described in Notes Ill. 12 and 15, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.

138  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

LAFEREATRE - FEHhs

(#8)

28 FERETHEET R B ()

- BFERTHBEEINEME

ERE(E)

AlE B EE(REEM)
AR BERELREEMAEN
FHEREE(HEEHR)ER
XA REMNBRERE 2B
BeE EAKETREASE
BREE(REEM)NARFRM
B - BRI SEAEENR
REER - NREESEARK
ReneNREFRATKEE
B AEFAARASRERE
B BSEHZEEKEER)
TEERNEE - EE - 18
REE AN IA K st B IR ERE B
MITER R FEHEXRHE - X
SEEGFAIRE SRR SR
A RESHESHNERER -
BRERIEAEMAFHHRR
PIELEREE - SEMIEREA
PSRNV TRA o

BEELE BIEEESEER
B I Y

WKt EE= 128 15FFt - A
EEHETEENENEES
BEEZEERER  E£FEH
S RsHRITEMEE - A&
ExHEMABEENERS
o BUREAS T A SRS
RITEMHIEBEREEE - EE
FREmEASEREERE
BENEELRITES BB
BT MAEE © (R ARTH
AErBEEERE (L - BIEER
RERR ST E RSB S B T

A -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates
Changes in accounting policies

(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies

The Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) issued the Chinese
Accounting Standard (CAS) No.42 — Non-current
Assets or Disposal Groups Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations (“CAS No.42”) and revised
Chinese Accounting Standard (CAS) No.16 -
Government Grants (“Revised CAS No.16”) in April
2017 and May 2017 respectively. The effective date
of CAS No.42 is 28 May 2017 and the effective date
of CAS No.16 is 12 June 2017.

The significant accounting policies after adopting the
above Accounting Standards are summarised in Note
M.

In addition, the MOF issued the “Notice on Revision
of the lllustrative Financial Statements” (Caikuai [2017]
No. 30) in December 2017. The Group has prepared
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 in accordance with this requirement.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
(a) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)
Impacts of the adoption of the accounting standards
mentioned above are discussed below:

() Government Grants
As a result of the adoption of CAS 16 (2017),
the Group has reassessed its government grants
existing on 1 January 2017, and changed the
accounting policy using prospective application
method.

Impacts of the adoption of the accounting
standards are set out below:

— For government grants related to assets, the
Group shall offset against them the book value
of relevant assets other than recognize them
as deferred income previously;

— For government grants related to income, the
Group shall offset them against the relevant
cost or record them in the non-operating
income and expenses other than record them
in the non-operating income previously;

— In the event of being recognized as deferred
income in the balance sheet, government
grants related to assets shall be amortised to
profit or loss in a reasonable and systematic
manner, other than on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of the asset previously;

— For the direct appropriation of interest subsidy
for policy-related preferential loans to the
Group, the Group shall offset it against relevant
loan expenses other than recording it in the
non-operating income previously.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
(a) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)
(i) Gains from asset disposals
The Group has prepared the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 in accordance
with Caikuai [2017] No.30. Comparative figures
have been adjusted retrospectively.

According to this regulation, the Group has added
a separate line item “Gains from asset disposals”
in the income statement. Gains or losses from
disposals of non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments and long-term equity investment) or
disposal groups classified as held for sale, and
gains or losses from disposals of fixed assets,
construction in progress and intangible assets not
classified as held for sale are included in this item.
In addition, gains or losses from disposals of non-
current assets arising from debt restructuring or
gains or losses from non-monetary exchanges are
included in this item. The above gains or losses
were previously presented in “Non-operating
income” or “Non-operating expenses”.

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the current
year financial statements
The following tables provide estimates of the impact
on each of the line items in the consolidated income
statement and income statement, and the consolidated
balance sheet and balance sheet for the year ended
31 December 2017 had the previous policies still been
applied in the year.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (cont’d)

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the current

year financial statements (cont’d)

— The effects on each of the line items in the 2017
consolidated income statement and income

statement are analysed as follows:

Financial expenses

Losses from asset disposals
Non-operating income
Non-operating expenses

Profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expense

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

fT5E R
BERBRX
ESILION
BRI

ANEEGEE]
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e
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Effect of new policy
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RASEESHBREM
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The Group The Company
*5EE b /N
(350,000) (850,000)
1,622,774 16,788
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29 Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (cont’d)

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the current

year financial statements (cont’d)

The effects on each of the line items in the
consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are analysed

as follows:

Assets
Fixed assets

Liabilities
Deferred income

Shareholders’ equity

BE -

afE:
BTz

PR

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

ATNEEWHER « FHEH
()

29 TEGHBEK G EFTHNEE
(4&)
(b) % F #f & BB 7% #h 5% 19 5 &
(#&)
— AESFHEREE 2017
F12A31HAHEERAR
B RAREEAERS
HE W ESITWT

Effect of new policy increase/
(decrease) in the line items

BRHSEESHBREM
(R )ERERHEEEH
The Group The Company
*TEE b /NG
(8,127,250) (525,000)
(8,127,250) (625,000)
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IV Taxation Iy IR\
1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates 1 FEFHERHRE
Tax type Tax basis
neE FHRIK IR

Value-added tax (VAT)

EER

Business tax

BER

City maintenance and
construction tax
YA T A R A R A

Enterprise income tax

EMEH

Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable
services revenue, based on tax laws. The remaining
balance of output VAT, after subtracting the deductible
input VAT of the period, is VAT payable

BRERESERNHEEEMMER S BRASERGTE
SHIATRE - AR E A AR MeEETRER - =5
D RIEIGET

Based on taxable revenue before 1 May 2016.
According to Caishui [2016] No.36, jointly issued
by MOF and the State Administration of Taxation,
all taxpayers subject to business tax in China are
included in the scope of the VAT pilot scheme.
Effective from 1 May 2016, those taxpayers are
required to pay VAT in lieu of business tax

2016F5 A1 B AT » RIET S E AT o RIR M BES
MRS R A M1 [2016] 365K X * B
20165 A1 H R HEBE N BEXTHARARNAL
EMBBUEENAREE - BN T RN
=07

Based on business tax and VAT paid
REBRENE ET N EIEER A=

Based on taxable profits
RN TSR
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IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% in 2017 (2016: 25%) except for
the following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries
of the Company which were taxed at the local applicable
income tax rates.

(@) According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued by
Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation,
General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No0.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax rate is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. from 2011 to 2020 and 15% for Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. from 2017 to
2020.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)
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IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit (cont’d) 2
(b) According to the EIT Law, revenue derived from primary
processing of agricultural produce is exempt from the
PRC income tax. The production of juice concentrate
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries and
production of bio-stuff of its subsidiaries are recognised
as primary processing of agricultural produce under
the EIT Law and therefore are exempt from the
PRC income tax commenced from 1 January 2008.

MIA(H\)

HUER(E)

(o) BEBELEMBRE  FERE
MMM TEBHIRAGZER R
FTiEf - ARBFETFTFA
BB RO AR A E
EBRTELEMBGRETERE
@A T 27 - BMAE2008F 1
A1BRERRBAMEHE -
017TEEFEZXERESRIM
ITREENSARMT

The following companies are recognised as primary

processing of agricultural produce for the year 2017:

Name of company

ARER

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
BatF2EHRTROERAF

Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
AKLEFNRFTERAR

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
ENRENRFTERAR

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
MaERRENRTRRERAA

Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
ARELEHREHETARAR

Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
KBREFIRATERAR

Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
EMNZERRETRRERAR

Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd
BRERRETERLA

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

ZEZENERERHRARAH

Principal activities

RKEERE

Manufacture and sale of juice

RERTEERHE

Manufacture and sale of juice
RERTEERSE

Manufacture and sale of juice

RERTEERHE

Manufacture and sale of juice and bio-stuff
FERT REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice and bio-stuff

RERT REAERHE

Manufacture and sale of juice and bio-stuff
FRRT REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice

RERTEERHE

Manufacture and sale of juice and bio-stuff
FRERT REEEREE

Manufacture and sale of juice and bio-stuff

RERT  REAERHE
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Preferential policy

EENR

Exempt from income tax

SR

Exempt from income tax

SEFEH

Exempt from income tax

SEFEH

Exempt from income tax

SEFEH

Exempt from income tax

SR

Exempt from income tax

SEFEH

Exempt from income tax

SRR

Exempt from income tax

SEFEH

Exempt from income tax

SEEH
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand

[tem

Cash on hand
Bank deposits

Total

A H

BEHRE
RITHER

S

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, there
are no bank deposits with restrictions placed on the

Group’s ownership.

2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

[tem
Financial assets held for trading

Including:Investment in equity
instruments

3 Bills receivable

[tem

Bank acceptance bills

ER]

RHNTREE
Hep : #mTARS

(ER

HRITHRNEE

All of the above bills receivable were due within one year,
and were not pledged, endorsed or discounted.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group had not endorsed or discounted (with right of

recourse any under bills).

I SHMBERRAHER

1

ExES
2017 2016
20175 20164
127,396 119,741
79,271,078 110,059,043
79,398,474 110,178,784

R20179F12 331 A K%20165F 12
318 - AEEEPAEX BRI

EVERTTIFAK o

URAREBEFEBEESEHFAAE

HEZNEREE
2017 2016
20175 20164
= 7,833,191

EWEE

2017 2016
20175 20164
9,003,656 2,707,800

tRREEES—FREH - B
RIRER - BELRR -

2017412 A31H K20165F 12
31H - AREECDEEXNUARSE
(B REER) WK M F

e
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

4 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows:

Customer type =R
Third Parties E=5
Related Parties E2kisia)
Sub-total N

Less: Provision for bad and o AR

doubtful debts

Total B

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as
follows:
Ageing BRER

Within 6 months (inclusive) 61E A AR (E61EA)
Over 6 months but within 1 year 618 B E=1F(E14F)

(inclusive)
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1EZE2FE(E24F)
(inclusive)

Sub-total N
Less: Provision for bad and ]
doubtful debts

Total =

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.
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4 RBUWARR
(1) FEWBR X 1% & 5 28 5l 73 47 %0

SHMBERREFE(E)

L

2017 2016
20174 20164
191,461,137 152,434,298
6,159,381 8,935,126
197,620,518 161,369,424
5,066,262 2,553,740
192,554,256 158,815,684

(2) EWBEAIZIRE ST -
2017 2016
20174 20164
182,193,438 142,975,781
15,407,438 18,217,266
19,642 176,377
197,620,518 161,369,424
5,066,262 2,553,740
192,554,256 158,815,684

ARi B FE W BR N HERR B RERA G

NP
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

4 Accounts receivable (cont’d) 4 FEWERX(E)

(3) Receivables individually greater than 10% book value (3) A& B EWRFIREEREE10%
are individually significant, therefore the accounts A EFIBABIHEAN - Bt
receivable are assessed for impairment and bad FEURBR IR 32 B8 N BB TE N IE 4
debt provision is determined on an individual basis LMERI A - BAEE F i
and, then, on a collective group basis. For individually ITRE RIS - LAETIREERR £
significant accounts receivable at the year end, no bad o EREBIBSZEE ARIAR
debt provision has been determined on an individual 4 BE VB ST R S BR E AR Y R URBR
basis. o

(4) Additions, reversals or written-off of provision for bad (4) RFE5FHHR © 85[0 A% SR IE R
and doubtful debts during the year: BB

2017 2016
201745 20164
Balance at the beginning of the FHIRTR
year 2,553,740 -
Additions during the year REFHR 1,536,215 3,442,689
Written-off during the year REZIH - (888,949)
Reversals during the year which had VAR E AN i [T
been written-off in previous years 976,307 -
Balance at the end of the year FERHE 5,066,262 2,553,740
5 Prepayments 5 FEMNFRIE
(1) Prepayments by type are as follows: (1) FE B LEFZ R0 T -
2017 2016
Type =Rl 20174 20164
Third Parties F=7 3,081,104 3,564,813
Less: Provision for bad and W RARER

doubtful debts - _

Total =X 3,081,104 3,564,813
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
5 Prepayments (cont’d) 5 FANFIE(E)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: (2) FEIFIEZ ARSI R0 T
2017 2016
Ageing BRI 20174 20164
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 EEBl (%) k| EE (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FIAA(E14) 3,081,104 100% 3,547,606 99%
Over 1 year but within  1E2F(&2%)
2 years (inclusive) - - 17,207 1%
Total aEr 3,081,104 100% 3,564,813 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when B BTEN B B EEE
prepayments are recognised. HE o
6 Other receivables 6 HuipEwz
(1) Other receivables by type are as follows: (1) BB AT -
2017 2016
Type kel 20174 2016%F
Related parties B2l 801,363 5,324
Third parties F=h 41,246,131 4,877,550
Sub-total /Nt 42,047,494 4,882,874
Less: Provision for bad and o AR
doubtful debts - 4,132,565
Total X1 42,047,494 750,309
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, W20175E12 B31 H & 20164
the Group did not hold any other receivables which 12A31 8 @ REBEEIIEE
were denominated in foreign currency. fh FEUR R o
As at 31 December 2017, the balance of the Group’s MR2017F12A31H - KN&EH
other receivables comprises mainly outstanding HMEMEINZGBEIE AHE
consideration relating to the disposal of 100% shares FTisa m B M L EmF R4 gt
of Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., which amounted B R A 7 100% [% #E 79 fE Wk
to RMB 40,401,000. According to the share transfer AR #40,401,0007T ° BIEME
agreement, the receivables will be due to settle within REEEG AT HIEENIR
six months from the completion date (21 December BZEH(2017F12821H)
2017) of the disposal. &7 B A RULE o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

6 Other receivables (cont’d)

@)

3

The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:
Ageing AR S
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FELAA(E1F)

Over 1 year but within 2 years ~ 1EZE2F(524)
(inclusive)

Over 3 years 3FLAE
Sub-total NEF
Less: Provision for bad and RS

doubtful debts

Total A&t
The ageing is counted starting from the date when

other receivables are recognised.

Written-off of provision for bad and doubtful debts
during the year:

Balance at the beginning of the year FHIREE
Written-off during the year RNEZIH
Balance at the end of the year &t

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

SHMBERREFE(E)

6 HEAEUR(E)
2) BB IRRESITLT -

2017 2016
20174 20164
41,924,494 389,903
123,000 360,406

= 4,132,565
42,047,494 4,882,874
= 4,132,565
42,047,494 750,309

AR B H (YR RE SR B A2 FE

AT
oAl >+ °

3) EiH R EEIER

2017 2016
20174 20164
4,132,565 4,132,565

(4,132,565) -

= 4,132,565
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FREEEAS) - 2 FEE [ BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
7 Inventories 7 FE
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FES %
2017 2016
20174 2016%
Provision for Provision for
impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying
Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
Item FERE IRmiE BEER FERE REAE BEER REEE
Raw materialsand ~ BHMEHR
packaging materials 8% 32,033,062 - 32,033,062 30,827,020 - 30,827,020
Finished goods Ekm 726,653,640 (3,672,616) 722,981,024 761,620,010 (231,058) 761,388,952
Total At 758,686,702  (3,672,616) 755,014,086 792,447,030 (231,088) 792,215,972
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no 72017912 431 H & 20164
inventories were pledged as security by the Group. 12A318  AEBRAAR
BERNFE -
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the 2) FEXRFEESHSWAT
year is as follows:
2017 20174
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
Y *%
Item FERHE FmiE ameE BO®| FRBH
Raw materials and packaging R R
materials E3Y) 30,827,020 509,482,901 508,276,359 32,033,062
Finished goods Ekm 761,620,010 603,855,566 638,821,936 726,653,640
Sub-total INet 792,447,030 1,113,338,467  1,147,098,795 758,686,702
Less: Provision for impairment of i : Z S M (E%EE
inventories 231,058 3,441,558 - 3,672,616
Total CH 792,215,972 1,109,896,909  1,147,098,795 755,014,086
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

(cont’d)
7 Inventories (cont’d) 7 FE(E)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the Q) GFEXRFZEFZSIMAT
year is as follows: (cont’d) (#&)
2016 20164
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
E R
Item FRER FHRE byl HOE FREAEE
Raw materials and packaging FEH# R
materials B 29,904,414 476,704,808 475,782,202 30,827,020
Finished goods ERK 833,366,293 543,742,252 615,488,535 761,620,010
Sub-total et 863,270,707  1,020,447,060  1,091,270,737 792,447,030
Less: Provision for impairment of  Jii : FEHEEE
inventories 663,546 - 432,438 231,058
Total &t 862,607,161  1,020,447,060  1,090,838,249 792,215,972
(38) Provision for impairment of inventories ©) FREEEE
2017 20175
Balance Balance
at the beginning Additions at the end
of the year  During the year Written back during the year of the year
ltem FaER 2013 FEAm FERIEE FXBE
Provision Reversals Written-off
it [L]E LLE
Finished goods ERX 231,058 3,441,558 - - 3,672,616
2016 20164
Balance Balance
at the beginning Additions at the end
of the year  During the year Written back during the year of the year
Item FERE FRE REEM RERDER ERHE
Provision Reversals Written-off
it &m B
Finished goods ERm 663,546 - 80,584 351,904 231,058
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

7 Inventories (cont’d)

7

(3) Provision for impairment of inventories (cont’d)

FE(E)
(3) FEHEER (&)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

The Group recognized provision for impairment of
inventories after determination of the net realisable
value of its finished goods with reference to the current
market price and the actual sales of its finished goods.

The estimated selling price used to determine the
net realisable value of inventories varies depending
on whether a sales contract has been concluded.
Where a contract has been concluded, the estimated
selling price of inventories is recognised based on the
contract amount, otherwise, it is determined based
on the average contract price of recently concluded

AEEZEE AT IBERAR
MEXRERHEERR  BE
P am AT 23 EETRIR
HHFIRTFEREER -

AEEERERFERARAE
MEFTEERDERTHES
RMARTHERR - BEFRF
BRI ERER A RS HERE
RIETEE AR ARHD
RamH—RHEEREE M
HEME -

contracts.

8 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable
Prepaid income tax
Available-for-sale financial assets at
fair value at the end of the year:
- Beixinruifeng No.008 specific
asset management scheme
- Bank wealth management
products

Total

8

e

RN ERERR
BHMEH
FREA A BEFENH
HESHEE
—LERE008HBREEEHE
ATl
—RITEMER

154 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE
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2017 2016
20175 20164
51,194,764 58,308,923
153,856 117,628
- 20,827,321
- 5,300,000
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)

9 Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end

of the year:

ltem TEH

Merger and acquisition fund BEeEFHBEESEEER
collective trust scheme of B

Guojin Quantum

EBI Harvest Yunfan NO.1 private AEZEEMN1EIAERLE
equity investment fund LEES
Total A&F

In November and December 2017, the Group transferred
the merger and acquisition fund collective trust scheme
of Guojin Quantum and EBI Harvest Yunfan No.1 private
equity investment fund to third parties, at considerations
of RMB9,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 respectively.

9 THHETREE

FREAABEFAENAHLE
TREE

2017 2016
20175 20164
- 10,872,251
- 10,442,192
- 21,314,443

AREE D BIR2017F11 A k12
A BLEilimBEENREET
HEEECESERTER
AZLEZEENIRBRERELE
H & 7 5l LA # {8 9,000,000 7T F
10,000,000 T#ETFE =7 o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets
(1) Fixed assets

Item

Cost
At 1 January 2016
Additions during the year
- Purchases from third parties
- Transfers from construction in progress
Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement
Reclassifications

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2017
Additions during the year

- Purchases from third parties

— Transfers from construction in progress
Reductions during the year

- Disposals or retirement

- Offset government grants

against the book value
- Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

>
™

FE
2016£1A1A
REEN

-RE

-fRIREA
AERY

-REYRE
BEEAE

2016512A31H

01751 A1R
AEEN
-HE
-ERIREA
KERD
~RELHE
~B R RRRE

-RETAA

2017512A318

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

10 BE&EE
(1) BIEBEIER
Office
Plant & Machinery & other Motor

buildings & equipment equipment vehicles Total

EER ARG
it BREE  REMRE EBIA ait
505,063,953 885,029,930 25,162,982 10,014,451 1,475,271,316
25,384,978 11,613,698 565,088 320,911 37,884,675
6,622,841 968,324 - - 7,591,165
(5,102,244) (6,042,312) (3,527,452) (434,959)  (15,106,967)
(4,310,793) 4,310,793 - - -
(RN BEEIRS  2ALAE Gl e
577,658,735 895,880,433 22,200,618 9,900,403  1,505,640,189
225,167 9,451,587 990,397 4,937 10,672,088
3,537,478 1,251,283 - - 4,788,761
- (2,542,086) (133,469) (131,892 (2,807,447)
- (3,127,500) - - (3,127,500)
(41,582,273) (4,512,241) (741,182) (715,000)  (47,550,696)
530,839,107 896,401,476 22,316,364 9,058,448  1,467,615,395
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d) 10 B EEE(E)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d) (1) BIEZEZT L (&)
Office
Plant & Machinery & other Motor
buildings & equipment equipment vehicles Total
EER BORGE
ltem 1BH B RESE  RAMRE ERIA ait
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 January 2016 2016%1 418 (133807071)  (476,403,387)  (18.887661)  (7,783,140)  (636,881,259)
Charge for the year AR (15482,114)  (29499.075)  (1,439,834) (290076)  (46,711,099)
Reductions during the year AERY
- Disposals or retirement ~REGHE 3,104,500 5,159,417 3,111,274 140,786 11,515,977
Reclassffication BERAE 290,979 (290979) - - -
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 _(1_45,893,706) (601,034,024)  (17,216,221) (7,932,430)  (672,076,381)
At 1 January 2017 20171518 (145,893,706)  (501,034,024)  (17,216,221) (7,932,430)  (672,076,381)
Charge for the year AR (12520,421)  (27,421,744)  (1,099,768) (221,218)  (41,265,151)
Reductions during the year KERD
- Disposals or retirement ~REGHE - 1,023,534 118,904 118,703 1,261,141
- Disposal of subsiolaries ~RETFAH 12,420,396 1,766,316 480,756 639,122 15,306,590
At 31 December 2017 2017E12A318 (145,995,781)  (525,665,918)  (17,716,329) (7,395,823)  (696,773,801)
Provision for impairment HEER
At 1 January 2017 2017%151H - (480,787) - - (480,787)
Charge for the year A (16,731,276)  (15,207,024) - - (31,938,300)
At 31 December 2017 2017E12A31A (16,731,276)  (15,687,811) - - (32419,087)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2017 20175128318 317,112,100 355,047,747 4,600,035 1,662,625 738,422,507
At 31 December 2016 201651278318 431,765,029 394,365,622 4,984,397 1,967,973 833,083,021
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, 72017912 831 H & 20164
there are no fixed assets with restrictions placed on 12A318 » "EBEEMEGRE
the Group’s ownership. ZEIRGEEEE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)

(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group’s temporarily idle fixed assets are as follows:

31 December 2017

ltem
Lemon processing line, accessory

equipment and building
Preserved fruit production line

Total

31 December 2016

[tem

Preserved fruit production line

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

10 BEEE (&)
(2) EFFEIERETEEEIBT
7K2017F12 431 H & 20164
12A318 - "&EENUTEE
BEEERRHEE -

2017%12A31H
Accumulated  Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
BH EERE RIHAE BEER BERE
BEMLEER WERE
REE 115,633,195  (23,387,795)  (31,938,300) 60,307,100
RREESR 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
ait 116,883,029  (24,031,859)  (32,419,087) 60,432,083
2016512 A31H
Accumulated  Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
128 RERE ZitHE HEER KAEE
RREER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

10 BE&EE (&)
Q) EHERNEEEERL(E)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (cont’d)

In 2017, the Group assessed that the lemon production
machinery and equipment of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd. exists indications of
impairment. For the asset groups with identified
indications of impairment, the management compares
the carrying amount of each asset group with its
recoverable amount to determine the amount of the
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset group
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
present value of expected future cash flows. For the
reason that the Group can not reliably estimate the
present value of expected future cash flow of relevant
asset group, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the asset group in accordance with its fair
value less costs to sell.

The Group evaluates the recoverable amount of
the asset group and reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount of RMB60,307,100 and
recognises an impairment loss of RMB31,938,300 in
the current year. The recoverable amount is determined
by the amount of fair value less costs to sell of the
asset group. The fair value is calculated using the
cost method with reference to the full cost to re-
establish the same or similar assets at the current price
valuation date (ie. 31 December 2017), after deducting
the physical devaluation, functional devaluation and
economic devaluation.

R2017FE - AEEFHL
EREMNEREXRBARA
FIMEE N T AEG R HM B
i BETFEREDSR - ¥
REBRFERETRNEE
M BEERESEEEENE
EEEEE AT E S REETT
B NEERELERESHE - A
Ym & 2R 2R A B E AR TR
AXBReRENREREEM
AR BERELREEMAEN
FEMELHARREREE - B
RASKEE AR SEfhsH A E
EANTEARRSRENR
B - AEBRREEAEEAR
MAREERERES MK
FEAEAWEEE -

AREEYHELEEANTIK
[B] < %8 {F 5T I AR 4% 51 1
EREEELEEANEREEE
ERLEEAKOEEAR
¥ 60,307,100 7 @ LA R E
FEREEREBRIARE
31,938,3007T ° fAEr AT E &
HEARELEEMANARE
EREEEER - 221 BE
EBHARAE  2BAFEE
EH(2017F12 8318 )8R
R ES S B EMERSALE
ENE2DKASRERERE
Ihee B B LA R B A7 (E o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

10 BIE&E (%)
Q) B BBEHEHAETEEE

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(4) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of
the fixed assets leased out by the Group under
operating leases amounted to RMB23,254,119
(2016: RMB23,885,554), which mainly includes two
office buildings, several commercial retail stores and
an apartment building located in Muping Economic
Development Zone, Yantai.

(5) Fixed assets which certificates of ownership are

pending
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the Group’s fixed assets with pending certificates of

187

72017912 831 H & 20164
12A31H - A"&EEEMEMR
ERANETEE °

(4) BABSEHE L AELE B E

R2017F12H318 - A& H
BRAKEHERHMETE
ERMEE 523,254,119
(20164 : 23,885,5547T)
ZRUNASTEF LB
ERRENAE  BETREE
R —EAEIE -

(6) RRZEREZENEIELEF

s
2017912 431 H & 20164
12 A31H ZIS‘%LXTE

ownership is as follows: BERNZEREES
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 Reason why
2017% 2016%F  certificates of
125 31 E 125 31 E ownership are
Item Carrying amount Carrying amount pending
HH EERE FERE fHXEEEERE
Buildings of Liquan Yitong Juice Co.,Ltd. 51,331,130 52,373,179  The certificates have not

BREBRITBRAABERE

been dealt with due to
historical reasons

ELBERR - HAMRE

Fresh fruit workshop of Anyue Andre 5,243,453 6,483,423  The certificates have not
Lemon Industry Technology Co Ltd. been dealt with due
ZELENEREXNBERA to the acceptance
i R ] standard have not
been met
AREFRWABRE -
AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

11 Construction in progress "N ERTRE

2017 2016

20175 20165
Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
Book value impairment amount  Book value  impairment amount
Project == IRESH REER REREE REHE EER REEE
Boiler online monitoring project BB/ EEIER 120,000 - 120,000 = = =
Debittering equipment WERE - - - 96,371 - 96,371
Others Efth 1,660 - 1,660 16,971 - 16,971
Total oH0 121,660 - 121,660 113,342 - 113,342
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no 72017F12 31 B %2016 124
interest was capitalized in construction in progress of 318 - AEEMAEREIERE T

the Group. BEARE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

12 Intangible assets

[tem
Cost
At 1 January 2016

Additions during the year
— Purchases

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2017
Disposals during the year
— Disposals of subsidiary

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2016

At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals of subsidiary

At 31 December 2017

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

12 B EE

IHE
AR R(E
201641 H1H
AR
—BE

2016512 H31H

20171 A18
AR D
~EET AR
2017512 H31H
Rit
20165F1 A1H
AR
2016512 H31H
201751 A1H
AFEHE
EET AR

2017412 A31H

RmEEE
2017512H31H

2016512 H31H

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

Land use right
=t {5 I 48

128,690,195

5,342,250

134,032,445

134,032,445

(20,395,501)

113,636,944

(21,015,731)
(2,884,932)

(23,900,663)

(23,900,663)
(3,167,902)
2,660,012

(24,408,553)

89,228,391

110,131,782
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

12 Intangible assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all of
the Group’s land use rights are on medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group has no intangible assets used as mortgage for
bank loans.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group did not have land use rights which certificates of
ownership are pending.

13 Goodwill
(1) Changes in goodwill

Name of investee BREBN AR Note
Book value QEEJ? &
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ZERETEREE (9
Technology Co., Ltd. ﬂ&ﬁ A7
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. KEREFRET (o)
BRAF
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice RaEOREFRT (0
Co., Ltd. FHERRT
Sub-total NGt
Provision for impairment FE%ERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry RERENERES
Technology Co., Ltd. BEER AR
Sub-total NGt
Carrying amount REEE

12 BRLEAE(HK)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

2017512 A31H Kk2016F12H
318 ' N"EEMBLIERES

REAREA o

2017512 A31H KX20164F12A
318 AEBEREERAER
B AR EFRF 8 o

R2017F12 3318 %20165F 12
318 - AEEEAFNELEE -

MR2017412 A31H k2016512 A
318 ' A"EBERNLEHEEE

B3 RIS o

13 BHE
(1) BEZE)GL

Balance at Additions Balance at
1 January during 31 December
2017 the year 2017
2017%1R1A XERM  2017F12831A
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,653,575 - 8,653,575
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
5,586,976 - 5,586,976
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BF 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)

Name of investee BREBN AR
Book value RERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ZERENEGES
Technology Co., Ltd. BBRAR
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. KEREHRET
BRAT
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice MEEAZEFRT
Co., Ltd. FHERRT
Sub-total et
Provision for impairment FE%ERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry REZENERES
Technology Co., Ltd. HERARAH
Sub-total NGt
Carrying amount REEE

Note &
(@) (@)
(o) (b)
(c) (c)

(@) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue Andre

Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB52,120,000 in 2014. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the

acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

164  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

13 HE (&)
(1) BEZE)ER (&)

Balance at Additions Balance at
1 January during 31 December
2016 the year 2016
201651418 REEN  2016F12731H
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
L Bessss T ... 865510
- (3,066,599) (3,066,599)
___________ - (00665%9 (3,066,599
8,653,575 (3,066,599 5,586,976

(a) M2014FE + KEBEXZF A

R#52,120,0007T 42 88 Ak A 4k
BT REREMNEEEERE
BRARRER - W AR
B IR T E R ETE
BEEREAR AR MHRE
E BEAREENEREAR
TERENEEEEREER
ARIAENEE -
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)
(b) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji Andre

Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash consideration of
RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The goodwill represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003. The goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s interests in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd.

(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill

recognised are Anyue Andre Lemon

Industry

Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

13 BE (&)

(o) R2011FE - AEEZ A

R¥56,201,585 T W B A A UL
BT KEBELZENRETERA
AR - WEKABERIZL
RS H OB R BN RETHE
RABAHKREE - BERAR
BEMNEZESEERERR
FOTERARIERENEE -

MR20083FE  AEEZ A
R#32,035,810 T 48 88 Ak AN 4k
BT HEREDRZENE; SRR
BRARAER - WIEK AR
BIZLL OISR AN ZE
PR B AR AR Al R E
E AEAREBEENEREAR
A& 5 O R ERRA KRB B R
ARIBENEE -

@) BEREER
REERE R B AR
BEMAEARTERBNER

EXMBRERAT

S R O /e
C KB TR
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d) 13 BHE (&)
(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill (cont’d) 2) EEREERE ()

The recoverable amounts of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. are
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected
future cash flows was projected based on the next
five-year financial forecast approved by management
and a pre-tax discount rate of 10.52% (2016: 10.00%).
The cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period
were assumed to be stable. Based on the estimated
recoverable amount calculated by the method above
at 31 December 2016, impairment loss on the goodwill
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd. amounting to RMB3,066,599 was recognised.
However, as key assumptions on which management
has made in respect of future cash projections are
subject to change, management believes that any
adverse change in the assumptions would cause the
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in estimating the present value
of expected future cash flows of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
include the estimated gross margin based on past
performance and expectations on market development
and stable sales volume, which were determined by
management based on past performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)

14 Deferred tax assets
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

14 BEFMBHEE
(1) REEZAEAL T35 A A

2017 2016
ltem BE 20174 20164
Deductible tax losses AT HEE 52,034,495 22,822,509

(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in (2) RBHF= 23FTEMN S5

Note 11.23, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB52,034,495 (2016: RMB22,822,509) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available to the Company.
The deductible tax losses can be deducted from future
taxable income within 5 years from the year when such
losses were incurred under current tax laws.

B © ARARRTERATEE
ESAARENEEBENR
REFFE - FEUEARQR]HA
AR ¥52 0384,4957C(2016
F: AR¥228225097T)H
REARNEBERELEMS
HEE - BIERITHE - B
ARHEEEEETERR - 7]
LATE SRR 385 4 A HA S K 40
RORFETLFNE ©

(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised (3) K IEZZIE AL FT 5 75 & 22 A A 18

deferred tax assets

Year

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

Total

F17

20174
20184
20194
20204
20214
20224

HIE 8 9 BB 1E
2017 2016
20174 20164
- 15,785,987
5,494,795 5,494,795
576,342 576,342
11,844 965,385
45,951,514 -

52,034,495 22,822,509
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

15 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, there
are no assets with restrictions placed on the Group’s
ownership.

16 Short-term loans

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

15 TERSFRARZZRFINEE
2017512 A31H Kk2016F12H
318 » NEBEEEEX DR G

HMEE °

16 JEHIE K

[tem 2017
58 20178
Annual Exchange
interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB
FfE Wi F%eH HEEE AR%RHE
Credit loans ERER 4.35% RMB - - 100,000,000
Guaranteed loans REET 4.35% RMB - - 30,000,000
Guaranteed loans REEA 4.39% RMB - - 40,000,000
Total = 170,000,000
[tem 2016
HH 20165
Annual Exchange
interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB
EE BiE REEE hEER  ARELE
Credit loans ERER 3.92%~4.11% RVB - - 130,000,000
Guaranteed loans REBMRER 4.26%~4.35% RMB = - 140,000,000
Guaranteed loans REEZ Base rate RMB - - 40,000,000
Guaranteed loans REER Shibor+0.05% RMB - - 30,000,000
Total At

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group did not have short-term loans past due.

Information for guaranteed loans is set out in Note X.5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

17 Accounts payable

Details of accounts payable are as follows:

Supplier type

Third parties
Related parties

Total

18 Employee benefits payable

R R

ENE=77
JE 1S R Bt

(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
— defined contribution plans

Total

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
— defined contribution plans

Total

72 B
BB A
—RERTFAE

ekl
BEBIR A

—RERFAE

17 FETERRX

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

FEREBRRUB R T ¢
2017 2016
20174 20164
83,277,765 61,254,089
3,091,850 4,073,137
86,369,615 65,327,226
18 FEAH T % Bp
(1) ERTEE T #HEN5R
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
20174 20175
1A1H FE/mM FERD 12A31H
21,574,064 50,488,482 50,996,802 21,065,744
- 4,306,647 4,096,724 209,923
21,574,064 54,795,129 55,093,526 21,275,667
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
20164 20164
1A1H ARELEIN RERHD 12A31H
18,370,361 50,587,814 47,384,111 21,574,064
- 3,813,663 3,813,663 -
18,370,361 54,401,477 51,197,774 21,574,064
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(R SIS - 2EEILAARMT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(2) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& - #% -

and subsidies

RRBL AL

Staff bonus and welfare fund B T 228

Social insurance
Medical insurance

rENES
teRRE
BERRRE

Work-related injury insurance ~ TERRE

Maternity insurance EERBE
Housing fund FEAES
Labour union fee and TEREMN

staffs’ education fee BI#EGE
Total G

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& * #% -

and subsidies

ERBAMERG

Staff bonus and welfare fund B T #%E

Social insurance

LEMNES
HeRBRE

Medical insurance BERRE

Work-related injury insurance ~ LiZRRE

Maternity insurance EERBE
Housing fund FEAES
Labour union fee and I@%&?%%ﬂ

staffs’ education fee BI#EKE
Total A
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I SHMBERRAEERGE)

18 BB THM (&)
2) R2E % B

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
20174 20174
1B1AH FEB/M FERD 12A31H
9,991,335 47,500,137 47,626,278 9,865,194
11,582,729 - 855,655 10,727,074
- 1,612,114 1,533,533 78,581

- 248,726 236,602 12,124

- 115,151 109,538 5,613

- 789,459 412,301 377,158

- 222,895 222,895 -
21,574,064 50,488,482 50,996,802 21,065,744
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2016 the year the year 2016
20164 20164
1A1H AREEIN RERHD 12A31H
5,943,389 48,352,751 44,304,805 9,991,335
12,426,972 - 844,243 11,582,729
- 1,405,034 1,405,034 -

- 216,777 216,777 -

- 100,360 100,360 -

- 333,577 333,577 -

- 179,315 179,315 -
18,370,361 50,587,814 47,384,111 21,574,064
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

18 BB THM (&)
(3) BEBIE AT —RELEfFat &/

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2017 the year the year 2017

20174 20174

1B1AH FEB/M FERD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance ﬁ$§%ﬁl‘ﬁ - 4,145,436 3,943,372 202,064
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 161,211 153,352 7,859
Total &5 - 4,306,647 4,096,724 209,923
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2016 the year the year 2016

20164 20164

1A1H AR RERD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance ﬁ$§%% s - 3,612,944 3,612,944 -
Unemployment insurance RERBRE - 200,719 200,719 -
Total Bt - 3,813,663 3,813,663 =

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its
staff. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at certain percentage or
certain amount of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its staff of last year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payables to retired employees.
The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with these
plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.

7R20179F12 A31 H & 20164
128318 @ A"EBEEMET
i EHE R E R FRIE o

BIEREEBES - AEEAR
HE T28EAMFRFLHEZ
EEBEEHIRAKTE - A&
B Bt iR IRET EIR B TH B 2
FrE B o LS E SRR
R o A TR THEA S E
NEREENZIEREL o
ANE Bk bl F 2 FRASN
BAR E L FT B A EE R
BRI RKEMEREME °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
19 Taxes payable 19 EXHE
2017 2016
ltem 1HH 20174 20164
Value added tax AT 8,792,448 30,933,062
Land use tax T AR 595,590 389,949
Property tax BER 552,970 220,084
Others Efb 1,062,241 53,237
Total =X 11,003,249 31,596,332
20 Dividends payable 20 FE{TBRF

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2017, the dividend for 2016
was RMBO0.05 per share totalling RMB18,400,000 was
approved for distribution to the shareholders of the

RIER2017F5 258 FT B %
AT RS EBAMNARESE 2016
FENREAERARKO.05
JC  FHEEF AR ¥18,400,000 T E

Company.

On 28 March 2018, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of cash dividends of RMB0.10 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2017. The proposal
is pending for approval of the shareholders’ meetings.

The Group did not have dividends payable outstanding

at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31

December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

21 Other payables

[tem

Third parties

22 Share capital

2017 17%
Total number of shares (725
Amount (RMB) ARESH
2016 20165
Total number of shares {725
Amount (RMB) AREEE

Balance at
the beginning
of the year

FNRE

368,000,000
368,000,000

381,000,000
381,000,000

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

21 HAfEARK

2017 2016
20174 20164
11,802,159 40,798,761
22 B
Changes during the year(+/-)
FESDAR
Balance at
Issue of Share  Purchase of the end of
new shares  consolidation ~ own shares Sub-total the year
BITHE Binat R it FXRA
(10,000,000 (10,000,000 358,000,000
(10,000,000) (10,000,000 358,000,000
(13,000,0000 (13,000,000 368,000,000
(18,000,0000  (13,000,000) 368,000,000
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

22 Share capital (cont’d) 22 BRAS(4])

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 25 May
2017 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased a total of 10,000,000
H shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
at prices ranging from HKD4.34 to HKD5.33 per H share,
for a total consideration of HKD45,793,341 (equivalent to
RMB39,744,040) (including the consideration for shares
repurchase, stamp tax and commission) from 5 June
2017 to 238 June 2017. The repurchased shares had been
cancelled and deregistered, and the Company’s issued
share capital was reduced by the amount equivalent to
the par value of the repurchased shares. Excess of the
repurchase price over the par value of the repurchased
shares were charged against the capital reserve. After the
capital reduction, the total number of shares was changed
from 368,000,000 shares to 358,000,000 shares with a
par value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered
capital was changed to RMB358,000,000.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 25 May
2016 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased 13,000,000
H Shares at a total consideration of HKD48,045,536
(equivalent to RMB41,064,520) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from 15 June
2016 to 11 July 2016. The repurchased shares had been
cancelled and deregistered, and the Company’s issued
share capital was reduced by the amount equivalent to
the par value of the repurchased shares. Excess of the
repurchase price over the par value of the repurchased
shares were charged against the capital reserve. After the
capital reduction, the total number of shares was changed
from 381,000,000 shares to 368,000,000 shares with a
par value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered
capital was changed to RMB368,000,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

23 Capital reserve 23 EXRRE
2017 2017
Balance at Additions  Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem = Note iz ERE FERM FEFD FXBH
Share premiums BABE V22 h22 47,025,829 - 29,744,040 17,281,789
Foreign currency translation INERATEER
difference 9,926 - - 9,926
Total AFf 47,035,755 - 29,744,040 17,291,715
2016 20164F
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end
of the year the year the year of the year
Item R Note iz ENMeE REEM RERD EXRBE
Share premiums BARGE V22 R22 75,090,349 - 28064520 47,025,829
Foreign currency translation INERATEER
difference 9,926 - - 9,926
Total AFf 75,100,275 - 28,064,520 47,035,755
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
24 Other comprehensive income 24 HiiRE W
Movements during the year 2017
NIERER
Balance at Balance at
the beginning Net-of-tax the end of
of the year amount the year
attributable to Less: transfer attributable to  attributable to
shareholders Before-tax toprofitor  Less: Income  shareholders shareholders of
of the Company amount loss  taxexpense of the Company  the Company
BERBLR
RRtEH A BENEALT
RRKE  AERARA  AMGAWE RERER  RRGAMES
fiem BE Enga BEN  BMEARE W :FRRER BAF  HREXEA
lems that may be reclassfed to proft orloss. M BEA B BRA
Ebfrols 2,041,764 - 2,041,764 - 2078 -
Including: gain or loss arising from changesn e : R ESRAE
fal value of avalable-for-sale N EER SR
financial assets 2,041,764 - 2,041,764 - (2,041,764) -
Moverents during the year 2016
WI6ERER
Balance at Balance at
the beginning Net-of-ax the end of
of the year amount the year
attributable to Less: transfer attrbutable to ~ attributble to
shareholders Before-tax foproftor ~ Less: Income shareholders — sharefolders of
of the Company amount loss tax expense o the Company ~ the Company
ReRmt B HIEEA FENEAT
Folim  TERERE Aeeks WHEER  RRBAfERS
fiem BE By BEE  EEEER N HERER §hn  WEERBE
Hems that may be reclassfed to proft orloss IR B EEERH
Ebfrals 178,336 2,041,764 178,35 - 1,963,408 2,041,764
Including: gain or loss arising from changesn e« AR ESRAE
fa value of avalble-for-sale N EEREER
financial assets 118,366 2,041,764 178,356 = 1,863,408 2,041,764
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

25 Surplus reserve
2017
ltem HH
Statutory surplus reserve EERBRATE
2016
ltem HH
Statutory surplus reserve EERBRAIE

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

25 BERAR

20174
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FEMERE XEBIN EXREET
105,794,859 1,316,273 107,111,132

20164
Balance at Additions Balance
the beginning during at the end
of the year the year of the year
FHEAEE IREEIE AN FRERTR
105,794,859 - 105,794,859

Pursuant to the requirements of the Company law in the
People’s Republic of China, appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve were made at 10% of after tax profit until

such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

REB(PEARKMBEREDE)E

167 15
F & FEE

TEAEEARNEE
 EEREAIES

10% P ARBEAEBBAE - A
REAEATEE BT EATIMER
HI50%FF + AJ LA EIRER o
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

26 Retained earnings

Item ER
At 1 January 2016 20161718
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AEEBREAT
to shareholders of the Company RERAEHE
Less: Apprapriation for statutory surplus reserve B REEHAE
Dividends payable to ordinary shares e LA
At 31 December 2016 2016%12A31H
At 1 January 2017 2017F1A18
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AERBRE AT
to shareholders of the Company RERAEHE
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RREBAR
Dividends payable to ordinary shares JER SRR
At 31 December 2017 2017F12A31H

As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserve of
the Company amounted to RMB340,496,213 (2016:
RMB347,049,764).

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared
during the year
Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 25 May 2017, a dividend payable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05
per share, totalling RMB18,400,000, was approved.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 25 May 2016, a dividend payable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05
per share, totalling RMB19,050,000, was approved.
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I SHMBERRAEERGE)

26 ADEHE

Appropriation or
Note Amount  distribution rate

i 8  RRAIELH

1,000,182,240

121,686,562
1) 19,050,000

) 1,102,818,802

1,102,818,802

95,066,858
1,316,273 10%
(1) 18,400,000

@ 1,179,069,387

MR2017%12H318 @+ XA RA[ 5
ERTARBIRR 2 HEESEAA
R #340,496,2137T(20164F : A
R#347,049,7647T) °

(1) 7B ZERALF

RIE2017F5 A25H R A S
RIHLE - A E) B R
KRS PA - §R%0.057T -
H5+18,400,0007T °

B 15 20164F5 A 25 H IR B A
SHHLE - ARQ A AR
BREZEBRSRKRF @ &K
AR¥O0.05T ' Ht AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

26 Retained earnings (cont’d)
(2) Retained earnings at the end of the year
Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2017 and
attributable to the Company is RMB18,473,388 (2016:
RMB11,726,335).

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
retained earnings attributable to the Company
included appropriation to surplus reserves
made by the Company’s subsidiaries amounting
to RMB129,150,486 (31 December 2016:
RMB115,863,795).

27 Operating income and operating costs

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

26 K2 FeFIE (&)

(2) XA BLFE R EH 8
FRAANFREMNEBR S
REIMBHBLATBEBAARK
18,473,388 (20164 : AR
#11,726,3357T ) °

R2017F12A31 8 + A&EE
FBRERARIMARD A EF
BE T ARRINTF R AR
BHpniE AR129,150,486
Je(20165F12A31H : AR
115,863,7957T) °

27 BRI ~ ERAA

2017 2016

20175 20164F
Income Cost Income Cost
[tem ] KA BE WA D%
Principal businesses FEEH 895,293,024 607,647,638 870,565,102 628,829,586
Other businesses HAh 37 5,748,146 2,131,985 4,632,010 2,363,739
Total aEr 901,041,170 609,779,623 875,197,112 631,193,325

Operating income generated from principal businesses
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products, and income from provision of juice
processing services. Operating income generated from
other businesses represents primarily the sales of
packaging materials, rental income and others.

TEEBRAREARENRE
ROTRBBEERHEERA - A
RBHRAMIRBOBA - &
EBRALTRIEHEBRYSE
MRA - HEWAE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

28 Taxes and surcharges

[tem

Urban maintenance and
construction tax

Education surcharges

Property tax

Land use tax

Others

Total

29 Selling and distribution expenses

[tem
Freight charges

Payroll and welfare
Others

Total

THH

T R AR

B &M
FEM
TR
Hity

HH

BE
TE®RF
Hitp
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I SHMBERRAEERGE)

28 HE KM
2017 2016
20175 20164
3,298,129 2,008,218
3,028,253 1,921,483
3,605,517 2,858,564
4,671,804 3,096,037
946,979 1,053,885
15,550,682 10,938,187

20 HEEH

2017 2016
20175 20164
47,980,070 43,391,251
1,507,745 1,610,610
20,389,640 27,980,595
69,877,455 72,982,456
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

30 General and administrative expenses

31

[tem

Payroll and welfare
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

HH

TE®RF
FEBMEHE

Research and development expenses #ff 2 &

Repair and motor vehicle expenses

Auditors’ remuneration

— Audit services

— Other Service
Other consulting services fees
Others

Total

Financial expenses

[tem

Interest expenses arising from
borrowings

Interest income from deposits

Net exchange losses/(gains)

Other financial expenses

Total

HIEBNMERE M
TR =
—Ei B
—HipfrF% &
HibrE RS &
Hitp

S5

B H

BEREMB

R ORI ON

B3I (28
HiBTE R
At

e ERREEEEE)
30 EEEH
2017 2016
20175 20164
21,663,691 22.127,507
7,450,843 7,139,888
1,626,634 1,177,059
708,235 925,771
1,480,000 1,480,000
1,680,000 =
2,173,023 2,410,986
18,157,666 18,646,549
54,940,092 53,907,760
31 BIBER
2017 2016
20174 20164
7,174,714 14,446,249
(425,062) (1,270,409)
13,678,002 (14,220,444)
509,104 1,138,901
20,936,758 94,297
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(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
32 Impairment losses 32 BERMERRX
2017 2016
ltem A 20174 2016%F
Fixed assets &l & &= 31,938,300 =
Inventories FE 3,441,558 (80,584)
Accounts receivable JE U BR K 1,536,215 3,442,689
Goodwill 5k - 3,066,599
Total At 36,916,073 6,428,704
33 Gains/(losses) from changes in fair value 33 AAEEREWKE (BX)
2017 2016
ltem T H 20174 2016%F
Financial assets at fair value through AR R EBEERHE
profit or loss STAE HBER
SR EE 79,304 (79,304)
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

34 Investment income

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

34

Investment income by item

ltem

Losses from disposal of a subsidiary
Investment income from holding
available-for-sale financial assets
Investment income from disposal of
financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Including: financial assets held
for trading
Investment income from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Including: Transfers from other
comprehensive income

Total

35 Government grants
(1) Government grants related to assets

BHE

REFARELNEBX
AL ESREEERF
HARRI AR B sk

REARAEEFERR
ST AEHEDNER
BERFORE RS
H: RHEERMEE

REFHHNESRHEE
SR B W zn
Hep : B AR BA

The government grants related to assets of the Group

for 2017 are as follows:

(@) Effect on related assets

[tem

Offset against book value of fixed assets
Grant for production line modification

#HENE e

A ERBUERE)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

RE W=
R & Wzt 7R B IER

2017 2016
20174 20164
(2,916,477 —
- 423,455
2,347,734 1,251,345
2,347,734 1,251,345
3,371,066 2,852,791
2,041,764 178,356
2,802,323 4,527,591

35 BUF@BD

(1) HEZEFHRGRIE ST 8)
NEB2017FE EHE E BN
BTN T

(@ HEEHBNETE

2017
20175

HRETEEEREER

3,127,500
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

35 BATHEBY ()
(1) EEEZEERFLIBNT#E) (&)
(o) HELEWSNZE

35 Government grants (cont’d)
(1) Government grants related to assets (cont’d)
(b) Effect on deferred income

Balance at the Offset against Balance at

beginning book value of the end of

of the year Additions fixed asset Others the year

REHE 54 hEEE BEKE

ftem fABER ENBE HE & FERE bait ) EXiR
Grant for production line modffication  AESMIERE] 3,127,500 - (3,127,500) - -

2) Eizs 1EREEIB T B

(2) Government grant related to income

In 2017, the Group received grants totaling
RMBH1,474,788 from various government authorities
as rewards for its contributions to local economic
development, which are directly included in other
income.

In 2016, the Group received grants various government
authorities as rewards for its contribution to research
and development of fruit juice concentrate technology,
local environmental protection and development of
local agriculture, which are included in non-operating
income.

In 2017, Anyue Economic and Technological
Information Bureau directly appropriated loan interest
of RMB350,000 to the Group, which offsetted against
the subsidy costs.

36 Non-operating income
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

ltem L] Note
Government grants DgEREEE) V.35
Others Hith
Total Bt

184  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

i3

R2017FE - AEEKE %
EER AT ZBPI i BE A 2B AN & &
HEMEEERNEE LS
1,474,7887T * HEFAEAM
U 2% o

R2016FE - AEEWKE %
18 BT BB P9 8 R A 2R B AR £R (B
HRRBRITOME - Bt
RERENEMWREZERNE
Bl REAZRIMRA -

R2017EE - REHLER
REEREERNGEAEET
¥ EE 78 E3850,0007T ¢
FRRETRIAISER o

36 EEIMIA
(1) EZIMIAZERERZT -
2017 2016
20174 20164
- 19,473,861
514,069 1,652,783
514,069 21,126,644




V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

37 Non-operating expenses

[tem

Forfeiture
Others

Total

38 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for
the year based on tax law and
regulations

Provision of income tax for
previous years

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 15 BlERE )

P REREBARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

37 BEHZH
2017 2016
I8 B 20175 2016%F
08 TR 100,000 -
B 185,696 30,382
=X 285,696 30,382
38 FIBHER
2017 2016
HE 20175 20164
ERERBER T E
K& F TS
82,670 526,016
HIRARIEE R PTS & R
52,973 874,504
A 135,643 1,400,520
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

38 Income tax expenses (cont’d)
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and
accounting profit is as follows:

ltem BHH

DIE e
B R26%5t BRI SR

Profit before taxation

Expected income tax expenses at
tax rate of 25%

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of different tax rates
applied by certain subsidiaries

Effect of unrecognised deferred tax
asset for deductible losses for the
current year

S HiHS
FRRERTANEHNTE

AERAERELEFASHEEN
AENEEYE

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

38 FREHLE A ()

Fri& T & A B 5t R 8 &A1
T

Effect of using deductible losses
for which no deferred tax asset
was recognised in previous years

ERARERELEREHEEN
A ENBRNE &

Tax filings differences EEEHER

Effect of non-deductible costs, TRHEMAKAR - BRAA
expenses and losses BREFE

Income tax expenses REMBHER

186  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

2017 2016
20174 20164
96,102,501 123,087,082
24,025,625 30,771,771
(49,018,403) (30,984,428)
10,393,803 467,106
11,487,879 =
(975,999) (660,569)
52,973 874,504
4,169,765 932,136
135,643 1,400,520
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

39 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 39 EEREEME
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are EEREEMEZHBAT
as follows:
Salaries,
Directors' and allowances and Retirement scheme
supervisors' fees benefits in kind contributions Total
BEERER 558 Bt
Narme 4 fig REREMRA HERR it

o7 06 M7 06 N7 N6 07 2016
AF 065 007F 0165 NF  016F  017F  2016%
RMB RMB  RMB  RvB  RMB  RWB RMB  RWB
AB% ARE AR \RE ARR  \ER ABR  ARR

Executive Directors: H1E%:
Wang An 1% 50,000 50,000 17,067 241,899 1,186 13,139 68,263 305,088
Zhang Hui FiE 50000 50000 271,468 241899 14,132 13,139 335,600 305,038
Wang Yanhui TaE 50000 50000 120432 132,116 14,1382 13,139 184,564 195,295
Non-executive Directors: FaES:
Liu Tsung-yi 87E 50,000 50,000 = - - - 50,000 50,000
Independent non-executive Directors: BuiHnEs:
Gong Fan =f] - 20830 - - - - - 2083
Chow Kam Hung Bt - 080 - - - - - 080
Li Tongning 3= 50,000 50,000 = - - - 50,000 50,000
Jiang Hongai £i5 50000 29,170 - - - - 50000 29170
Li Wi 38 50000 29,170 - - - - 50000 29170
Supenvisors: EZ:
Wang Chuntang 15z 30,000 30,000 - - - - 30,000 30,000
Da Liying EIE 30000 2125 8557 129716 14132 13139 162680 164,105
Wang Zniwu IFH 30,000 17500 147426 120,000 14,132 16,505 191,558 154,005
Yu Jiang il - 870 - - - - - 8TH0
Zhang Suoping AT = 12,500 - - - - - 12,500
Tota Aif 40000 440000 674950 865630  5TTM4 69061 1,172,664 1374691
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December #HZE2017F12 A31H K20165F12
2016, no emoluments were paid to the directors or AB1HLLEFE  ARARERAE
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the = & B = A B 2 DA E 22 R
Company or as compensation for loss of office. S| E hn A ZR 2 7] & 22 ) ok B B 4

f& -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
40 Individuals with the highest emoluments 40 BEFAL
For the year ended 31 December 2017, of the five BE2017F12A31BLLFE - &
individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2016: three) Mfm%ﬁ/\fﬁ‘*‘ : @A(2016$ :
are executive directors or supervisors whose emoluments SANBRTESHES  HME
are disclosed in Note V.39 above. The aggregate of ERMER - 39F FUAEKE - &
the emoluments in respect of the other one (2016: two) ﬁﬂ_i\(2016¢ ZAN)Z B
individuals are as follows: AR
2017 2016
20174 20165
Salaries and other emoluments HehEMmie 155,765 339,311
Retirement scheme contributions RIKEFETEI 3R 20,171 27,796
Total &t 175,936 367,107
The emoluments of the one (2016: two) individual with M?ﬁ%ﬁ)\i(zomi ZAH
the highest emoluments are within the following band: LA TEE 2 A -
2017 2016
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
20174 20164
AB AE
HKD Nil-HKD1,000,000 AT IT-8%1,000,0007T 1 2
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

41 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per N EXSREZNRESREEN
share TEIBRE

(1) Basic earnings per share (1) ZX &Y

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing EXRFGHREEARERARE

consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary A R B & BFF AR BR A

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average AR B BATAESNE B A0
number of ordinary shares outstanding: FHEEE -

2017 2016

20175 20164

Consolidated net profit attributable to 53 BR AN )% 3@ AR AR R A
ordinary shareholders of the X tlNE
Company 95,966,858 121,686,562

Weighted average number of ordinary 4NA RIB$/TEINE AR

shares outstanding INHET 2 362,379,110 374,264,001
Basic earnings per share HEARGR
(RMB/share) (AR%T/ 1) 0.265 0.325
Diluted earnings per share wEgks
(RMB/share) (AR®ET/B) 0.265 0.325
The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares REE RS ROFEEAGTE
during the reporting period. BB T ER o
(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is (2) ZBEARE I 25 E AR
calculated as follows: W -
2017 2016
20175 20165
Issued ordinary shares at the FHBEBITL BRI
beginning of the year 368,000,000 381,000,000
Effect of repurchase of own shares  BEIEERX) H) 52 (5,620,890) (6,735,999)

Weighted average number of ordinary 47k i 3@ % &) it
shares at the end of the year T8 362,379,110 374,264,001
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

42 Supplement to income statement

Expenses are analysed by their nature:

ltem

Operating income
Less: Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress
Raw materials and packaging
materials used
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Other expenses
Add: Investment income
Other Income

Operating profit

B HE

EZION
B ERmREERNFE

RRNRITE %

BIHFMER
EMEHER

MEER
BERERR
Hiw&Em
m:REWE
Hfo Uz

CE

43 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement
(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities:

Proceeds from the lease of
buildings and the sales of
raw materials

Receipts of government grants

Total

FERERHERMHE
W BIHIR &

WS ) B K 8 B

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

42 FARERER

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

HMBRTNERREE N

2017 2016
20174 20164
901,041,170 875,197,112
34,966,370 71,746,283
508,276,859 475,782,202
54,795,129 54,401,477
44,433,053 49,596,031
20,936,758 94,297
36,916,073 6,428,704
109,119,911 119,684,889
2,802,323 4,527,591
1,474,788 =
95,874,128 101,990,820

43 REREBREBFR

(1) WHR b B2 45 2% B) B ffF 2 B2

iE
2017 2016
20174 20164
5,748,146 4,632,010
1,878,512 5,116,278
7,626,658 9,748,288
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 AR BEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

43 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement 43 RERBREE TR (H)
(cont’d) -

(2) Payments relating to other operating activities: ) ITE M EAS 25 B B a9 22
z

2017 2016

20175 20164F

Payments for period expenses XS IBEHEE R 108,302,828 70,137,946

(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities: (3) Yo Bl A 1 BAR & F B B 22
%

2017 2016

20174 20164

Receipts of relating to interest BB 17 3R
income on deposits PN 425,062 1,270,409
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

44 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities:

ltem

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible asset
Provisions for impairment of assets
Losses from disposal of fixed assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
(Gains)/losses from changes in

fair value

Decrease in gross inventories
Increase in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating
payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

b. Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

JBE

A
meEEEERE
B EEMH
BERERRX
REBEFEEEMNFRKX
M ER
RAEWS
DRBEED
(W) 1R%
FEMRD
KRR
Bl
REEENREM
&,/ CRd)

BERHELN
REREFHE

HH

Re LR EEYHN
FREBE
B BekRESEDN
FHIERER

BeMREFHED
O,/ h0ER

192  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

44 BEREBRMEBAER
(1) BemEXkHaEN

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

a. FFNBEHABARELED

Beme
2017 2016
20175 20164
95,966,858 121,686,562
41,265,151 46,711,099
3,167,902 2,884,932
36,916,073 6,428,704
1,522,774 2,109,850
13,174,671 8,590,256
(2,802,323) (4,527,591)
(79,304) 79,304
32,465,595 70,471,773
(88,280,459) (51,541,938)
2,439,099 (7,989,742)
135,756,037 194,903,209
b. Be kR EEBWFE
(P
2017 2016
20175 20164
79,398,474 110,178,784
110,178,784 106,373,059
(30,780,310) 3,805,725




(cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements kol

44 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(cont’d)

(2) Information on disposal of a subsidiary during the year:

Consideration for disposal of
a subsidiary

Cash or cash equivalents received
for disposal of a subsidiary
Less: Cash or cash equivalents
held by the subsidiary

Net cash received for the disposal
of a subsidiary

RETRAINEE

RETRARKEINREM
ReEEY
B TRRRANREMN
ReEEY

REFRARXMNHREHE

(3) Information on disposal of a joint venture during the

year:

Consideration for disposal of
a joint venture

Cash or cash equivalents received
during the year for disposal of a
joint venture during the year

Less: Tax expenses paid for

equity transfer

Add: Cash or cash equivalents

received during the year for

disposal of a joint venture in

previous years

RERERAIMEIE

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

SHMBERREFE(E)

44 BERERMERAER (E)

@) BEF2 AlAIIERE 8

AERE S ERAINAFYRI|N

RedREFEY
B XEIRTREESERE
m: AR FEEREERZE QAR

AEWHMR S K
ReEEY

Net cash received for the disposal of E &S & A UEIHIR & 558

a joint venture

2017 2016
20174 20164
84,800,000 -
44,520,000 =
75,301 -
44,444,699 -

B) BEA E1E 6158
2017 2016
20174 20164
- 551,129
- 29,205,200
= 28,654,071

—Z—tFFHK Annual Report 2017

193



Notes to the Financial Statements

§t 35 ¥ AR B o
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

44 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(cont’d)

(4) Details of cash and cash equivalents

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand
Including: Cash on hand
Bank deposits
available on

demand

Closing balance of cash
and cash equivalents

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

44 BERERMERAER (E)

(1) B2 RBEL ZENHEA

2017 2016
IHH 20175 20164
He 79,398,474 110,178,784
HEep - EFRS 127,396 119,741
ATEER AR A A
SRITER
79,271,078 110,059,043
FRA S KIAEEEYHE
79,398,474 110,178,784
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

VI Change of consolidation scope N SttEEnEE
Disposal of subsidiaries BEETAT
Disposal of investments in subsidiaries through a single BREEH TR ARERIELIEHE

transaction resulting in loss of control

Difference Investment
between income or loss
consideration transferred
received and from other
the related  comprehensive
share of net income related

Basis for assets in to

Shareholding  Shareholding determining consolidated previous equity

being being Disposal Date of date of losing financial  investments in

Entity name disposed  disposed (%) method losing control control statements subsidiaries
EERRE

EERREE  HRTLR
mafuia: RERRERND
EESAE  RtRagR

i ki B B% b3 TAEEE  HARERE
Bfi%i RERR RELA REFS Db ol RRNRERE ENEMER HaR
(%)

Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 84,800,000 100% Transfer 21 December 2017 Industrial and (2,916,477) -
ENZEHETRRARAT LE 2017512A218 commercia

registration of

changes
On 21 December 2017, the Group disposed 100% equity R2017FE12 8218  AN&EE A4 %
interest in Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. for a total 884,800,000 i & FTIF B 8B M %
consideration of RMB84,800,000. Upon completion of the ERRAEREHR A T 100%A%#E o
disposal, Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. ceased to be a RHEETKE  BMNEERN R AR
subsidiary of the Group. BRARTBIEREAEBZFRF °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

VIl Interests in other entities

Interests in subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

+t EHRMERPHER

EFATPHER
(1) BB R EZET R HF
/'\‘37

Closing balance
of other items
that in Group
substance share Group

Place of Year-end formnet  holding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual  investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organisation
Full name ~ Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#ed
FAERRE  RERR RERAR
HRiR EXRR  HARER ith ithl 5]
3] L ERMR  RERE ihEs #2EE if 4] BH (%) () &R HRENRE
Baishui Ancre  Company Limited Shaanxi, PRC~ Manufactre ~ USD17,125,000 Manufacture of juice, frut and  USD17,125,000 - 100% 100% Y 730664478
Juice Go., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of vegetable beverage, and
venture) condensed juice related products, and ron
packaging; and sale of own
products.
OXRERIES ARAMLE  WEREE  BERMER 1B00ET SERSTERT EETE M1500%T - 0% 100% B 73066478
TRRAA  (haE) e HREEER R
0 HEEEEn -
Yantai Longkou Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufectre ~ USD12,235,000  Manufacture of uice and sale  USD12,236,000 - 100% 100% Y 187209715
Andre Juice  (Sino-foreign joint and sale of of own prodlucts.
Co d. venlurg) condensed juice
ARNZEH ARAMLT  PELRE  BERTEER  12085000%n EEREL UHEAEE  12035000%n - 0% 100% B 19129715
%Wﬁ& (ha%) e me
27l
Xuzhou Andre - Company Limited Jiangsu, PRC~ Manufacture USD10,000,000 Manufacture of juice, frut -~ USD10,000,000 = 100% 100% Yo 743134253
Juice Go., L1d. - (Sinoforeign joint and sale of and vegetable heverage,
venture) condensed juice and related products; sale
of own products; and
manufacture of iron barel
for juice outer packaging.
PHRENRA BREAAT  4EIHE  RERTEER 10000000FT HERET SEREEE  10000000%T - 10% 100 B 74314053
TERAR  (PAaR) HE m HEEEERD R

WW\@ L -
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

(cont’d)

Place of
Registration ~ Business

Full name  Type and operation nature

HMR
) L ERME  REER
Andre Juice ~ Company Limited British Virgin -~ Investment
Co, Ltd. [slands holaing
REHRER BRAAAD  ZBERREE RENR
A7
North Andre ~ Company Limited The United  Sale of condensed
Juice (USA) States of juice
Inc. America
FhRENRT BREAARD  XE RERTHE
(X8R
BT

Registered
capital

s
USD50,000

5000057

USD10,000

1000027

Business scope

Investment holding.

A -

Sale of condensed juice.

RERTHE -

(B 15 BlERE )

P REREBARET)

+t ERMERPHERGR)

EFAFPHRER (F)
(1) BB 7 318 B F 7 = 15 89 F
NIIE )
Closing balance
of other items
that in Group
substance share Group
Year-end fomnet  holding voting rights
actual  investment percentage percentage Consolidated  Organisation
investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#eY
FAERRE  REGR SERAE
EXER  HEAER i) i) &E
i) { ] i (%) (o)  &fEx HREARE
USD1 - 100% 100% Y -
1571 - 0% 100 % -
USD10,000 - 100% 100% Y -
1000087 - 100% 100% % -
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

+t ERMERPHERGR)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) EFARIFHER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment (1) BBER T F K EZET NRIZHF
(cont’d) ~a] (&)
Closing balance
of other items
that in Group
substance share Group
Place of Year-end fomnet  holding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organisation
Full name ~ Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#eY
FATRRE  RERR RERAE
iR EXRR  HARER ith ih &E
) L ERME  REER ihEs #eEE &8 B (%) (o)  &fEx HREARE
Dalian Andre -~ Company Limited Liaoning, PRC~ Manufactre ~ RMBB0,000,000 Manufacture and sale of al  RMBB0,000,000 - 100% 100% Y 95904248-7
Juice Co,, Ltd. and sale of inds of frit and vegetable
condensed juice beverage; biological
comprehensive Utization of
apple essence, vegetable
and pomace; and purchase
of agricultural and sideline
products (excluding grain);
and manufacture of iron
packaging; imports and
exports of goods and
fechnology.
AEREHRE ARAAARD GEREE  RERMEER 60000000 AERERERHME 80,000,000 - 0% 100% B 0004087
ITERAT HE AR BRER BERE) ARET

el - RalEn
(REERINE - Sesl
BRE - EHRATELD
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d) +t EHMEEPHNES(E)
Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) EFARIFHER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment (1) BB 7 318 B F 7 = 15 89 F
(cont’d) ~a] (&)
Closing balance

of other items
that in Group
substance share Group

Place of Year-end formnet  holding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organisation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#eH
FARMRE  RERR  SERAE
iR EXRR  HARER ith ith 4]
) 7 ERMR  REME ihEs #eEE if £ B (%) () &R HREARE
Binzhou Ancre Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufactre ~ USD12,100,000 Manufacture of beverage, high  USD12,100,000 - 100% 100% Y 751757838
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of natural apple essence, and
venture) condensed juice iron packaging; biological

comprehensive Utization
of pomace, and other
extended products; winter
jujule storage; sale of own
products.
BNEEHRT ARARAT  wELEE  BGEEEER 1210001 LERH SERREER  121000%T - f0% 100%
PHERAR (RAeE) HE f - BERRR - Ra
EGATBRAMERE
i AREH - HERLT
Eme

151757338

Ao

Yantai Andre  Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture and ~ USD4,832,000  Manufacture and processing ~ USD4,832,000 - 100% 100% Y T3066786-6
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint sale of frutt pulp of all kinds of fuit pulp and
venture) related products, and sale
of own products; wholesale
and import and export of
juice and pulp.
feZEHRt ARAAAD  MEUFE  RREERBE  48000ET 4E MISEARRERE 482000%% - 0% 100%
PHERAR (RoaE) AEn VHEREER
ERERT  RonE
MEEnEE -

73066788-6

Ao
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

+t ERMERPHERGE)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) EFATPHER (&)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not 2) FEE—#H T EE HRZEF
under common control A
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of from net shareholding voting rights
Registration and Registered Year-end actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organisation
Full name ~ Type operation  Business nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#ed
FATBRE  RERR SERAE
HMR EXRR  HARER ih ith 4]
W L ERMR  REME ihEs #e2EE if ] BH (%) () &R HRENRE
Yongj Ancte  Company Limted Shanxi, PRC ~ Production USD12,960,000  Manufacture and sale of fruit ~ USD12,960,000 - 100% 100% Y 79638416-X
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of and vegetable juice and
venture) condensed juice beverage, high natural apple
essence, and biological
comprehensive Utization of
pomace.
KERENRA ARAFA  tELEE  RERTEER  12060000%T 4EHESEREL. 12060000871 - 0% 100% B 19633415
TRRRE  (heE) e i BEANERAR
SRR -
Anyue Andre - Company Limted  Sichuan, PRC Production RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and sale of lemon RMB50,000,000 - 100% 100% Y 569715959
Lemon and sale of juice, orange juice, lemon
Industry condensed juice ol lemon essence, orange
Technology £55enCe and pomace.
Co,, Ltd.
REREN EREMARA  REDNY  RERAEER 50000000 MERERST Bt BE 50000000 - 0% 100 B 569715969
REERHA HE ARET bR BERR R NRET
BRAT RS
Liguan Ytong  Company Limited Shaanx, PRG  Producon ~ RMB100,000,000 Manufacture and sale of frut RMB100,000,000 = 100% 100% Y 586362759
Juice Co, Ltd. and sale of and vegetable juice and
condensed juice Deverage.
EXERRAT ARAAAT  REWEY  RERTEER 100000000 42 HERERAL 100,000,000 - f0% 100 B 586962759
AR HE ARET  #if NRET
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Interest rate risk

— Foreign currency risk
— Other price risk

The following mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their
changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance.
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(1) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash at bank, receivables and interests,
etc. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

AN

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

B & mh T FL 48 BRAY B B

AEBEREERDTEGSESHT
HEmREk - TEZ6%H

— (ERER
— RENMEER
— FEER

~ EALEEER

T E 2wttt R e i Ko B AZAK
RRRRERFRENRL - ERE
BEER  BEAMEFANERRD
TEREERFHEENBESE o

AEEEERREENRERERR
M s 2 BEGEE /T - HRE
1K< R e 3 A 5 B 75 SR AR ) TN
FE - ENZEREERR - AKE
B I 78 [ B B 3R R R DA g8 Bl A 0 4 R
SEMERNRR @ REEEOER
A] 5 SRS 3 3% AT AR A PO B4R A2
FoAEEASENRERKFE - K
SEeTHEHELRAREERRK
BRAARES RS - NERTHIEN
FAEEZLERDHNE - AEEH
M EPRET B PI L E HAkBEmE N &L
ZHI RGBT REE T A AR ERIK

s

Eﬁ o

(1) EARE
EARKE  RESBRIEN—F
TEBITER BB —HEE
HBBAHRR - AEBHER
EREBEREEEED  BUK
BNRESE - EEESHEEE

BLERARMKO o
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions may

default and cause losses to the Group.

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers to determine the credit limit and terms
applicable to the customers. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ financial position, the external ratings
of the customers and their bank credit records where
available. Receivables are due between 15 and 240
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not

obtain collateral from customers.

In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data are
analysed by the Group according to some factors, such

as ageing and maturity date.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, 45% (2016: 37%) of the total accounts receivable
and other receivables were due from the five largest
customers of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the
Group that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.
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I\ E&RT RAARMAY R (1)
(1) = RAER (&)

AEERBRESMINEBRES T
EERRERARIITFOS BEE -
EEERRETFEEANER
Rk - BHAERASHTENM
FRANEREERIER o

HREWZE  AEERRKRERE
ZESERBEERBRAGE T
BEE  HRPETERFMHA
BEREHBEEEERAER - 58
TEEBREBETZFOM BT
INEREE AR M SR1T1E AR e (A0 Al

c BB AR HAKRE
H#E15-240 K N E|HY - FEUFKIA
BHNERASEEREEEA
BREERTE T AESE—
FTWEREE - E—RBERT -
AEETEEREFREEKER

o

BERAEENEAER - A%
iR - A SR A
SE TP EREITH -

AREBEZHRR E%’é%ﬁtfl%
FEERFENTEE  mMTREREF
FRTERT %II%%W@oH%
BAEHARBRETFNELEZR
BASEGFESEENREEMNER
M TRIE - REERBMERXRA &
ESEMNATARNTFE B EKREAR
= (5] jiE Wi BR ZRORN EL e Uk TR 4 EE
7145% (20164 : 37%) : o
2 62 B 5K 360 HA th oK Uk 1B O FE MR
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

@

~

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long-term strategic purposes, and counterparties
have equivalent or higher credit ratings than the Group.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

I\ BEeRT A4EMas S ()

(1)

)

ERER (&)
AEE-—RASKRERBERD
BRESF(REBRRERIN)
MEXRZHTMERFRAESR
HEANEEER - ERRHH T
MERMRRLY  ANEEEERE
YA BERRSEH T @EEEITE
% o

LR B P A S R B KA R LB R
NOREERBRTEBESREE
MERESE -  NEREDRERHEL
fa] Ho AT BE < AN R B AR E A&
BEVER o

B RS
mBERRE - RIEERERITNA
INReREBEREENT A
RENBETRELEESRRANE
B ARBRBETARIARAES
MRSEETIE  BERASAEHK
IR ENEBE S RARN A
ARSFR(MRERERBR L
EREELR  BRESALA
ESgnitE) ARBNRRE
EHERERMERNRSES
TR UAERREFTA B pHE
ME - MEERER THARS M
AR ERNAER S
&S T ESmEEARIERN
RANERES - UineEHM
BRPNRBHESFR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group

can be required to pay:

ltem

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans
Accounts payable and

other payables
Long-term payables

Net amount

ltem

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans
Accounts payable and

other payables
Long-term payables

Net amount

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

BH

R e

B R
EfRE

RHEER

H

TRAR
R
E e
MR
RAEMR

N\ EemT R4 EE(E)

(2) B R B ()
AEERNEERBERANTRA

BIRAFHENERR

eRE(BRE

BRERME(MRZZBHF XAz
12 A31BMBRTHE)FEF
BIHRIREOMR - ARFER
XA ERF AEIT

2017 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

WITEFANERRLRE

More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than balance
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  sheet date
1£RE REfAfR
ERRE 1£352% 2EF5E 5EH L &H IREREE
172,284,427 - - - 172,284,421 170,000,000
98,171,774 - - - 98,171,774 98,171,774
- - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 840,584
270,456,201 - - 1,111,000 271,567,201 269,012,358

2016 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

NICFRTRM AR ERE

More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than More than balance
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total shest date
1R, BERRER
ERER R0F 25FE5E SELLE At HREEE
345,065,019 - - - 345,065,019 340,000,000
106,120,987 - - - 106,120,987 106,120,987
- - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 803,552
451,186,006 - - 1,111,000 452,297,006 446,924,539

REEFZEFRTROBRAF
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(@) As at 31 December, the Group held the following
interest-bearing financial instruments:

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

N\ EemT R4 EE(E)

(3) Fl== =B

Bl EMEMFBNENE ST B
TASRIEAKEEEERAEBE
MEEBREBEERENRRAR -
AREBERBEMHRRAORE B E
MEREFENH R T A - A
BATHEHNEERERESN
BEMIBMNETAES - K&
B R IADT A & B T B S A =X
[\ o

(a) AEER12831HiFHEIETE
EHITAMT

Fixed rate instruments: BEIEFfESMTA :
2017 2016
2017 20165
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
Item L f {45 &f BRI x|
Financial liabilities TRAR
- Short-term loans R 4.35%~4.39% (170,000,000) 3.92%~4.35% (270,000,000)
Total ait (170,000,000) (270,000,000)
Variable rate instruments: FEHAEEMTA:
2017 2016
2017% 2016%
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem JEH EflE &f % Ex ]
Financial assets SREE
- Cash at bank -R1ER 0.01%~0.30% 79,271,078 0.01%~1.75% 110,059,043
Financial liabilties EHAR
- Short-term loans —REEET - - Base rate/Shibor+0.05% (70,000,000)
FEFIZ / Shibor+0.05%
Total At

79,271,078

40,059,043
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s equity by RMB297,267 (2016: RMB150,221),
and net profit by RMB297,267 (2016: RMB150,221).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
impact on the net profit and equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and payable, short-term loans and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

206 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T

I\ BEeRT A4EMas S ()

(8) =@M (&)

(b) BEEIEDHT
R2017F12A31 8 » EEM
BETEHNBERT - BEF X
EASOEER S B AER
% R A 2R 18 0 A R #5297 ,267
o(2016 F: # 0 A R &
150,22170) ' FFEE AR
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AR#150,2217) ©
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ H&mpT AEREAY RS ()

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (4) EXmk(E)

(a) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency (a) AEBER12A31 B EINE
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities EEBAEEA EXRRRHA
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in T o BR%IFHREE - EB O
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the SHEUARKTIR - WEES
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, BERENBHEXFE o HMNER
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date. RITEEZBABEENA -

Differences resulting from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements and the description of
other exposure items that are excluded.

2017 2016
20176 20164
Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at
foreign RMB foreign RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
g nE
ltem JHE SheEeREE PN:d 1 SNV EREE ARERE
Cash at bank and ErEe
on hand
UsD ETT 4,571,418 29,870,561 13,586,237 94,247,726
HKD B 372,819 311,639 511,214 457,281
Accounts receivable JE Wt BR 3R
Usb T 26,585,660 173,716,019 17,511,833 121,479,586
Accounts payable FETER R
UsD ETT (745,120) (4,868,766) (5,554,347) (38,530,500)
Net balance sheet BEBERHD
exposure FE
usb X 30,411,958 198,717,814 25,543,723 177,196,806
HKD Pt 372,819 311,639 511,214 457,281
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi
against foreign currencies applied by the Group:

Average rate

AN

B om T AR E (&)

(4) ERER(H)
(b) FEBE A BB H N4
[EEDHTIAT -

Reporting date
mid-spot rate

FiyESE BEAPRES
2017 2016 2017 2016
201745 20164 20174 20164
HKD pigees 0.8652 0.8662 0.8359 0.8945
usD I 6.7356 6.7153 6.5342 6.9370

(c) Sensitivity analysis
Assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US
dollar and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would
have decreased the Group’s equity and net profit by
the amount shown below, whose effect is in Renminbi
and translated using the spot rate at the year-end

date.

As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
UusD ETT

HKD T

Total =X

As at 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H
Usb ETT

HKD K

Total AT
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(c) BEEIEHT

18R T8 B EE 2 LA SN Ay 2L i [ B 22
=TE  AEER12A831H
N R S5 32 T 0 7 s Y B o
B AR A ES% BB
BRRE 7 ASHA A0 R A B i
T o WEEBIREEBGERHBR
HERTE S ARKIIR o

Equity Net profit
BRES BHE
7,451,918 7,451,918
11,686 11,686
7,463,604 7,463,604
6,644,880 6,644,880
17,148 17,148
6,662,028 6,662,028
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I\ BEeRT A4EMas S ()

(4) EXmE(HE)
(c) BENEDHT (&)

VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US dollar
and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would have
had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

MR12A3818 ' EBREEME
ERBTIENRRT « ARK
HWERITFABBHE RS EHFE A
REEBZE5% 1 E B RAE R
MIBZWEEF ERTREE
BEHRREHRBER

ElgERES T RBREREER
BRAERELET - A
BOETHEERBERAAE
EREEN - MEREXERAS
BMTEETEHNESLD -
BT A BEINERRITE
ZR8 o F—FENOMERR
BEVBRRMIDEA ©

(5) HftEEER
HibEREREERmERRR -
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IX Fair value disclosure

The following information presents the fair value information
and the fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current
reporting period, of the Group’s assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date on a
recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which fair value
measurement is categorised is determined by the level of the
fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined

as follows:

Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets that are observable at the
measurement date for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that
are either directly or indirectly observable
for underlying assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for

underlying assets or liabilities.
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IX Fair value disclosure (cont’d) h DAREBERESE(E)
1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair 1 UAREBENENEENEESGN
value at the end of the year ERDAEE
The following table presents the carrying value of financial TRINRT AR BEFENE
instruments measured at fair value as at 31 December ERR2017%12 A31H K2016512
2017 and 31 December 2016. A31BREREEE -
31 December 2017
2017128310
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value Fair value Fair value
measurement ~ measurement  measurement Total
F-BR FZBR FZBR
ftem 1 Note  Mfst AREERE  AREERE AREERE ait
Recurring fair value HENALEEHE
measurement
Financial assets at fair value WAREEHER
through proft o loss HEF 28
BRNeRARE Ve 32
Trading financial assets Rt eREE
Stock e = - = =
Other current assets AfhREEE Vg T8
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AAHESREE
Financing product EHER = = - -
Specffic asset management ERAEERHE
plan = = - -
Available-for-sale financial assets ARTESHAE V9 A9
Investment funds REES - = = -
Trust plan EAE = = - -
Total assets measured at RENAARENE
fair value on a recurring basis HEELE = = S =
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

IX Fair value disclosure (cont’d)

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value at the end of the year (cont’d)

Item

Recurring fair value
measurement
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trading financial assets

Stock
Qther current assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Financing product
Specific asset management

plan

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Investment funds
Trust plan

Total assets measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

8 Note

RENLLBERE

WAnEEHER
HEEHAEE
BRENEBAE
RHkEREE

e

AREEE

AhESREE
EHER
SFAEEEHE

V2
V-8

REILABETE
WAELE

N SREEROEE(E)
1 UAABEFENEENREN
FERDNAEEE)
31 December 2016
2016512731
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value Fair value Fair value
measurement measurement measurement Total
F-BR FZEN FZER
(i3 MEEE  DAEEHE DAEEHRE A
12 7,833,191 - - 7,833,191
-8
- 5,300,000 - 5,300,000
- 20,827,321 - 20,827,321
-9
- - 10,442,192 10,442,192
- - 10,872,251 10,872,251
7,833,191 26,127,321 21,314,443 56,274,955
2 BREBEF-—BRAAEBEEHEEB

2 Basis of determining the market price for recurring
fair value measurements categorised within Level 1
The fair value of trading financial assets in Level 1 is
determined using quoted prices in the open market at

the balance sheet date.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
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IX Fair value disclosure (cont’d)

3 Valuation techniques used and the qualitative and

quantitative information of key parameters for
recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements
categorised within Level 2

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets, which is
investments in debt instruments, in level 2 is estimated as
being the present values of future cash flows, discounted
at interest rates based on earning ratio of similar products
in the open market.

Valuation techniques used and the qualitative and
quantitative information of key parameters for
recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements
categorised within Level 3

The fair value of the merger and acquisition fund collective
trust scheme of Guojin Quantum categorised into Level 3
fair value measurement, is determined based on the net
asset value of the investment fund on the reporting date
that the investment manager reports to the investors.
Furthermore, the fair value of the EBI Harvest Yunfan NO. 1
private equity investment fund, invests in is determined
based on the final trading price of the equity securities
on the delisting day with adjustments made to reflect
gains with reference of the benchmark indices during the
period between the delisting day and the valuation date.

Reasons for transfers between different levels, and
the policy of determining the timing of those transfers
for items under the recurring fair value measurements
In 2017, there were no transfers between different levels
of the Group’s above assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The Group
recognises transfers between different levels at the end of
the current reporting period during which such transfers
are made.

5

W

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

REEOEE(E)
KEFE_EBEXRAAEEEHE
B ZANGERMNEESH
HEMREEER
WAE—_BRAAEBEFTEZHEE
MAHEEEHEEABEE TR
®E  HARBEMNGTEEZR

N 5 5RO EE qR B TR B W as K
WRFAHARHER SR TDERE ©

RENEFEE="BERXAAEE
SFEREE  KANGERMNE
EZHNENREERER

IINE=BXRAREBENEIER
Z— BEEFHBEESERA]
TREAFENAABERERK
BRENFEHEARAREEREZ
BREESEEFEMT B4
R%?Ei%ﬂ%&%&ﬁ%%
ERENRERIEETRHZK
% HEAABENFESERI
FIREEEFERLEETRS
BB &R B AR - W RLRE 55
BIE MRS AEMERBRNZ
ZEERBOWSIELE T

B, o
s

BENANAEENEER » &F
RABESER-BERY ik
WY 5 A % e i R B B R ROR
R2017FE - AEE Ll #HE N
NREBEEAENEENEGSE
RZREREHREER - KEBR
FEREEHEFNRERARER
BB Rz R o
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IX Fair value disclosure (cont’d)

6 Current changes in valuation techniques and the
reasons
In 2017, there were no changes in valuation techniques for
the recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements.

7 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 on the Group’s ownership.

X Related parties and related party transactions
1 Information about the subsidiaries of the Company

For information about the subsidiaries of the Company,
refer to Note VI.1.

214 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itHZEFRTROERLD T
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X Related parties and related party transactions +

(cont’d)

2

Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties
Htfm s a8

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWREZENEEBRAR

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
S—rE(PE)REERAR

Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
BNG—ZARAA

Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
KBR—rERmBERLA

Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.
WERSELENERABRAT

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
HezENEtEREERAR

Yantai Andre Property Management Co., Ltd.
WERENNRERERAT

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
HezENRBRAERAR

Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd.
BaZRATERAA

Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
BRERBNERAT

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
ReERATERAR

Yantai Hengda Cement Co., Ltd.
WaFEKEERAT]

Yantai Hengli Contrete LLC.

ez NERTERERALA

Yantai Xinping Jian'an Co., Ltd.

RasTRZIRERAR

Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)
REBZRERL(BEREH)

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

(i) Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President
Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. exercised
their significant influence over the Company through
their representation on the board of directors of the

Company.
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FRBARABRES (K|

2 HitbEEBLER

Related party relationship
A AR

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HASEEHREATENLX()

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HASEEREATENEX()

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

A—EEBROHBRAAN TR

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

A—LEBROHBRAAN TR

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RXREEH TR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RXREEH TR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

R RERH TR %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

R RERH T EHIA %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR &R RN E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR &R RN E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR R EH AR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR SRR RN E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RIX R TR E

Under control of a close family member of the Company’s key
management personal

REAHI R BEENOFKEK AR %

Under control of the Company’s key management personnel

FREBRERASHHNME

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR &R RN E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR &R RN E

() WERZEAEEFRA ML
—E(HRB)KEERARRE
BREERERAQRERES
RRRITERBRRRE - #m
HARRBEHEATE o
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(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

X Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

3 Transactions with related parties
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out as follows.
Apart from the items disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under the section “Connected Transactions”,
all the material related party transactions disclosed below
did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Related party transactions

Sales of goods

and service
Purchases of goods

and service
Purchases of assets
Storage incomes
Rental income
Fund received
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Receivable for others
Advances received
Return of advances
Dividend distribution

HERmR
RS
BEBML
BESH
BEAE
RREKRA
HERA
KEEE
XXIER
fBE R
IR
A
REIBWR
B AL

T BELTRABZS(E)

3 BEXBER
HZE2017F12A31HLEFE - &
EEEERH S ETO N TP
2R - BIFEEREETSHRE
RIEERS |—&5 - B T
WBEZEXNEH IR TSEK
B EMRAFE14AZ R TE BT ER
REAER D RFEBERS °

(1) B 5

The Group The Company

&M FaH
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
it 20174 20164 20176 20165
51,627,310 42,601,403 80,287,005 34,364,332
18,735,406 22,364,766 419,242,833 563,003,153
i) 1,469,935 27,375,070 14,718,274 36,188,798
152,477 108,428 152,477 -
(ii) 765,230 729,890 765,230 729,890
- - 128,623,954 273,355,938
- 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
- 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
= 12,544 = =
20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
12,526,800 12,526,800 = =
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X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)
(cont’d)

3 Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 3 EmXZER(E)
(1) Related party transactions (cont’d) (1) BHX 5 (&)
() The purchases of assets mainly represent the () BEEEFZ=EEN2017
amounts paid for purchasing the equipments from FE - HaREBNRTHR
Yantai Andre Pectin Co. Ltd in 2017. BARRQFMRE G ZIEF

RERMDAR D FREBH
HEz R o

(i) Rental income represents the rental generated (i) HEWAETBREAE
from leasing part of the Group’s office building AL AR & T & & ¥
located at 889 Xincheng Street, Muping District, K889 MM A IZ Y EE 7
Yantai to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. BELHEGEERENER

BROERAFRENHA
SWA o
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X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)

(cont’d)
3 Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 3 EmXZER(E)
(2) Remuneration of key management personnel 2) FBREEABLNF &

Key management personnel are those persons holding MREREASREREINE
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, TEEXEERE - 5ENE
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, HIAEEESNAER - BEA
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors SENEEMET - HERE
and supervisors. Remuneration for key management BABRBMMT

personnel of the Group is as follows:

The Group &M

2017 2016
ltem " H 20174 20164
Remuneration of key P B IE A B R

management personnel 2,846,992 2,979,649
The Company b. 3/

2017 2016
ltem HA 20174 2016%4F
Remuneration of key RABEE IR A B 3R

management personnel 1,718,596 2,035,378
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 B E2017%12 A31H %2016
December 2016, no emoluments were paid to the F12A31BLEFE A5&H
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or RARRWARAESEREEX
upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss HERBN S AE R RBI E A
of office. For the year ended 31 December 2017 and RNTIH B BERARE - &L
31 December 2016, no fees or any other emoluments £2017F12 31 H 20164
were waived by directors or supervisors. 12A31TBLLEE  EFHE

EMERRRSLEMINE -
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X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)
(cont’d)

4 Receivables from and payables to related parties 4 BAME TS PE U B (S FRIR
The Group The Company

F5E b /N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20164 20175 20164
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
Accounts receivable  FEUERFK 6,159,381 8,935,126 18,473,453 10,912,221
Dividends receivable &% R = - 53,699,658 60,572,440
Other receivables HoAth fE R 801,363 5,324 205,891,635 333,736,008
Accounts payable FETBR IR 3,091,850 4,073,137 10,584,774 214,589,027
Other payables H b S 3R - - 207,379,085 101,204,013

5 Guarantee 5 BAEER
(1) The Company as a guarantor (1) AR FIERERT
2017 2016
2017 20164
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
Name of guarantee RRES ERES
WTERA REeHE CEEITES EReHE ELBETTE
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. N/A Y
Ny N L - 50,000,000 o
ZEMEAERA A FEH =
Total

CEl = 50,000,000
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F RREEBARRTT)

X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

5 Guarantee (cont’d)

@)

3)

The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

R

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR EREEARA T

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBRRE

Total

At

The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

ERT

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZEFEEBR QR

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBR QA

Total

At

T BELTRABZS(E)

5 BEERGE)
2) REBERRIERT

280,000,000

220  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T

549,500,000

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
RRER ERER
RREHE ERETREE R ERETTE
N N
70,000,000 210,000,000
5 a
Y Y
210,000,000 o 339,500,000 =
= E
280,000,000 549,500,000
(8) KL\ EIERBEIERTT
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BRRER ERER
RRE&E CRETES ERE2HE ERETTE
N N
70,000,000 210,000,000
5 S
Y Y
210,000,000 = 339,500,000 =
= rE
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Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed
terms of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The balances of related party transactions are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes short-term
loans and long-term payables) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less related-party loans with no fixed repayment
terms and cash and cash equivalents.

During 2017, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2016, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

BFEH

AEBEAEBNTIZABRRRER
SENFELE - BEHBRBHIE R
BIKFARE B E A AR TS B A% I fE R
NEERMERAESRENTR @ &
BREREHER -

AEBMPEANEE SRR ER N E
2 [ & SR HA IR /O BA R 5 5 SR H0
BRARERNCIRE D EMRF - AE
B EARNTBEEREY T 2 HNER
EREREE -

AEETHERNERBE FNERLE
B WREIRBANEREBMAR
RO%K - AEEZEENRAREE A
KERKNESFR - BAME - B
EMREHNAFNES  BHNRE
m o AHEATHEE - IREEAMR
LANBEW T EARE - AKEKE
HBENER -

AEEBBEARNFEFEARRNR
EESENERNER - KABNFE
BREGEH(BREEHERLREE
M) MERERNERZED LW
BRI - FORR IR [E T A& K AR A BE B
TEFARREMREEFEY -

RNEB217F K E AR E 1L B BK 0
2016F E—B - PR EARNFES
BARRAFBBI0% © B T HEFHFHER
Zhl - AEETRE S AL M E%
RERAESEE - EMFTAER - BT
ok HEBEEURDEE -

ARARARANTFA T BBURE
EINR I AR TS, o
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T RKERBIAER

XIl Commitments and Contingencies

1 Significant commitments 1 BEERHEE
(1) Capital commitments (1) B #IE
2017 2016
ltem HH 20174 20164

Signed contracts for acquisition B %] M IEESEERITH
of fixed assets being or to be Bl B EHEER
executed 120,000 1,155,350

(2) A ETHEAIE
7K2017F12 A31H & 20164
12H3818  AEB KA QT
BETRENEEHE R

s
==
% °

(2) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the Group and the Company had no non-cancellable
operating leases.

2 Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding 2 RRFBAERFEROIBEER
litigations and arbitration and related financial impact Epee

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the 2017412331 H K&201651273
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from 818  ARER A RIRFF IR

outstanding litigations and arbitration.

Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees provided
for other entities and related financial impact

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Group did not provide guarantees in respect of the bank
loans of other company.
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XIll Subsequent events

Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

T=RERARRA®ER

EEEERBEFN B EBRERHS

2017 2016
ltem DERE 20174 20164
Dividends proposed # o e AR 35,800,000 18,400,000
Dividends approved and declared KE=EIES R MARA 35,800,000 18,400,000

On 28 March 2018, the Board of Directors proposed the
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMB0.10 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2017. The proposal is
subject to approval by the shareholders’ general meeting.
Such cash dividends are not recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

On 15 March 2017, the Board of Directors proposed the
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share to
the Company’s shareholders for 2016. The proposal was
approved by the shareholder’s general meeting on 25 May
2017.

BEEYN2018F3 A28 HIgEAA A
MR IREE2017F ERMBF - &K
IREERE A A RBE0.107T © U IHIR 32 18]
HFREREHE REEAGRBR
HERENREBATAELEERRE
KABRAEARE -

BEE2MN2017F3A15HIREAR A
MR IR 22016 F EIM BT - &
R EE R R A REE0.057T ° LIERZER
2017525 H B AN H & ©
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XIV Other significant items

Segment reporting

The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, and provision
of juice processing services, therefore the Group has not
disclose any further information with respect to reportable
segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income
from external customers is set out as follows:

THHRMEEER

7 HRBERE

AEETIZEE-—KRENHALE -
A EHEREST RAAEER - A
REHFITIMTRY - FAARKER

BRBEZEEDHESR -

AT R—AEBEZREFPEIIRAE:
WA

Geographical location

China

North America

Asia (excluding China)
Europe

Oceania

Africa

South America

Total

[

&

1E=M

MR EIASN)
BOM

RAEM

FEM

mEM

2017
20174

211,892,298
291,847,730
150,091,833
125,585,508
32,936,028
88,573,670
114,103

2016
20164

211,713,682
222,438,324
145,334,640
178,883,380
73,311,219
43,515,867

901,041,170

875,197,112

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of non-current
assets located overseas is RMB291,871 (31 December 2016:
RMB304,689).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Other significant items (cont’d)

Segment reporting (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has no
customer (2016: 1 customer, the operating income from
this customer represents approximately 16% of the Group’s
total operating income), the operating income from which is
over 10% of the Group’s total operating income. The income
amount of this customer is set out as follows:

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

THEMERER(E)

DERIRE ()
HE2017TF12A31BHIEEE - X
EERFHF AEBERRERE—F
FURA (A & B 4248 A 10% 3% A _E B
BE (20164 : 1@ : A AL E AU
A16%) - REZERFHNRASE
FIREOR

2017 2016
20174 20164
Geographical Geographical
Customers location Amount location Amount
P ME & Hh [ G|
Customer 1 Europe Less than 10% Europe 136,489,250
of the Group’s
total operating
income
P 5% EREE M
I A B910%
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE
financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 ER&ES

2017 2016
ltem DERE! 20175 2016%F
Cash on hand Re 77,410 92,860
Deposits with banks RITER 57,455,813 84,375,346
Total &t 57,533,223 84,468,206
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, there MR2017812 A31H k2016512 A
are no cash at bank and on hand with restrictions placed 318 » RAFEATA X EIR 5

on the Company’s ownership. MEBES o

2 Accounts receivable 2 PEWERRK
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows: (1) JE U BR 3012 5 = 25 Bl 73 4T 4A
o
2017 2016
Customer type ==l 2017 20164
Subsidiaries F A A] 17,888,149 10,605,691
Other related parties i) N 585,304 306,530
Third parties F=5 108,189,309 126,422,690
Sub-total /INET 126,662,762 137,334,911
Less: Provision for bad and W AR

doubtful debts 5,066,262 2,553,740
Total A5 121,596,500 134,781,171
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE
(%)

2 BWARM(E)
2) BRI LR ST T -

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

2 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:
2017 2016
Ageing ARER 20174 20164
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6fE A AR (& 61E 4 ) 111,254,289 122,036,787
After 6 months but within 1 year 6fEAZ1E(&14) 15,405,410 15,121,747
(inclusive)
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ 1FZE2F(524F)

(inclusive) 3,063 176,377
Sub-total N 126,662,762 137,334,911
Less: Provision for bad and o AR

doubtful debts 5,066,262 2,553,740
Total A&t 121,596,500 134,781,171
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B FE M BR FUERR B B 4A

accounts receivable are recognised.

(3) Addition, reversal or written-off of provision for bad

s
= &
A=+ °

(3) AFa1HE ~ BE A iHAIRAR

and doubtful debts during the year: EHEIET
2017 2016
20174 20164
Balance at the beginning of FHIARTE
the year 2,553,740 =
Additions during the year REEFTR 1,536,215 3,422,029
Written-off during the year IREIZH - (868,289)
Reversals during the year VAR [E Az s AN S 8 o)
which had been written-off in
previous years 976,307 =
Balance at the end of the year —~ FREREE 5,066,262 2,653,740
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 1+iBATIMERREEREFE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
3 Prepayments 3 FEMNFIE ‘ -
(1) Prepayments by type are as follows: (1) BN HBEIEFZIRZOT
2017 2016
Type 5 20174 20164
Third parties F=7 594,527 503,997
Less: Provision for bad and W AR
doubtful debts - -
Total A&t 594,527 503,997
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: ©2) BB ZRE ST
2017 2016
20175 20164
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Ageing BRER & EE Bl (%) +%8 EE51(%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FAR(E14) 594,527 100% 508,997 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B TR SRIERERR B 1A

| e
=T B o

prepayments are recognised. Al
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables

(1)

@)

Other receivables analysis by type are as follows:
Type kel
Subsidiaries FA]
Related parties 4 it

Third parties E=h
Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad and B EERE(

doubtful debts

Total =

The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:
Ageing ARIER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FELAR(E1E)

After 1 year but within 1EE2F(525F)
2 years (inclusive)
Over 3 years 3HFAE
Sub-total Nt
Less: Provision for bad and B EEREE
doubtful debts
Total =X

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

(BRH 5T RS - 2RRE BARET)

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE
(%)

4

Hfth FE LK
(1) B ERKIZIELATLT

2017 2016
20174 20164
205,106,730 333,730,684
784,905 5,324
19,361,699 4,172,891
225,253,334 337,908,899
- 3,987,685
225,253,334 333,921,214

2) BB ILRESITLT -

2017 2016
20175 20164
225,153,334 339,921,214
100,000 =
- 3,087,685
225,253,334 337,908,899
- 3,987,685
225,253,334 333,921,214
BRER B H b FEUNGRFERR H AR A
RETE o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 1+iBATIMERREEREFE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
4 Other receivables (cont’d) 4 B (E)

(3) As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, (3) 12017412331 B K% 2016%F
the Company did not hold any other receivables which 12A318 » ARRIEINEH
were denominated in foreign currency. fth FEULER ©

5 Inventories 5 #8
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FEDHE
2017 2016
2017 20165
Provision for Provision for
impairment Carrying impairment Carrying
Book value of inventories amount Book value  of inventories amount
Item FEEH IREEE BRESR RERE A% KBRS REEE
Raw materials and BT RBED

packaging materials 6,497,977 - 6,497,977 7,425,786 - 7,425,786
Finished goods Ekm 127,456,603 (2,038,055 125,418,548 122,823,452 - 122,823,452
Total = 133,954,580 (2,038,055) 131,916,525 130,249,238 - 130,249,238
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no 2017512 431 B k20164
inventories were pledged as security by the Company. 12A31H  ARFDRA AR

BEROEFE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

5

Inventories (cont’d)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

2017

[tem
Raw materials and packaging

materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment
of inventories

Total

2016

[tem
Raw materials and

packaging materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment
of inventories

Total

FEER

RHHEBEY

Emkm

Nt

W FERERRE

FEER

RHHEBEYN

Emkm

Dt

B FERERRE

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

(%)

5 #&E(AE)

2 XRElFEZEIER DT
7\— E

20174
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FORE EERAME FEROE FREE
7,425,786 69,610,007 70,537,816 6,497,977
122,823,452 490,838,580 486,205,429 127,456,603
130,249,238 560,448,587 556,743,245 133,954,580
- 2,038,055 - 2,038,055
130,249,238 558,410,532 556,743,245 131,916,525

20164F
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FEE KEEME RERDE EREAE
6,700,285 68,729,700 68,004,199 7,425,786
90,258,397 639,461,265 606,896,210 122,823,452
96,958,682 708,190,965 674,900,409 130,249,238
96,958,682 708,190,965 674,900,409 130,249,238
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 1+iBATIMERREEREFE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
6 Other current assets 6 HittRBEE
2017 2016
ltem e 20174 2016%F
Input VAT recoverable R AT IR 41,289,336 47,398,723
Available-for-sale financial assets at HiRIZ AR BEFENAHEHE
fair value at the end of the period: TREE
- Beixinruifeng No.008 specific — L EmEO0SREIEEEEE
asset management scheme =3l - 20,827,321
- Bank wealth management — RIS EE M
products - 5,300,000
Total = 41,289,336 73,526,044
7 Available-for-sale financial assets 7 AHEESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end FREQAABEFENTHIES
of the year: SREE
2017 2016
ltem 1ER 20175 20164
Merger and acquisition fund collective B¢ & FHEESELESER
trust scheme of Guojin Quantum srEl - 10,872,251
EBI Harvest Yunfan No.1 private AEZEEN1RIERENLSE
equity investment fund He - 10,442,192
Total &5t - 21,314,443
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +HE BAFIMERETERHSEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥8)
8 Long-term equity investments 8 RIIRERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) RAEIRERE DI -
follows:
2017 2016
ltem ER 20175 2016%F
Investments in subsidiaries HFRAIHRE 465,462,159 573,355,647
Less: Provision for impairment B R E 30,554,482 2,952,947
Total A&t 434,907,677 570,402,700
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20186, R2017F12 A31 H k20164
The Company recognised impairment provisions of 12A318  "RaE¥ F2RFA
RMB30,554,482 and RMBZ2,952,947, respectively ZELZENEREXEREBR
for the long-term equity investment in Anyue Andre AREWRERERETIRE
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. = B {8 % 530,554,482 7T &
2,952,9477¢ °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

(%)
8 RKEREGHE)

2) RERIEREANFEEIER D

year are as follows: war -
2017 20174
Book value of long-term equity investment
RERERERERE
Balance of
provision for
impairment  Shercholding
Investment A Inorease/ A Provisionfor  attheend percentage
cost  lamuary  Decrease 31 December impaiment  of the year (")
HRE
SRR BEER  EUBK
Ivestee fiREN s AR ERED  RMR WEER  FRBE MR
Oost methodsubsidares HAE-T47
Baishui Anare Juice Co., Ltd. BREENRATARA 110,630,130 110,630,130 - 110630,130 - - 7%
Vanta Longkou Andre Juce fiagnzENR i
Co, Ltd. ERAA 8062269  80,622,6% - 806226% - - 75%
Nuzhou Andre dice Co, Ltd.— GMREHRATARAE 5866418 58846418 - BehA8 - - 5%
Andre dice Co,, L. REHRTRRT § 8 - 8 - - 100%
Dalian Andre Juice Co, Ltd. Klﬁﬁ/ﬁ‘l%%‘ A 56,000,000 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 - - 10%
Bizhou Andre duice Co, Ltd.— EMEERTAMARDT 107893488 107,898488  (107,893.488) = = = =
Yantal Andfe Juice Co,, Lid. RegEHRraEaRAT 3000000 30000000 - 30,000,000 - - 7%
Yongi Ancre Jice Co, L. KEREHRA AR TR TTM390 - T - - T5%
Anyue Andre Lemon dusty PEFENREERM
Technology Co., Lid. ARAT 52,120000 52,120,000 - R120000 (27601535  (30564480) 100%
Totd il 573305047 B73,305647 (107693488 465462150 (27601535 (30,554,482
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Voting
rights
percentage
()
ERER
Rtz
A

1%

1%
1%
100%
0%
15%
15%

100%

Cash
dividend
for the year

FERTH

84,000,000

84,000,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s +HE BAFIMERETERHSEE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 8 RKEREGHE) *
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the ) RAIRERE A FEEBERD
year are as follows: (cont’d) T (&)
2016 2016%F

Book vlue ofong-tem equty investment

RARERATERR
Balance of
provison for Voting
impaiment  Sraedng rights Cash
vestment A Increase/ A Poisonfor  attheend  pecentage  percentage (liidend
o fdaway  Deceese 31 December  impaiment  of the year ] () fortheyear
ke EHRE
RER RERE EuRR BURAE
Ivesiee RAED &S MR 2588 ©AYR BEEE  ERHE i 1 3751
Cost method-subsidres -4
Baishui Andfe Juice Co, Lt BRREHRRARDT 10630130 110630130 - 110830,130 - - 75% 5% -
Vanta Longkou Andre Juce LG
Co, L. BRA 806026% 80,6269 - 8062269 - - 75% 5% -
uzhou Ane Juce Co,, L1 BMREHREERAD 0866418 5BR40418 - iBdsA18 - - 75% 7% 375000
Andre Juice Co., Lid. REHRTARAA § § - § - - 100% 100%
Delan Andre Juce Co,, Ltd. NEREHRRTERAR 56,000000 56,000,000 - 56000000 - - 0% 10% -
Birahou Ane Juce Co,, L1 E‘\G{Q%‘J%‘;ﬁ“ﬂm“’ 107,093,488 107,898 468 - 107808488 - - 5% 75 -
Yantal Andre Juice Co,, Lid. BazERRtoMaRAT 000000 30000000 - 30000000 - - 75% 75% -
Yongj Andre Juce Co, i, mmsﬁmm T3 T - TR - - T5% T5% -
Aoyue Ane Lemon ndusty REREHERER IR
Technology Co,, Lid. BRAT 52120000 52,120,000 - R0 P (29%52947) 100% 100% -
Totd Ait H73,300,647 673,305,647 - Dig3eeAT (292941 (2,%2947) 3,790,000
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out ZIS/AET—? TE’]*E FEE2A
in note VII.1. Mz -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE s - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

9 Fixed assets

(1) Details of fixed assets

Item

Cost
At 1 January 2016

Addttions during the year

- Purchases

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
Reclassification

At 31 December 2016
At 1 January 2017

Additions during the year

- Purchases

— Transfers from construction in progress

- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals

Offset government grants against

the book value
At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2016

Addtions during the year

- Charge for the year

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
Reclassification

At 31 December 2016
At 1 January 2017

Additions during the year

- Charge for the year
- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
At 31 December 2017

Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2017

At 31 December 2017

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

BR

RiE
201651810
RERY

-RE
KERD

-RE
BERRIAE
2016128318
201741818
KEE

-EE

-ERIREA

L
KERD

AR
HREEERE

2017F12A318

Zihe
201651 1R

_~RE
BEERAR

2016512A31H

017F1 18

AEEN
-KEAHR
- MR

REFHDH
-RE

m

20175127318

HEEE
20171518

2017F12A318

KaEE
2017512318

20165128318

REEFZEFRTROBRAF

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

(#)
9 EEEE
(1) BlE&EISER
Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor

buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total

BER BORGER
B&H RN fLEd | EBIA ait
102,786,797 124,997,378 7,314,800 3,334,168 238,433,138
24,520,421 9,673,056 233,810 157,463 34,584,756
(1,638,815) (2,701,054) (1,564,435) (313,399) (6,207,703)
(4,310,799) 4,310,793 - - -
(AR VGRS GRS Gl g
121,357,616 136,280,168 5,994,175 3,178,232 266,810,191
- 3,985,235 93,010 - 4,078,245
3,537,478 - - - 3,537,478
- 53,104,614 537,520 - 53,642,134
- (75,000) (97,220) (209,773) (381,993)
- (525,000) - - (525,000)
CEigenit WO B iy e
(32,138422)  (68,903,803) (6,314,258) (2,997,934)  (110,354,417)
(3,839,841) (4,506,665) (271,712 (24,458) (8,398,676)
1,245,902 2,357,451 1,462,448 262,059 5,307,860
290,979 (290,979 - - -
HE R e Ry (e
(34,441,382)  (71,343,996) (4,889,522) (2,770,333)  (113,445,233)
(2,482,124) (5,169,393) (154,136) (23,714) (7,829,367)
- (38,500,119) (423,741) - (38,923,860)
- 67,500 87,592 188,796 343,888
PO (496009 ETOMT  QASSY) (185457
- (480,787) - - (480,787)
________ ; e o o .
87,971,588 71,343,222 1,147,678 363,208 166,825,696
86,916,234 64,455,385 1,104,653 407899 152,884,171
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
9 Fixed assets (cont’d) 9 EEEEE)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont’d) (1) BIEEEFTL (&)
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, M2017412 H31 H & 20164
no fixed assets were with restrictions placed on the 12 AB318 » ARRIEME1E
Company’s ownership. RERFINEEEE ©
(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (2) BHHERETEEEIFA
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the 2017512 A31 H k20164
Company’s temporarily idle fixed assets are as follows: 12A31H » KRR TEE

BEEERHE -

Accumulated Provision for Carrying

Cost depreciation  impairment amount

Item HAE IRERE REHAE i E R IRERE
Preserved fruit production ine B4 ESR 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983

(3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(4) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
no significant fixed assets were leased out under
operating leases.

(5) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

no fixed assets were with pending certificates of
ownership.

(8) BABMEHEAANETEEE
1B
2017912 831 H & 20164
12A31H A" Rl ERMEME
ERANETEEE °

(4) BBALETHE M A EE & E
7K2017F12 A31H & 20164
12H818 A AR EEARK
EHERATNETEE -

(5) KPR EREEFZNETEERE
s
7K2017F12 A31H & 20164
12A318 @ "R A ERMZ
EREENETEERBNR °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

TEBARMBRETIERBEE
(#)
10 Intangible assets 10 B EE

Land use rights

ltem HE = ith {5k F 4
Cost BRER(E
At 1 January 2016 201641 H1H 35,554,982
Additions during the year ARFIE AN
- Purchase —-BE 5,342,250
At 31 December 2016 2016%12A4314 ?r_O_,_8_9__7_,?_C’7_2_
At 1 January 2017 and 2017F1 1B &
31 December 2017 2017%12A314 40,897,232
Accumulated amortization RETEEE
At 1 January 2016 201641 H1H (7,650,978)
Charge for the year REFHE (977,803)
At 31 December 2016 2016%12A431A (_8_,_6_2_?1?_8_1_)
At 1 January 2017 20171 A1H (8,628,781)
Charge for the year RETIR (994,284)
At 31 December 2017 2017#12A81A | (_9_,92_?:9_6_5_)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2017 2017%12A831H 31,274,167
At 31 December 2016 2016512 831H 32,268,451

M2017412 A31H k20165124

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, all
of the Company’s land use rights are held on medium-
term lease.

31H - ARBIAALMERERS
REAFEA -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
10 Intangible assets (cont’d) 10 B EE(H)
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the R20174F12 831 H k20165124
Company did not use any intangible assets as mortgage 318 ARFIRBEANELE
for bank loans. E e
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no FR2017412 531 5&2/01\6¢12ﬂ
land use rights with pending certificates of ownership 318 ARABAWZEEEE
were placed on the Company’s ownership. B b FRREE R o
11 Deferred tax assets 11 BEMEHEE \
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets (1) KRAEZEAL T3 E A
2017 2016
ltem A H 2017 20164
Deductible tax losses AEHEE 45,951,514 =
(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out 2 BB F=  23mE et
in Note [II.23, the Company has not recognised B ARAATITEER
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses EETRARNEINEBEEEN R
of RMB45,951,514 (2016: Nil) as it is not probable RIERFE - FHULAR T MR
that future taxable profits against which the losses gt AR BA45 951,5147T(2016
can be utilised will be available in the Company. The £ AR 2R K
deductible tax losses can be deducted from future EIERZEIEEREE - 1B
taxable income within 5 years from the year when BIRITROE - LR ENEE
such losses were incurred under current tax law. BEISEEERE 0 A LAEREIB

5 4F 1Y HA F] PO 4 40 2K 20 e 75 )
A e

(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognized (3) 7K HEZZAEVE I 12 70 B EE K A 15
deferred tax assets HIE 15 B 2l BRI 7

2017 2016

Year F1n 20174 20164

2022 20224 45,951,514 -
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

12 Short-term loans

ltem 15 H
Credit loans S FER
Guaranteed loans IRFBIEFR
Total =X

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
Company did not have short-term loans past due.

13 Accounts payable
Details of accounts payable are as follows:

Supplier type HrEr R
Subsidiaries FEfSFAR]
Related parties FE H A BAEE A )
Third parties BNE=%

Total BET
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(%)

12 FHER

2017
20175

100,000,000
70,000,000

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

2016
20164

130,000,000
210,000,000

170,000,000

340,000,000

M2017412 A31H k2016512 A
318 ' AARIECEHREEN

fEK

13 FEFERX

FERBRFIBRAOT ¢
2017 2016
2017 20164
9,380,053 213,142,190
1,204,721 1,446,837
25,003,392 9,991,951
35,588,166 224,580,978




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
14 Employee benefits payable 14 BB I HM
(1) Employee benefits payable: (1) FETHBETEH T -
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
2017% 20174

1A1B &8 EEIRm FERY 12A31HRH

Short-term employee benefits ySEE] 2,927,239 13,518,875 13,771,405 2,674,709
Post-employment benefits BB

— defined contribution plans —RERETE - 1,408,930 1,408,930 =

Total At 2,927,239 14,927,805 15,180,335 2,674,709

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2016 the year the year 2016

20164 20165

1A1B %% AELN AERD  12A31H8%E

Short-term employee benefits R 2,137,422 16,182,919 15,393,102 2,927,239
Post-employment benefits B E A

- defined contribution plans —REfRFAE - 1,248,073 1,248,073 =
Total B 2,137,422 17,430,992 16,641,175 2,927,239
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§t 35 ¥ AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 14 Eﬁiﬁlﬁﬁmﬁé)
(2) Short-term employee benefits 2) X HgF B
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
2017% 20174

1A1B &8 EEIRm FERY 12A31HRH

Salaries, bonuses, allowances 1% %% =28

M#ERE 2,167,101 12,399,822 12,602,407 1,964,516
Staff bonus and welfare fund BIRELEFES 760,138 - 49,945 710,193
Social insurance HERRE

Medical insurance W%M%? - 527,407 527,407 -

Work-related injury insurance IEREE - 81,371 81,371 -

Maternity insurance ERRBE - 37,671 37,671 -

Housing fund E% NE7 - 249,709 249,709 -
Labour union fee, staff and T2LERBT

workers’ education fee HERE - 222,895 222,895 -

Total At 2,927,239 13,518,875 13,771,405 2,674,709

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2016 the year the year 2016

2016 201645

1 B1BHE%E AELN AERD 12A31RKE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances T4 #5208

FHEES 1,377,284 15,224,666 14,434,849 2,167,101
Staff bonus and welfare fund BIRELEFES 760,138 = = 760,138
Social insurance HeRBE
Medical insurance ERBIR &% - 459,817 459,817 =
Work-related injury insurance TERKRE - 70,943 70,943 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 32,844 32,844 =
Housing fund FEAES - 215,334 215,334 =
LLabour union fee, staff and TeREBEMET
workers’ education fee HELE - 179,315 179,315 -
Total Bt 2,137,422 16,182,919 15,393,102 2,927,239
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 14 EFJ‘%I%FEH(,%E)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans (3) BEBREF —RE1EfFatT Sl
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
2017% 20174

1A1B &8 EEIRm FERY 12A31HRH

Basic pension insurance BEASZRR - 1,356,189 1,356,189 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 52,741 52,741 =
Total E&r - 1,408,930 1,408,930 -
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2016 the year the year 2016

2016%F 20164

1A1B%%E AELM AERD 12831885

Basic pension insurance EREERR = 1,182,385 1,182,385 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 65,688 65,688 -
Total CH - 1,248,073 1,248,073 -
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, 7R2017F12 831 H k20164
there were no payment in arrears included in the 12A31H  "RGREREBT
balance of employee benefits payable. R e R M E MR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

15 Other payables

Customer type = FELER
Subsidiaries =</
Third parties F=h
Total BEF

16 Capital reserve

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE
(%)

15 HAtEA R

2017 2016
20175 20164

207,379,085 101,204,013
3,735,750 30,284,164

211,114,835 131,488,177

16 EERRE
20174
Additions Reductions Balance at
during during the end
the year the year of the year

FFiaM FERD FREH

- 29,744,040 43,524,487
- - 9,926

- 29,744,040 43,534,413

20164
Additions Reductions Balance at
during during the end of
the year the year the year

AEIEAN KERD FREHE

= 28,064,520 73,268,527
= = 9,926

2017
Balance at
the beginning
of the year
ltem JRE k2] 3]
Share premiums B RE 73,268,527
Foreign currency translation INERATEES 9,926
Total S 73,278,453
2016
Balance at
the beginning
of the year
ltem BH FHHRE
Share premiums BAGE 101,333,047
Foreign currency translation INERATEEE 9,926
Total CH 101,342,973

= 28,064,520 73,278,453
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s T+ BAFIMERREERAGE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
17 Surplus reserve 17 BERDR
2017 20174
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
Item HE FMERE FERM FRET
Statutory surplus reserve ETE BB RIE 105,794,859 1,316,273 107,111,132
2016 20164
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
Item JHE FEEE NS FREAEE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBBANTE 105,794,859 - 105,794,859
18 Operating income and operating costs 18 ERIRA ~ EREA
2017 2016
20175 20165
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem JHH A BE WA AR
Principal businesses TREK 565,060,158 494,614,203 662,023,433 616,603,693
Other businesses H i %7% 11,643,918 9,127,733 6,882,633 5,655,648
Total G 576,704,076 503,741,936 668,906,066 622,259,341

TEEBRAREARARANRGE
RARHEBEROHERA - &
EBRAETRIEHEBRYSF
MERAREZWAE -

Operating income generated from principal businesses
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products. Operating income generated from other
businesses represents primarily the sales of packaging
materials, rental income and others.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
19 Financial expenses 19 HHRA
2017 2016
ltem DERE! 20175 2016%F
Interest expenses arising from ERHF B H
borrowings 7,487,681 14,318,040
Interest income from deposits FREFEWA (401,328)  (1,242,813)
Net exchange loss/(gains) SFEH R (WE) 10,896,056 (12,201,153)
Other financial expenses o th B 75 & A 285,009 202,102
Total aEr 18,267,418 1,076,176
20 Investment income 20 ®E W=
2017 2016
ltem 1H R 20175 2016%F
Income from long-term equity A EZE B & B ER B W=
investments accounted for
using cost method 84,000,000 3,750,000
Investment income from disposal of & & K EIRS R B E A H IS
long-term equity investments (44,293,488) -
Investment income from holding AN ESMEEER
available-for-sale financial assets A HR IR E WS - 423,455
Investment income from disposal of REEAHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets S M & Yas 3,354,496 2,833,503
Including: Transfer from other Hrp o Hfbfra s A
comprehensive income 2,041,764 178,356
Total aaf 43,061,008 7,006,958
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

21 Income tax expenses

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit/(loss) is as follows:

[tem

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Expected income tax expenses
at tax rate of 25%

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of non-deductible costs,

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE

(48)
21 FiisHiEA
B8 BEREE:FIH - (EE)
HIBGELOT -
2017 2016
15 8 20174 20164
BiRIAE, (E58) 13,162,722 (265,170)
R R 25% T O TEHAFT ST
3,290,680 (66,292)
REFTS - (1,553,360)

TTT&?DE’WZK &R

expenses and losses MBLHFTE (14,778,559) 1,619,652
Effect of unrecognised deferred RERERELEFSHEER

tax asset for deductible losses AIEHNEENTZE 11,487,879 =
Income tax expenses REFEHE R - -

22 Supplement to cash flow statement

(1) Reconciliation of net profit/(loss) to cash flows from

operating activities:

ltem b}

Net profit/(loss) )
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss for assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Increase in gross inventories
Decrease/(increase) in
operating receivables
(Decrease)/increase in
operating payables

Net cash outflow from operating activities 4=

m:

22 BEREBERBRER

(1) #BOFFE, - (E518) 0 BAC &
EBELRE ¢
2017 2016
B 20175 20164
FH8,/(B8) 13,162,722 (265,170)
EEBERE 7,829,367 8,398,676
EVEESE 994,284 977,803
BERERX 31,196,465 6,374,976
BB 12,265,285 9,383,544
REWE (43,061,008) (7,006,958)
TN (3,705,342) (33,290,556)
L EUIER MR/ (20)
13,340,112 (49,699,951)
LEMRMEEMORD), /M
(95,626,774) 42,094,442
EDEANRASREFE (63,604,889) (23,033,194)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN - 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

22 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d)
(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents:

ltem 5 H

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

1A BAFIMBRREIEREEE
(%)

22 RERBRAETER (F)
R BeRELEEYFEHIE

R MRS FEYF KRR

Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & KRS S E YR FYIHREE

at the beginning of the year

Net (decrease)/increase in cash ¥4 NIREEEWF
and cash equivalents OIS ik

(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents:

T
2017 2016
20174 20164
57,533,223 84,468,206
84,468,206 44,849,439
(26,934,983) 39,618,767

8) AR EFEYRIEK

2017 2016
ltem 5B 20174 20164F
Cash at bank and on hand BE 57,533,223 84,468,206
Including: Cash on hand He: FFRe 77,410 92,860

Bank deposits AIRERE AR ST Y
available on demand RITIEX 57,455,813 84,375,346

Closing balance of cash and FRA e KRS FEVHRE
cash equivalents 57,533,223 84,468,206

XVI COMPARATIVE FIGURE X EELLBEF

The comparative figures of 2017 represent figures for the
twelve months period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016. Certain items in these comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation to
facilitate comparison in 2017.
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2017 F B FEH2016F1 18
£2016F 12 831 H [t + — @ A HifH
MET - BHEMEDERALE @ &
EBEPIERERP 2017 FEN L RE T
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